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Vocational Training Council

The Vocational Training Council (VTC), established in 1982,
stands at the forefront of vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) in Hong Kong. As a statutory
body, we exist within the city’s education system to ensure
the skills of the Hong Kong workforce remain relevant and
future-ready. Our mandate to provide VPET is vital to meeting
industry needs, and fulfilling the aspirations of about
200,000 young people and in-service workers who attend
programmes every year across our 13 member institutions.

Members of the VTC Group

Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEI)
Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge (PEAK)
School for Higher and Professional Education (SHAPE)
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (IVE)

Hong Kong Design Institute (HKDI)

Hotel and Tourism Institute (HTI)

Chinese Culinary Institute (CClI)

International Culinary Institute (ICI)

Maritime Services Training Institute (MSTI)

Youth College

Pro-Act by VTC

Integrated Vocational Development Centre (IVDC)

Shine Skills Centre
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Vision

To be the leading provider of vocational
and professional education and
training in the region
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Mission

e To provide a valued choice to
school leavers and working adults
to acquire the values, knowledge
and skills for lifelong learning and
enhanced employability

e To provide valued support to
industries for their manpower
development
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Core Values

e To serve with integrity

e To be client-focused

e To strive for excellence

¢ To be entrepreneurial

e To forge partnerships with
stakeholders

BEG=

.« DEBE
.« BHBEL
. BREH
. LEAE
. KEEATE



The VTC is committed to a high
standard of corporate governance
and has always recognised good
governance as being crucial to its
effective operation. Our corporate
structure is well-defined and
authority is delegated within clearly
defined parameters, ensuring
efficiency in achieving our mission.

The VTC'’s governance and management
operate at three levels:

(a) The Council, together with its
committees and boards, is the
highest authority and responsible
for corporate policy, strategies and
management at a macro level;

(b) The Executive Director, supported
by the Caucus and various
committees, is responsible for the
execution of the Council's policy
and day-to-day management of the
VTC;

(c) The Vocational Education and
Training (VET) Academic Board
and Higher Education Advisory
Committee (HEAC), together with
various committees and boards
under their purview, provide advice
on academic matters and oversee
their management.

The Council is composed of

22 members, including senior
Government officials and non-
governmental representatives from
the industrial, commercial, service,
labour and educational sectors.

The appointment of all members is
determined by the Chief Executive of
the HKSAR with the exception of the
Executive Director, who sits on the
Council as an ex-officio member.
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The Council is assisted by 25 Training
Boards whose membership consists
of stakeholders in nearly all major
economic sectors in Hong Kong. The
Training Boards are established to
advise the VTC on manpower demand
of the industries they represent, and
to recommend initiatives to meet the
assessed manpower demand. They
also play an important advisory role
in setting out directions, strategic
development and quality assurance
mechanisms for VTC programmes.

The VTC's day-to-day management
comes under the purview of the
Executive Director, who reports to
the Council via its Chairman. The
Executive Director is supported by

the Caucus team, which guides and
manages the overall operation of the
VTC’s services. The Executive Director
also chairs the Quality Assurance
Steering Committee and Strategic
Plan Implementation Steering Group.

The VET Academic Board, chaired

by the Executive Director, formulates
major academic management
policies. The HEAC comprises
representatives from commerce,
industry and government bureaux.
Its function is to provide professional
and industry inputs to the
development and quality assurance
of THEi programmes as well as the
collaborative Degree programmes.
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In the face of a global health crisis unparalleled in decades, we
are navigating the most challenging year for Hong Kong and the
world. The COVID-19 pandemic has affected modes of education
and accelerated the adoption of digital technology in teaching
and learning. Technological application in various industries has
also been on the rise. The emergence of a ‘new normal’ requires
new thinking, new skills, and high levels of professional expertise
to keep our society moving forward. This makes it more important
than ever to advance the VTC’s core mission of cultivating talent
and a versatile workforce.

It is my pleasure to present this Annual Report which manifests
VTC’s perseverance in pursuing new breakthroughs in VPET,
helping Hong Kong embrace challenges and opportunities in the
new era ahead of us.
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Supporting Hong Kong's
Development through VPET

The ‘hands-on’ and ‘minds-on’
approach of VPET, emphasising
applied knowledge and transferable
skKills, is gaining increased currency
worldwide. It will be pivotal to
grooming a future-ready workforce
with the knowledge and competencies
highly sought after amid the fast-
changing environment in industries.

The HKSAR Government has
reiterated the importance of VPET

in sustaining the city’s social and
economic development. A review
report issued in January 2020 by the
Task Force on Promotion of Vocational
and Professional Education and
Training made 18 recommendations,
including enhancing VPET promotion
in secondary education, enhancing
promotion in higher education,
developing vocational progression
pathways and strengthening future
promotion.

In line with these directions, we
are in good progress of formulating
our Fourth 8-Year Strategic Plan,
mapping out key initiatives in further
developing a comprehensive VPET
system and advancing applied
education in Hong Kong, as well

as driving digital transformation

to enhance teaching and learning
experiences and keeping our
organisational agility going forward.

Putting Applied Education
into Action

To meet the diverse skills demand of
industry, we continue to offer wider
VPET choices to our students, while
strengthening the applied elements
in our programmes and giving greater
emphasis to work-based learning and
industry partnerships.

The VTC Earn & Learn Scheme,

a dualtrack pathway launched in
2014 with Government and industry
support, continues to help students
gain practical work experience while
advancing their education. With
some 300 employers from different
industries now participating, the
Scheme has benefited over 5,700
trainees so far.

To enhance its training effectiveness,
the Pilot Incentive Scheme to
Employers was launched this

year with Government support,
encouraging participating companies
to provide workplace learning and
assessment for trainees. This
Scheme, enabling the successful
integration of classroom and
workplace learning, covered over 20
VTC programmes in 2019/20.

We also continue to reshape our
students’ learning experience,
putting more focus on project-based
learning and work-integrated learning.
This multi-disciplinary approach
encourages industry collaboration
and allows students to explore real-
world challenges, taking their learning
beyond conventional confines.
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Spearheading Innovation

Digital transformation in industries
and society has created a constant
demand for talent skilled in the latest
technologies. Moving in tandem with
these rapid changes, we embrace
innovation and technology as a
strategic priority.

Notably, we have stepped up
efforts to enrich our curriculum
as well as teaching and learning
in the areas of interdisciplinary
knowledge, STEM proficiency and
smart city development, so that
we can empower our students
with transferable skills that will
be constantly valued in a rapidly
changing world.
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We have also equipped VTC
campuses with advanced facilities
such as the CyberSecurity Centre
and the Innovation and Technology
Co-creation Centre, to enhance
students’ learning experience and
their acquisition of smart skKills.
Fruitful student projects include a
drone-based search and rescue
support system using big data and
artificial intelligence technologies
to help improve efficiency during
emergencies.

Another milestone development has
been our new Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong
Kong (THEi) campus in Chai Wan,
offering an innovative and sustainable
learning environment for 21st century
professional training.
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We have also collaborated with

industry partners such as CLP Power,

IBM, JP Morgan, Microsoft, MTR
and Siemens to bring industry
perspectives into our teaching and
learning, while providing project
and practical opportunities for VTC
students.

Vote of Thanks

Looking ahead at times of changes,
| trust that by maintaining our

core values of dedication and
professionalism, we can turn
challenges into opportunities. By
increasing industry collaboration
and co-creation, we hope to nurture
a new breed of talent who can put
their skills to good use and make
contributions to our community.

| would like to convey my heartfelt
gratitude to our Council Members,
senior management and the VTC
family for their unfailing efforts and
devotion, which have enabled us to
continue making advancements in
this special year. | have to thank
our Training Board members for their
valuable insights into the manpower
needs of industries, making our
programmes relevant to the world of
work.

Sincere thanks also go to my
predecessor Dr Roy CHUNG, a
visionary leader who has left a strong
legacy for the VTC to continue its
transformative journey. Under his
leadership, we have enhanced the
VTC’s infrastructure for teaching and
learning, and strengthened ties with
industry and partners in different
parts of the world, providing further
opportunities to inspire our students
with a world vision.

Last but not least, | want to thank the
Government, industry collaborators
and our partner institutions for their
unstinting contributions to elevating
VPET to greater prominence.

Building on these solid foundations,

| am confident that we are on the
right road to continuing our mission,
pursuing every opportunity to nurture
skilled talent for the future.

7%—5—'

Tony TAI Chark-tong
Chairman
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During the year under review as we faced the unprecedented
challenges posed by COVID-19, we took the opportunity to
re-examine Hong Kong's needs going forward and strengthen our
efforts to provide a comprehensive range of high-quality VPET
programmes.

CEFERN 2019 BMRFESEIE A
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Gearing Up for New
Professions

The digital transformation is having

a wide-ranging impact on the global
market environment. To thrive in
today’s rapidly-changing world, our
young people need to possess up-to-
date technologijcal skills as well as an
innovative spirit.

At the VTC, we are committed to
nurturing highly adaptable and future-
ready graduates by providing VPET
programmes relevant to this dynamic
market, as well as diversified
progression pathways. We also strive
to offer the local workforce lifelong
learning opportunities, so that they
can acquire new skills to meet the
latest industry demands.

During the past year, we introduced a
number of new programmes in areas
of Aircraft Engineering, Computer

and Electronic Engineering and
interdisciplinary studies to meet

the emerging needs of different
industries. These programmes

have been formulated to help equip
young people with relevant applied
knowledge and skills so that they can
handle the complex issues presented
by our changing world.

We are also striving to enhance
our progression pathways, which
enable learners to pursue higher
qualifications and continuing
education. In addition to our
well-established top-up Degree
programmes offered in partnership
with overseas universities, we

will launch a new top-up Degree
programme with the University of
Westminster in London, the United
Kingdom in the new academic year.

Showcasing Skills
Excellence

In line with the Government’s efforts
to widen awareness of VPET among
young people, we actively promote its
potential and value in the community,
emphasising the power of skills in
changing lives and contributing to the
community. We encourage students
to participate in international
contests such as the WorldSkills
Competition and the World Solar
Challenge to learn from international
peers and study their best practices.
At WorldSkills Kazan 2019, the Hong
Kong Team received a record-high
number of Medallions of Excellence,
spanning 11 trades. Meanwhile in
the World Solar Challenge 2019 held
in Australia, our new generation solar-
powered car SOPHIE 6s built by a
team of VTC Engineering teachers
and students took third place

in the highly demanding Cruiser
Class category. This is a welcome
endorsement of our efforts to
promote STEM education, and our
students’ calibre in driving innovation.
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We also encourage our students to
apply design thinking skills to solving
real-world problems with creativity and
a caring heart. The creativity shown

in our student project on designing

a multi-function walking stick for

the elderly was named ‘Best of the
Best’ for 2019 in the Design Concept
category of the world-renowned Red

Dot Award.

Forging Strong Partnerships

Our network of alliances and
collaborations with local and
international partners continued to
grow during the year, enabling us to
expand learning opportunities for VTC
students and staff while adding value
for our industry stakeholders.

During the year, we renewed or forged
new agreements with overseas
institutions and partners from
Australia, Finland, France, Germany,
India, Japan, Norway, Singapore,
South Korea, Sweden, Switzerland,
Thailand, Turkey, the Netherlands,
the United Kingdom and the United
States, thereby enriching students'
learning experiences and global
perspectives.

Long-time partnerships such as these
also achieve synergistic outcomes,
as in our VTC-ITE International
Student Seminar which gathered
around 600 young minds from Hong
Kong, Shenzhen, Singapore and the
United Kingdom to explore the use

of technology for building a smart
community on a cross-boundary
platform.
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Enabling Skills to Change
Lives

VPET plays a pivotal role in
accelerating growth and development
of society. Over the years, we have
taken pride in producing numerous
graduates who have gone on to
achieve excellence in their fields

and contribute to the sustainable
development and betterment of Hong
Kong.

Skills can and do change lives. |

am especially heartened to see

that many of our VTC graduates

and students have contributed to
society in different ways during the
COVID-19 pandemic by applying

their professional skills to innovative
solutions to social challenges.

For example, graduates of the
Engineering Discipline provided
automation consultancy and services
for face mask production companies
in Hong Kong; students of the same
discipline developed the ‘U-trap Refill
Automator’ application for the elderly
to reduce the risk of virus spread at
home. In addition, our alumnus of the
IT Discipline has developed a smart
robot for food delivery in restaurants
using artificial intelligence, Internet-of-
Things and cloud technologijes.

Embracing a Bright Future

While the road ahead is full of
uncertainties, one thing we can

be sure of is that technological
advancements will continue to
reshape industries and generate

a constant demand for new skill
sets. At the VTC, we will continue

to develop and grow in step with
changes, ensuring that Hong Kong’s
young generation are offered the right
VPET pathways to succeed in this
brave new world.

| would like to convey my sincere
thanks to our Council Members for
their staunch support, as well as

our patrons, partners and alumni

for their continued contributions to
our work. My deepest appreciation
also goes to my VTC colleagues for
their unswerving commitment to
excellence in such a challenging year.

At the VTC, we stand firm

on continuing our mission of
transforming lives and contributing to
the betterment of Hong Kong.

/

Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP
Executive Director
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CALENDAR OF

MAJOR EVENTS
X F B &

HKSAR Chief Executive Mrs Carrie LAM and

API' honourable guests witnessed the opening of
4 E THEi Chai Wan campus which marked a new
chapter in the development of VPET. The new
campus, equipped with purpose-built and
advanced facilities, provides a dynamic and
sustainable learning environment for students
to unlock their full potentials.

THEI SREREHE  TREREMBAGE -
REHERE  —RAEEIBRIHEEROME
B IREEEEERE  RBEREZ TN
AREERNEBERE  ERSERME -

Opening Ceremony of
Technolagical and Highr Education Instituta of Hong Kong
Cigi

THEI organised its first International
Conference on Applied Education, Technology
and Innovation with the participation of
about 180 overseas and local practitioners
to explore significant shifts in education in
response to digital transformation.

THEI BN EEEAHE - BHREAIHBRERH
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To promote STEM education, the VTC

hosted the STEM Education Day cum Award
Presentation Ceremony for VIC STEM
Challenge Cup. On the occasion, the School
Partnership Scheme was launched with a
network of local secondary schools, fostering
closer partnerships with the school sector to
nurture innovative and professional talent.

VTC £ STEM EA 25 H 2 VTC STEM Pk &
mEAEEIE . LIEE STEM B - WRAEER
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VTC STEM Education Day 2019
STEM cum Awaic F’r;jrv,}rvh ; 1 ‘ for VTC J-'u-my\mqsgupmw ‘ Tc
VTC STEM % i EM Hi ETME 2019

An 11-day annual design show titled ‘Emerging
Design Talents 2019: EVOLVE’ was staged at
HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee), showcasing some
450 creative works of their design students
and graduates.

HKDI %2 IVE (ZEF)) BT AH 11 BHNF
€ % 5T B [Emerging Design Talents 2019:
EVOLVE] ' BRIEA 450 FRFABEMEEA
EIE(Em o

The VTC partnered with Microsoft to roll out
the Employability Pilot Program and cultivate
digital talent for tomorrow.

VIC IKIBR I FA R B X FE A Bl e G518 - 17
BARRBIEAL ©

The VTC-ITE International Student Seminar
2019, themed ‘A Smarter Generation

for 2020+’, brought together some 600
students from Hong Kong, Shenzhen,
Singapore and the United Kingdom to
explore solutions to global challenges.

VTC-ITE BIFR £ 502 2019 LA [A Smarter
Generation for 2020+ A F & [E B4
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LAUNCH CEREMONY OF

EMPLOYABILITY PILOT PROGRAM

21 JUNE 2019

The VTC joined hands with the Hong Kong
Federation of Youth Groups to organise

a Symposium and Workshop tailored for
HKDSE graduates, offering a wealth of
professional development and career
advice to over 400 secondary school
students and their parents.
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A Launch and Pledging Ceremony for IVE
Engineering Solar Car SOPHIE 6s to race

in the World Solar Challenge was held in
conjunction with an exhibition to promote
innovation and STEM. It featured a mini solar
car workshop, an autonomous car exhibition,
a STEM robot demonstration and a display of
SOPHIE 6s.

IVE TI2E2 Rl K5 4EE B E SOPHIE 65 Ht B
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Secretary for Education, Mr Kevin YEUNG, and
Consul General of the Russian Federation

in Hong Kong and Macao, Mr Alexander V
KOZLOV, officiated at a Flag Presentation
Ceremony for the Hong Kong Delegation to
compete in WorldSkills Kazan 2019, wishing
the 24-strong Hong Kong Team every success.
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~3 Flag Presentation Ceremony for Hong Kong Delegation to
Worldskills Kazan 2018

2019 LERERANEARREENA

iskills

The VTC signed a Memorandum of
Understanding with Turku University of Applied
Sciences, Finland to strengthen partnerships
and exchange knowledge and best practices
in VPET development.

VICELZHERERAMBAERESIERT
B IR A IE - RE R BR M D
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To mark its 10th Anniversary, the VTC Chorus
presented ‘Salute to Broadway’ under the
baton of Artistic Director and Conductor

Dr Henry SHEK. The concert was played to a
full house.
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At Worlddidac Asia 2019 in Thailand, VTC
Executive Director Dr Carrie YAU shared
insights into how technology was transforming
VPET with participants from around the world.
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THE NEW TRAGBFOR

Some 240 industry representatives attended
an Insurance Summit jointly organised by the
VTC Insurance Training Board and the Institute
of Professional Education And Knowledge to
discuss challenges and opportunities faced
by the insurance industry in the digital world.

VTC RERZE AR E B 2B R = 1§ 3 (5 2 fr 22 9
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Insurance

The VTC Automobile Training Board staged

a Prize Presentation Ceremony for its 2019
Best Apprentice Competition to recognise the
outstanding performance of apprentices in
vehicle maintenance and boost practitioners’
skills across the industry.
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2020

Some 600 participants attended the first-
ever Hong Kong International Urban Forestry
Conference co-organised by the Development
Bureau and THEi. The two-day conference
provided a platform for renowned international
experts, decision-makers, academics and
industry professionals to exchange insights
into urban greening.
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With digitalisation now in full flow, new industries and professions
are taking wing. The VTC has attached great importance to
modernising its offerings in timely response to technological
transformation on different fronts. By providing young people and
career aspirants with emerging skKills, literacy and competencies,
it is paving the way for them to flourish in the smart new world.
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EMBRACING

THE NEW WORLD AHEAD
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The VTC continued to develop
innovative programmes to empower
students with the transferable skills
needed to thrive in the future.

Extending VPET for Learners

New programmes pitched at different
levels have been brought forward

to cater to the surging needs of
developing industries. These include
Higher Diploma programmes in
Animation and Visual Effects,
Illustration, Computer and Electronic
Engineering, Fitness and Exercise
Nutrition, Management for Security
and Disciplined Services, as well as a
Diploma programme in International
Culinary Arts.

Degree programmes in Chinese
Medicinal Pharmacy and Aircraft
Engineering have also been put
in place to nurture work-ready
professionals in these industries.

New modules and programme
contents incorporating on-trend
technologies such as Artificial
Intelligence, Cloud Applications

and Big Data Analytics have also
been made available to help equip
students with versatile skills and
prepare them to cope with the wave
of digitalisation that is sweeping all
industries.
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Dual-track Education in Full
Swing

With the support of the Government
and industry, the VTC spearheaded
the Earn & Learn Scheme in 2014

to provide a dualtrack pathway to
young people and produce work-ready
employees for industries with keen
labour demand.

The Scheme has covered a range
of industries such as Electrical and
Mechanical Engineering, Automotive
and Healthcare Services, benefiting
over 5,700 trainees and being well
received by over 300 employers.
We have also offered Earn and
Learn Degree Programmes covering
different trade areas.

Building on this progress, the
Government has regularised the
Scheme from the 2019/20 academic
year. To facilitate skills exchange

and diversify trainees’ exposure,

the Government also announced

in its 2019 Policy Address that it
would subsidise study and exchange
programmes for students under the
Scheme from 2020/21.

Another Government-backed initiative,
the Pilot Incentive Scheme to
Employers, was rolled out during

the year to further enhance the
effectiveness of the VTC Earn & Learn
Scheme. By engaging employers in
assessing the trainees’ workplace
competencies and performance, this
Scheme enables trainees to hone
their knowledge and professional
skills more effectively, thereby
meeting the growing needs and
opportunities of these industries.

Apprenticeship and
Traineeship Schemes

The VTC also administers
Apprenticeship and Traineeship
Schemes that offer school leavers

a range of valuable opportunities to
receive systematic workplace training,
and thus equipping themselves with
the competencies and skills needed
for their professional development.

During the year, over 1,700
participants joined Apprenticeship
Schemes covering more than 70
trades. Over 830 trainees have joined
the Traineeship Scheme for beauty
care and hairdressing industries
since its launch.
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Workplace Learning and
Assessment

To impart professional and industry-
relevant knowledge to students

and equip them with authentic

work experiences required in the
ever-changing labour market,
workplace learning and assessment
was incorporated into a range of
programmes covering the Hospitality,
Engineering and Applied Science
disciplines. The participation of a
wide spectrum of industry partners
including Government departments,
public utilities, large corporations and
SMEs helped ensure better learning
outcomes, creating a win-win situation
for both trainees and employers.
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CULTIVATING SKILLS
IN THE NEXT
GENERATION

1% B B e AC

At the VTC, we have set sights on
multi-pronged extension of the VPET
frontiers so that we can equip future
professionals with multi-disciplinary
knowledge as well as specialist skills
and competencies.

Driving STEM Education

Acknowledging the importance

of STEM to the industries of the
future, the VTC actively promotes
STEM education in collaboration
with industries through an array

of activities including workshops,
summer camps and competitions.
For instance, the first VTC Challenge
Cup was organised to kindle interest
in STEM among secondary school
students.

A STEM School Partnership Scheme
was also introduced in tandem

with the STEM Industry Partner
Collaboration Scheme to enhance
students’ understanding of career
prospects in STEM fields and
encourage them to pursue STEM
studies.
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S-SHOP@TMIT

Enhancing Education
through New Facilities and
Technologies

The use of technology in education
enables students to become

active learners and innovators. At
the VTC, we actively embrace new
technologjes in teaching and learning,
utilising technologies such as Virtual
and Augmented Reality, Artificial
Intelligence, Cloud Applications and
mobile applications to allow more
effective and interactive learning.

During the year, the VTC brought in
various purpose-built facilities, such
as the Innovation and Technology Co-
creation Centre to drive innovation
and entrepreneurship, and the
Tourism and Aviation Training Centre
for training industry professionals.
Also established at IVE (Tuen Mun)
campus was ‘S-Shop@TMIT’, a smart
shop adopting technologies in areas
of Cybersecurity, Mobile Application
and Payment. This provides an
unmanned shop experience while
supporting the teaching and learning
of new technologies.

More infrastructure will come on
stream to support work-simulated
training such as the loT (Internet-of-
Things) Innovation and Technology
Centre, the CyberSecurity Centre and
the Aviation and Maritime Education
Centre.
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STRENGTHENING

THE PRESENCE OF VPET

mEEEREHRS

The VTC proactively advocates VPET
to the secondary school sector,
raising students’ appreciation of VPET
and its value for their future career
progression.

VPET in Secondary School
Sector

During the year, diversified community
outreach programmes including
Applied Learning (ApL) courses

in various areas of study, taster
programmes and career planning
activities were carried out to widen
students’ understanding of the
multiple VPET options available,

as well as the career prospects of
different trades.

In 2019/20, over 1,800 Secondary
Five students were enrolled in ApL
courses offered by the VTC. Talks and
sharing sessions using both physical
and virtual formats were arranged for
secondary school students to plan
for their further studies and careers.
Webinars for teachers, parents and
students were also hosted and live-
broadcast to help students better
understand the multiple VPET study
pathways provided by the VTC.
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Caring for the Youth with
Special Needs

The VTC firmly believes in the
potential of every individual and
strives to provide equal access to
VPET for all students.

Last year, about 320 non-engaged
young people took part in Vocational
Development Programmes. Some 20
dedicated VPET programmes were
also provided for around 700 non-
Chinese speaking students to cater
for their different training needs.

Over 2,000 students with special
educational needs were enrolled

in our various pre-employment
programmes. The Shine Skills
Centres continued to offer training
to students with special educational
needs. A social enterprise was also
established in 2019 for graduates
and students of Shine Skills Centres
to further their catering skills by
running a café. The new café at IVE
(Morrison Hill) provides a training
venue for them to hone work skills
and learn to serve the community.

In collaboration with the Social
Welfare Department, about 440
residents of the Tuen Mun Children
and Juvenile Home were provided
with tailor-made VPET programmes.
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Supporting Development
of the Qualifications
Framework

In support of the Qualifications
Framework (QF), the VTC has
contributed to the drawing up of 32
sets of Specification of Competency
Standards (SCS) and five SCS-
based training packages covering 17
industries embarking on QF.

In addition, the VTC acts as the
Recognition of Prior Learning
assessment agency under the QF

for ten industries, namely Printing

& Publishing, Watch & Clock,
Hairdressing, Property Management,
Automotive, Jewellery, Catering
(Chinese Cuisine), Beauty, Retail, and
Electrical & Mechanical Services.

Elevating Quality Assurance

To ensure that our students can gain
recognised vocational qualifications,
the VTC continues to benchmark its
offerings against the Hong Kong QF.

In 2019/20, five VTC Degree
programmes and 14 non-local Degree
programmes operated by the VTC
were accredited or re-accredited

by the Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications.

We also conducted international
quality assurance (QA) benchmarking
and learnt good practices from
successful counterparts overseas.
Referencing international examples,
we forged ahead with improving QA
and keeping our VPET provisions

in step with the evolving needs of
different trades and students.
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SPARKING INNOVATION

BEFER

To thrive in a knowledge-based
economy and gain a competitive
edge, students will need creative
and enterprising thinking. The VTC
promotes innovation and co-creation
with industry as part of students’
learning processes.

Promoting Applied
Research

Last year, THEi garnered research
grant awards totalling HK$16.6
million from various external funding
schemes to execute research
projects such as reviewing treatment
of plastic waste and discarded
electric vehicle batteries for energy
storage applications, and to organise
educational activities including a
knowledge exchange programme for
promoting technologies and urban
sustainability through enhancing the
horticulture industry.
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UPLIFTING MANPOWER FOR INDUSTRY
XEITRER REARE

The VTC endeavours to empower
workforces with updated and future-
proof professional training. At the
same time, we co-operate closely
with industry in providing upskilling
opportunities and continuous
professional development in the
working community.

Underpinning Industry
Development

The VTC continues to provide in-
service training, e-learning and
consultancy projects for government,
public, professional and corporate
institutions. A range of in-service
training programmes is also provided
through PEAK, ranging from award-
bearing and Continuing Professional
Development programmes, to short
courses in an array of disciplines.
New programmes have also

been offered with trade-specific
technological know-how such as 5G,
FinTech and virtual banking, geared
to the needs of different industries
in today’s increasingly digitalised
landscape.

The Integrated Vocational
Development Centre (IVDC) has also
offered a wide variety of retraining
and skills development programmes
to people with diverse backgrounds.

Promoting Lifelong Learning

With support from the Government,
the Vplus Subsidy Scheme offers
tuition fee subsidies to lifelong
learners taking professional part-
time VTC programmes in creative
industries as well as different
engineering sectors. Under

this Scheme, more than 1,600
beneficiaries have enjoyed tuition
fee subsidies since September
2019. The VTC also administers
Reindustrialisation and Technology
Training Programme (RTTP), a funding
scheme under the Innovation and
Technology Fund that subsidises
local companies to train their staff
in advanced technologies related to
Industry 4.0.

The VTC has also encouraged lifelong
learning among VTC students and
graduates to sustain their skills
development. A lifelong learning
mobile application and web channel
have been set up to facilitate
planning and application for different
courses.
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Skills Recoghnition for
Professionals

The ‘One Examination, Multiple
Certification’ (OEMC) system for
Beauty Care and Hairdressing was
developed and implemented through
multipartite collaboration. Under
this system, candidates passing

the assessment can achieve
recognition from Hong Kong, the
National Occupational Qualification
system of the Mainland and the
International Professional Standards
Network (ipsn). Starting from

1 January 2019, candidates passing
the OEMC in Beauty Care have been
awarded a separate Occupational
Skills Certificate issued by the Labour
Affairs Bureau of Macao.

Since 2015, the vocational
assessment in Arboriculture offered
by the VTC has met the requirement
for workers undertaking tree pruning
works involving the use of chainsaws
for Government contracts. About
260 candidates have taken the
assessment since launch.

Keeping VPET Relevant to
Changing Industry Contexts

To ensure that VTC’s programmes
reflect the latest manpower demands
and training needs of different
industries, the Training Boards
associated with the 24 designated
industry sectors conduct full-scale
manpower surveys in fouryear cycles.
In 2019/20, manpower surveys for
Six economic sectors were released,
along with update reports on 11
industries. These evaluations and
manpower updates provide valuable
inputs in the process of strategic
manpower planning, employee skKills
development, and educational policy-
making.

The online VTC Occupation Dictionary
carries information on some 500
local occupations, providing reference
for students and working adults to
chart their progression pathways.
This online platform was honoured
with the Award of Excellence (Best
School Websites) in the 25th
Communicator Awards organised by
the Academy of Interactive and Visual
Arts in recognition of its user-friendly
interfaces.
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The VTC has built strong links with its industry and partner
institutions. The network of partners opens up further
opportunities for our students to widen their exposure.

In the year under review, the VTC established closer ties with
partners at the local, regional and global levels, with a total of 68
agreements and Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs) instituted
or extended, laying the foundation for multi-pronged and cross-
border co-operation.

VIC EERRINHRBETHE -
BHEBANBELS  RBERMIERE
e - EFEARANKSE -

FA - BHPIERH - [& A NEBIM
N EIEEZZBE  REX
BEesNMHHENEERATE B
VTC EIK B TR R A & 1F
EMRE -

COLLABORATION WITH

LOCAL INDUSTRY

BEARMESR BERIT

At the local level, the VTC continues
to extend its relationships and ties
with industry partners, adding further
dimensions to its capabilities in
nurturing high-calibre talent for the
sustainable development of different
industries.

During the year, the VTC'’s strategic
partnership agreements with Hong
Kong Aero Engine Services Limited
and Smart City Academy helped
cultivate aviation maintenance
professionals and smart city

talent respectively. Collaborations
were concluded with Microsoft, JP
Morgan, Cathay Pacific Airways, CITIC
Telecom International CPC Limited,
and Computer and Technologies
Holdings Limited, with the aim of
nurturing quality manpower with multi-
disciplinary and digital skills.
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Donations and Scholarships

Generous philanthropy from
partnering organisations plays a
valuable role in helping the VTC
provide holistic development
programmes for its students. During
the year under review, Chevalier
Group set up a Scholarship Scheme
to groom local engineering and
construction talent. In addition, the
Wu Jieh Yee Charitable Foundation
injected new funding into the Wu
Jieh Yee Bursary Scheme to support
needy Higher Diploma students, and
donated state-of-the-art laboratory
equipment to THEi.

HTISEESS

Chevalier Group Schola
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Donations from the Tin Ka Ping
Foundation were received for
promoting appreciation for traditional
craftsmanship and global citizenship
among students.

Scholarships continued to be provided
by HSBC, Hong Kong International
Theme Parks, the Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce, Rotary
District 3450 and others, further
encouraging our students to pursue
personal growth and professional
development.

A donation from The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust was
also received to upgrade facilities
at the Vehicle Emissions Testing
and Research Centre, and to launch
the Jockey Club Blue Sky Education
Programme.
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Honorary Fellowships

Honorary Fellowships are VIC’s
highest accolades, bestowed on
distinguished individuals for their
contributions to the development of
VPET or Hong Kong society, and the
values and commitments they share
with the VTC. In 2019/20, the six
Honorary Fellows included:
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Prof Karen CHAN Ka-yin, JP
Executive Director,

German Pool 020 Limited
Founder & Cheongsam Designer,
The Sparkle Collection

Mr David KWOK Sek-chi

Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive,

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Mr Jackson LEUNG Siu-yin
Chief Executive Officer, C & C Joint
Printing Co., (HK) Limited

Sr Dr Peter NG Yau-yee

Chairman and Founder,
Beria Consultants Limited

Prof Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP
Chairman, Kinox Enterprises Limited

Mr Johnny YEUNG Chi-hung, MH

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Jiture Brand’ tonese Cuisine Master

ration of Can

MAINLAND AND REGIONAL

CONNECTIONS

EEAMN BEBmKA

Our collaborative links on the
Mainland and in the region continued
to grow, opening up more avenues
for VTC students and staff to benefit
from intellectual, professional and
cultural exchanges.

Invigorating Co-operation

The VTC continues to forge close
relationships with enterprises,
institutions and government bodies
on the Mainland as well as Asia-
Pacific countries including Australia,
Japan, Singapore, South Korea and
Thailand. These connections provide
students with opportunities to
engage in internships and knowledge
exchange activities. A number of
collaborative partnerships were also
established in 2019/20, including
MoUs signed on industry attachment
and training programmes with

China Aircraft Services Limited and
Guangzhou Civil Aviation College.

Meanwhile, ongoing collaborations
were augmented to reap collective
benefits for students of both the VTC
and partnering institutions. Riding
on the success of an existing MoU
between the National Institute of
Technology (NIT) of Japan and the
VTC, extensions of the MoU with NIT
Kumamoto College and NIT Oyama
College were signed to establish
further co-operation on STEM
development and applied research.
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Prompting Knowledge
Exchange

To keep the VTC updated on best
practices and latest trends in

VPET and further our educational
missions, we play an active role in
educational conferences and forums
across the Mainland and the region.
These included the Worlddidac Asia
and BIBB International Roadshow

in Thailand, the Applied Learning
Conference in Singapore, the
International Symposium on Advance
in Technology Education in Japan
and the Asian Education Forum in
Chengdu during the year.

We also facilitated professional
knowledge exchange by organising
joint initiatives with our various
partners. For instance, THEi has
established an exchange platform
for Chinese Medicine pharmaceutical
professionals in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
to enhance professional knowledge
and skills, and foster sharing of
expertise. The first Greater Bay

Area Speech Contest was staged
last year to boost public speaking
skills among students of the VTC,
Shenzhen Polytechnic and Zhongshan
Polytechnic. The biennial VTC-ITE
International Student Seminar co-
hosted by the VTC and the Institute
of Technical Education of Singapore
attracted over 600 students from
Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Singapore
and the United Kingdom to delve into
global mega-trends in technology
and their impact on individuals and
society.

vTc <Xphsec

HSBC Speak for Success Programme
Greater Bay Area Presentation Com
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The VTC also offers training to in-
service personnel on the Mainland.
During the year, we partnered

with the Education Department of
Hainan Province to launch the first
professional exchange programme
for 25 principals from primary

and secondary schools in Hainan.
Teacher training programmes were
delivered to 120 principals and
management seniors from vocational
institutes in Guangxi Province
through the platform of the Guangxi-
Hong Kong Vocational Education
Development Alliance, a strategic
initiative between the VTC and
Education Department of Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region.

During the year, we received
Mainland delegations from
government bodies, academic
institutions and agencies in
Guangdong, Guangxi, Hangzhou,
Macau, Ningbo and Sichuan to
exchange professional expertise
and explore collaborations in VPET
development.

VIC TR A AER A BRHIFI - F
N BMKBEEEHERE BER
25 % BEAEF/NEREER IR
Y HMEAMKREARHERAE
RIEBRARBERBEEHRTL B
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AB BEESHENERIRE
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GLOBAL NETWORK
RER

The VTC spares no effort in
strengthening its international
outreach. Study tours, familiarisation
visits, shared programmes and
projects with multi-national partners
enable VTC students and staff to
broaden their world view and gain the
international capabilities to prosper in
today’s global landscape of increased
economic and cultural interfaces.

During the year, the VTC forged

new ties or strengthened existing
bonds with international partners
from Finland, France, Germany,
India, Norway, Sweden, Switzerland,
the Netherlands, Turkey, the United
Kingdom and the United States. New
MoUs were signed to put in place
collaborations and exchanges with
renowned academic institutions
such as Turku University of Applied
Sciences in Finland; University of
the Arts London and Manchester
Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom; and Southern California
Institute of Architecture and the
University of Arizona in the United
States.

Driving Home World Insights
and Knowledge

Meanwhile, we continue orchestrating
joint events with our overseas
partners to benefit our students, staff
and society through the exchange

of valuable insights and knowledge.
An example was the seminar series
Arboriculture and Sustainable Urban
Forest Management organised by
THEI, which gathered local and
overseas experts to share their green
knowledge and expertise.

Under the International Visiting
Fellows/Scholars Scheme and

the Visiting Fellows/Creators-in-
Residence Scheme, professionals
and experts were invited from Austria,
Denmark, France, Germany, the United
Kingdom and the United States to
meet VTC students and staff, and
give professional advice on skKills
development in the fields of design
and culinary arts. Master talks were
hosted to share world-class insights
across the community, including
industry partners, practitioners, staff
and students, elevating the reputation
of VPET among the public.
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With dedication to excellence in nurturing talent, the VTC
encourages its students, staff and alumni to continue
equipping themselves so as to make their mark in this age of
transformation.
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INSPIRING MINDS FOR

THE NEW ERA
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At the VTC, we attach great emphasis
to whole person development,
enabling students to realise their full
potential. We encourage students

to participate in local, regional and
global competitions, which provide
them with opportunities to hone
their skills and gain international
exposure. Students also take part

in various cross-disciplinary projects
and extracurricular activities to
polish their skills and competencies
in such areas as digital literacy,
multi-disciplinary innovation, design
thinking and entrepreneurship, so as
to meet the challenges of a rapidly-
changing world.

Among innovation-sparking events
during the year was HKDI inspire*
Design Thinking 2019, which
featured lectures and workshops

by global experts and gave our
students insights into the application
of design thinking to tackling

world issues. A series of training
workshops, mentorship programmes
and business network support was
also launched to help instil the spirit
of entrepreneurship into students.
The THEiI X SCMP Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Challenge 2019
allowed students to receive business
training and make presentations to
seasoned corporate leaders, helping
them acquire an innovative spirit

and inspiring them to participate in
start-ups.

Our students also took part in a wide
range of activities to enhance their
soft skills, ranging from the ‘IVElite
Student Peer Mentoring Scheme’
and ‘Wofoo Leaders’ Network’ to the
challenge-based physical training
programme ‘Road to Marathon’ and
the communication coaching initiative
‘Speak for Success Programme’.
These interactive learning
experiences helped strengthen our
students’ capabilities for success in
the 21st century.
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Expanding Learning
Exposure

Industry attachments, a featured
element of our Degree and Higher
Diploma curricula, allow our students
to try their hands at real-world
professional practices, and gain the
right work experience to enhance
their future employability.

In 2019/20, VTC students took
part in work placements in different
local organisations including major
businesses, SMEs, NGOs and
government bodies. Some of

our students took up industry
attachments in Mainland cities and
overseas countries such as France,
Japan and Singapore to learn about
work practices and collaborative team
work.

VTC students also benefit from cross-
boundary learning opportunities.

In 2019/20, over 4,000 students
participated in a variety of outbound
activities ranging from academic and
cultural exchange programmes to
competitions, exhibitions and joint
projects. Their footprints stretched
across the Mainland and Belt & Road
countries to nations such as Belgium,
France, Japan, Norway, South Korea,
Switzerland, the Netherlands and

the United Kingdom. Our students
also benefited from sharing of
knowledge with global peers through
collaborative projects and online
platforms.

This cross-regional exposure helps
students enhance their professional
knowledge and broaden their vision.
During the year, 20 IVE Engineering
students participated in an exchange
tour to Croatia for exploring the
latest Internet-of-Things know-how
for smart city development. Some
100 students from the Tourism and
MICE stream joined a study tour

to Hangzhou to learn about good
practices in attractions management.
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Promoting Multi-cultural
Diversity on Campus

We make constant efforts to

give our learning environment a
culturally diverse and inclusive
ambience. During the year, the VTC
welcomed exchange students from
the Mainland, Australia, Germany,
Hungary, Indonesia, Italy, Malaysia,
Morocco, Sweden and the United
States.

Additionally, a series of cultural
activities was launched with the
support of various Consulates-
General to encourage cultural

understanding between local and
visiting students, and promote

global citizenship. A new cohort of
International Student Ambassadors
of the year was entrusted with a view
to cultivating cultural diversity and
integration on campus.
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Student Statistics Student Achievements and Awards

B4 g B BERMERE

Number of students of the VTC member institutions in 2019/20:
2019/20 F[E VTC MK B 24 A2 -

Member Institutions Types of Programmes RE&ER

HRAE Pre-employment BAT  In-service Training 7£ 5% 3E 3l

Technologijcal and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong 2,940 330
EEEEHERRER

Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education, AR b | s A 4’ O S BTk =F LADE :fn}nassmf
Hong Kong Design Institute, — A 7 _ magi 4 ST B ; 3 M
School of Business and Information Systems 28,280 45,970 ' ' Y ‘ ‘ ‘ ;
EAEEHE LR EENERTBRK

THEENSk

Youth College
= -~ 4,220
5 FEk worldsolarc 2
7,630 e /N

Pro-Act Training and Development Centres 4 920 ' : :
BB R AL '

Chinese Culinary Institute

160 160
PERFESE

Hotel and Tourism Institute e Lo
B IE K ik 8 22 B '
International Culinary Institute

B 1,510 150
B A ESR

Maritime Services Training Institute
BEIIRER

160 2,060

Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge
69,790

BB IE 25 ' World Solar Challenge 2019 R KR EEE B EE 2019

School for Higher and Professional Education The IVE Engineering Solar Car team formed by IVE B IVE T2 SR 4 # A A IVE T2 K588

. o 1,950 2,330 T e . e -
TEREHEER Engineering teachers and students participated in the BHERERMEBEYERKAGEEREE

B [ <

World Solar Challenge 2019 in Australia, a biennial race 2019 - EMF-—RHOES  ER2RAER
RECEHRENRGEE  —RAEREBEE
Bt o IVE R AT AUSR SOPHIE 6s HE © I
& RN 3,000 A B EMITE - R E#E M
Bt EEN [FEE] BEFHESEE -

Integrated Vocational Development Centre

‘ 2,020 2,620 that brings together solar cars of tertiary educational
EAFERERT D

institutions and enterprises across the globe to showcase
technical excellence. With its new edition of solar-powered
680 90 car, SOPHIE 6s, the team successfully traversed 3,000 km
across the desert and wilderness in Australia, and clinched

Total 4% 45,740 133,850 third place in the highly demanding and challenging
Cruiser Class.

Shine Skills Centres
BE=Hae R AL
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WorldSkills Kazan 2019

In August 2019, a Hong Kong team including VTC
students and graduates took part in the 45th WorldSkills
Competition held in Kazan, Russia, and brought home

a record-high number of Medallions for Excellence in 11
trades.
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Medallion for Excellence (Web Technologies)
CHEUNG Kuen-yuet
Graduate of Higher Diploma in Software Engineering, IVE

Medallion for Excellence (Cooking)
LEE Hon-fai
Graduate of Diploma in European Cuisine, ICI

Medallion for Excellence (Electrical Installations)
CHAN Yu-tai

Graduate of Craft Certificate in Electrical Engineering,
Youth College

Medallion for Excellence (Graphic Design Technology)
MAN Hoi-tung
Graduate of Higher Diploma in Visual Communication, HKDI

Medallion for Excellence (Hairdressing)
WONG Pun-shing

Graduate of Diploma of Vocational Education
(Hairdressing), Youth College

Medallion for Excellence (Jewellery)

CHAN Wing-long

Graduate of Diploma of Vocational Education
(Jewellery Arts and Design), Youth College

Medallion for Excellence (Mechatronics)
AU YEUNG Ka-ming, YEUNG Ka-ho
Graduates of Higher Diploma in Mechanical Engineering, IVE

Medallion for Excellence (Mobile Robotics)
LAW Siu-leung, Ricky LEE Wai-kit
Graduates of Higher Diploma in Electrical Engineering, IVE

Medallion for Excellence (Patisserie and Confectionery)
CHAN Yin-wah

Graduate of Diploma in Bakery,

Pastry and Confectionery, ICI

Medallion for Excellence (Refrigeration and Air Conditioning)
KWOK Chun-ming

Graduate of Diploma of Vocational Education

(Building Service Engineering), Youth College

Medallion for Excellence (Visual Merchandising)
LUI Kei-kwan
Graduate of Higher Diploma in Exhibition Design, HKDI

Sustainable Practice Award 1st Winner (Car Painting)
LI Kam-hung

Graduate of Diploma of Vocational Education
(Automotive Technology), Youth College
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Think Ahead 7/;\\-,.; CFA Institute

ACCA and CFA Institute

ot SEBC Business Competition 2019-20
t A New Era of Business

Success with Ethics
Deloitte. (@:: Ll r and Purpose
y .

s

S
:

Applied Science

The Ninth Healthy Cooking Competition
« Champion
CHAN Bak-ki, HO Kwan-ching
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Kwai Chung)
First Runner-up
CHEUK Wai, LAW Tsui-yin
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Kwai Chung)
Prize in Innovation, Technology, Nutrition
Manny TSE, WONG Cho-wan, MA Jo-i, YAU Wing-suet,
CHAN Tsz-yau, CHAN Ka-hei
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Kwai Chung)

Business
ACCA-CFA Institute Business Competition 2019/20
«  Merit Award
HO Hung-cheong, LIU Wing-yu, LI Caiying, WONG Kei-ting
Department of Business, IVE (Sha Tin)
+ Judges’ Commendation Award
LAW Tak-lung, NG Ka-keung, CHAN Tsz-yin,
CHENG Cheung-ho
Department of Business, IVE (Tuen Mun)

Childcare, Elderly and Community Services
Samsung Solve for Tomorrow 2019

Merit Award

SZE Ka-man, NG Shing-yuet, LIN Mingqi, LI Pui-ying,

SO Mo-hin, SHEK Hiu-hau, CHEUNG Sin-pui, LEUNG Hoi-yu,

LEUNG Wai-in, CHAN Kwan-yi

Department of Childcare, Elderly and

Community Services, IVE (Sha Tin)
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Culinary

2019 Asian Culinary Exchange
»  Supreme Gold Award - Appetizer

LIU Po-tsun

Diploma in Chinese Cuisine, CCl
« Gold Award - Dessert

LIU Sze

Diploma in Chinese Cuisine, CCl
« Silver Award - Hot Dish

LIN Junjie, SO Lok-yuen

Diploma in Chinese Cuisine, CCl

Gourmet Master Chefs 2019 - Grand Finale
(Student Category)
«  Overall Winner, Gold Award and Best Aesthetics Award
Kevin CHAN Ka-wang
Diploma in Chinese Cuisine, CCl
« Bronze Prize
Jacky LIU Chun-ki
Department of Hospitality Management, THEi

The 25th IKA Culinary Olympics

« Silver Award (Junior National Team Category)
Emily CHAN Hiu-kwan (Youth Member of Hong Kong
Culinary National Team)
Department of Hospitality Management, THEi
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Design
Red Dot Award: Design Concept 2019
The Red Dot: Best of the Best Award
Jordan LAU Tsz-chun
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

Hong Kong Smart Design Awards 2019
(Conceptual Group - Student Division)
Gold Award
Marco HEUNG Tsz-hang
Department of Design, THEi
Silver Award
Tiffany CHEUNG Sui-wa
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI
Bronze Award
LEUNG Ching
Department of Design, THEI

Kam Fan Awards 2019
Bronze Award and Best Craft of Copy
Cherry LEUNG, YU Kin-yin, YIP Sheung-lok,
WONG Yu-hin
Department of Design, THEI
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The International Federation of Interior Architects/
Designers Global Awards Program

GHM Greater Bay Area Institute of Urban Architecture (Hong

Silver Award (Student Category)

CHU Ka-wing

Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

Kong) BIM+Historical Renovation Competition 2019

Champion
Iris LEE, Beryl LAM, Miki CHOY, TIN Yeuk-fei
Department of Environment, THEi

Hong Kong Young Fashion Designers’ Contest 2019

Second Runner-up and New Talent Award
Enzo CHAN
Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

DFA Hong Kong Young Design Talent Award 2019

HKDI Young Design Talent Award

Joseph SO Chun-kit

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
CreateSmart Young Design Talent Special Award
Shahrukh KHAN

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
Andrew LAU Hiu-lok

Department of Design, THEi

BP0 B2 S B R 5T B g 2R
[ZERAMETE ]

REE (BA4)

KRA

HKDI 2 - EAREMBTER

EERAEEHTEEEE (F8)
BIM ZE SR 5L E 2019
HE
RS - Mg BEH - HESE
THEI IRIFE XK

2019 B EFERHERTRAEREE
TERFEAA
PR T 5=
HKDI B EE ML R AT 2 X

DFAE#E fFiﬁ“l‘Zl’fx:% 2019
BEHNBERF BB BEFRAAKRE
FRAE A

HKDI I R REFTE R
BIEEESFRIAS RIS
TR

HKDI IR R RERFTER
%IJB;%M

THEI RFFE X

65



66

'/'1‘

Knitwear Symphony 2019 and the 9th Hong Kong
Young Knitwear Designers’ Contest

First Runner-up and Merino Wool Award

Tina TSOI Sze-ting

Department of Design, THEi

Shima Seiki Award

Ryan WONG Hin-kok

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

Future Cut - Fashion Design Competition Asia Award
Gold Award and Online Popularity Award
Anson YU Tsun-kit
Department of Design, THEi

The 21st Hong Kong Eyewear Desigh Competition
(Student Group)
«  Champion
LI Yuen-ying
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI
First Runner-up
YUNG Tsz-shan
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI
»  Second Runner-up
LUNG Cheong
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

v
The 9" Hong Kong Young Knitwear Designers’ Contest
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The 11th International Footwear Design Competition
+ First Runner-up (Ladies’ Leisure Category)
Irene SIU Chin-wan
Department of Design, THEi
+ Second Runner-up (Sport Shoes Category)
Stephanie CHOW
Department of Design, THEi

JMA International Jewelry Design Competition 2019
(Local Student Group)
+ Champion
LI Yingyu
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

The 36th Hong Kong Watch & Clock Design Competition
(Student Group)
« Champion
WONG Sze-wa
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI
+  First Runner-up
CHEUNG Sau-ki
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI
«  Second Runner-up
Hattie CHAN
Department of Design, THEi

Premier Print Awards 2019

« Best of Category (Benny) in Innovative Print — Others
Category and Award of Recognition in Post-secondary
Student Category
WONG Man-yi, MA Yee-man, KWONG Tsz-ho,
CHIK Wai-ling, CHAN Wing-tung, LAl Kwai-chi,
CHIN Ka-yi, LEUNG Cheuk-yin, CHAN Chi-hei,
YIM Hon-lam, SHAM Tsun-ho, LO Tsz-wai,
KWOK Sin-wai, WAN Ho-yin, TSUI Kam-fai, NG Yat-hei,
WONG Ho-lung

Department of Communication Design and Department

of Digital Media, HKDI
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LMUMMIT
JONG KONG

Engineering
Urban Renewal Authority Innovative Design Competition
2020
Gold Award, Smartest Design Award and Best Model/
Digital Presentation Award
CHOW Wai-keung, TSANG Chung-chung,
CHAN Leung-kwan
Department of Construction, IVE (Tsing Yi)

International Seminar on Technology for Sustainability 2019
Best Innovation Award
Dicky TSUI
Department of Engineering, IVE (Haking Wong)
Best Presentation Award
Kevin TSANG
Department of Engineering, IVE (Haking Wong)
Popular Award
Isaac WONG
Department of Engineering, IVE (Haking Wong)

Information Technology

'Smart Life in Greater Bay Area' Innotech Project Proposal
Competition
Merit Award
KUK Yuk-man, CHAN Ka-chun, LAM Yu-him
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tuen Mun)
Merit Award
NGAI Ka-tung, LI Tszyan
Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Computing, SHAPE

AWS DeepRacer League Hong Kong
» Champion
CHONG Kwai-hung
Department of Information Technology,
IVE (Lee Wai Lee)
First Runner-up
CHEUNG Kam-hung
Department of Information Technology,
IVE (Lee Wai Lee)
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AWS Artificial Intelligence Hackathon
« Third Place
KWAN Chun-long, NG Sin-ching
Department of Information Technology,
IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

iOS App Dev and Challenge 2019
» First Prize
LI Yiu-long, CHUNG Wai-shing, CHIU Wai-kin
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Sha Tin)
Best Ul Interface App Award
Sandra LAU Chi-ching, Hidy WONG Hoi-ki, SIU Tik-ki
Department of Digital Media, HKDI

Pan-Pear| River Delta Region University IT Project
Competition 2019
+ Gold Award

LEE Wai-shun, CHAN Tsz-hei, KAN Sin-hong,

WONG Siu-ki

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Guangdong - Hong Kong - Macao Greater Bay Area
IT System Development Competition 2019
« Gold Award
FONG Ming-to, LAl Ka-chuen, TAM Tse-fung,
WU Yat-kwan

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Chai Wan)

«  Bronze Award and Most Creative Award
CHEUNG Kam-hung, NG Sin-ching
Department of Information Technology,
IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Outstanding Project (Hong Kong Regijon)

Trevor LAM Cheuk-fung, MAN Chin-pang, TANG Chun-wo,

HSU Wan-chi, LAW Sze-wai, Levin LUN Li-yun
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Sha Tin)
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Dr Ng Tat-lun Memorial Outstanding
Students Award Scheme

Applied Science
FUNG Sze-man
Higher Diploma in Rehabilitation Services, IVE

Childcare, Elderly and Community Services
Phyllis TSE Yuen-lam
Higher Diploma in Child Care and Education, IVE

Design
+ LI Yusum
Higher Diploma in Architectural Design, HKDI
CHAN Lok-yiu
Higher Diploma in Interior Design, HKDI

Engineering
CHEUNG Pei-zhi
Higher Diploma in Building Services Engineering, IVE
LEUNG Hiu-kwan
Higher Diploma in Electrical Engineering, IVE

Hospitality
NG Ho-ching
Higher Diploma in Culinary Arts, ICI

Information Technology
WONG Ka-hing
Higher Diploma in Game Software Development, IVE

Foundation Studies
NGAN Pak-kin
Diploma of Vocational Education (Electronic and
Computer Engineering), Youth College
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J a
‘ TC Alumni “

Networking Lunch
for VIC Alumni Associations and Alumni Advisors

6.7.2019

INVIGORATING BONDS

WITH ALUMNI

REBERR BERSE

The unwavering support of our
alumni community has contributed
significantly to providing learning
support for VTC students and
enabling the VTC’s sustainable
advancement.

Over the past year, our 20 Alumni
Associations and 1,700 alumni
advocates have devoted time,
expertise and resources to nurturing
our younger generation through
professional mentoring and the
provision of work placements.
Leaders of Alumni Associations
and Alumni Advisors teamed up
to offer valuable connections for
interdisciplinary collaborations,
supporting the VTC’s multi-faceted
development.
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FURTHERING THE CULTURE OF

COMMITMENT

ERAT BREE

Our motivated and proficient
personnel have played an important
part in the sustainable development
of the VTC. As at 31 March 2020,
we had a fulltime workforce of
5,700, made up of 3,560 teaching
and administrative staff, and 2,140
technical and supporting staff, who
work shoulder to shoulder to pursue
professional excellence.

The VTC has undertaken to
proactively expand the knowledge
and capabilities of its staff through
a variety of development activities
including study tours, familiarisation
visits, industry attachments,
conferences, exhibitions, training
workshops and seminars in the
professional areas of teaching,
management and operations, as well
as in emerging mega-trends such
as Artificial Intelligence and smart
technologies.

Through local and international
exposure, our staff have been able
to gain professional insights and
update themselves on industrial
developments, as well as best
practices in VPET adopted by our
counterparts. In this way, we can
enhance our teaching quality, forge
further collaborations and establish
co-creation activities.
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Outstanding Staff
Achievements

During the past year, 15 staff
members received Long Service
Awards for their 35 years of
dedicated service to the VTC. Another
62, 153 and 60 staff members were
celebrated for having completed

30, 25 and 20 years of service
respectively.

Staff Excellence Awards

The Staff Excellence Awards
recognise employees for their
exceptional contributions to the VTC
through dedication, competencies,
ingenuity and conscientious
performance. The recipients for 2019
were:

+ Ms Joanne LAU Yee-kwan
Senior Lecturer, Department of
Fashion and Image Design,
HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Mr HO Ho-tak

Fashion Archivist,

HKDI Knowledge Centres,
HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Ms CHAN Sau-ling

Fashion Archive Assistant,
HKDI Knowledge Centres,
HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Ms Benny HO Suiyee

Executive Assistant Il, Computing
and Mathematics Section,

Youth College (Kwai Chung)
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Teaching Excellence Award

The Teaching Excellence Award
recognises teachers’ commitment
to quality teaching practices. The
recipients for 2019 were:

Dr Arthur CHAN Ah-pun
Teaching Fellow |, Faculty of
Design and Environment,
THEI (Chai Wan)

Ms Celine LAM Hiu-jong
Lecturer, Student Development
Office, IVE (Chai Wan)

+ Ms Crystal LEE Wai-ching
Lecturer, Language Centre,
IVE (Tsing Yi)

Mr Cyrus WONG Chun-yin
Lecturer, Department of
Information Technology,
HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

«  Mr David LEE Siu-chung
Lecturer, Department of Design
Foundation Studies,

HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Ms Phoebe HUI Fong-wah
Lecturer, Department of Design
Foundation Studies,

HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

«  Mr Ben PANG Kwok-fung
Teaching Associate, Language
Centre, Youth College
(Yeo Chei Man)

Ms SHUM Kit-yee
Lecturer, Language Centre,
Youth College (Yeo Chei Man)

Ms Cathy LEUNG Wai-yin
Acting Lecturer, Language Centre,
Youth College (Yeo Chei Man)

Ms Karen NG Chun-yau
Teaching Associate, Language
Centre, Youth College

(Yeo Chei Man)

Mr Raphael CHUNG Cheuk-hei
Teaching Associate, Language
Centre, Youth College

(Yeo Chei Man)
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FULFILLING CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

BITERHEEE

At the VTC, we attach great
importance to corporate citizenship,
and strive to fulfil our social
responsibility through a wide range of
community services that contribute to
communal well-being.

During the year under review, the

VTC received the Social Welfare
Department’s Merit Award for Highest
Service Hours after completing over
136,000 hours of volunteer service,
contributed by over 7,000 students.

We were also commended as a ‘15
Years Plus Caring Organisation’ by
the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for our dedication to caring
for the community, our employees
and the environment.

Contributing to Social Good

At the VTC, we aim to keep our
practices environmentally-friendly with
sustainable measures. Last year, we
conducted a pilot scheme for green
building assessment and formulation
of a carbon footprint reduction plan
was underway.

Landscape Architecture students

and staff joined the Environmental
Protection Department in co-creating
a conceptual design for a solar farm
and recreational landscape in Tseung
Kwan O to ramp up Hong Kong’s
renewable energy production and
education.

VTC students and staff have also
made meaningful use of their
professional expertise to promote
inter-generational harmony.

An 18-month scheme titled
‘Promoting 3D Food Printing in the
Community’ commenced last year
to heighten concern for the elderly
among secondary school students
and industries. Through a series of
workshops and activities, students
and industries were encouraged to
design appealing and nutritious food
with 3D printing technology, with

a particular view to helping those
elderly people who had difficulty in
chewing or swallowing whole foods.
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS
=EMRB S

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year 2019-20 presenting the operating results and financial
position of the Council and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the
year. Total income of HK$5,373.2M (2018-19: HK$5,363.2M) and
total expenditure of HK$5,131.0M (2018-19: HK$5,045.5M) were
reported.

Operating Results

Out of the total income of HK$5,373.2M, HK$3,441.5M was
government subventions, HK$1,610.1M was tuition fees and training
charges, HK$321.6M was interest income, donation and other
income. As compared with 2018-19, the increase in income was
mainly attributed to the increase in Government subventions largely
for pay adjustments and increase in interest income and donation.

Total expenditure of HK$5,131.0M incurred in the year included
staff expenses of HK$3,677.0M and other operating expenses

of HK$1,454.0M. The increase in expenditure was mainly due

to increase in staff expenses resulted from pay adjustments and
improvement to VTC buildings and facilities in supporting teaching
and learning.

The Group as a whole achieved savings of HK$242.2M, reported as
surplus for the year 2019-20, of which HK$143.0M was transferred
to the Council’'s Reserves for implementation of new initiatives and
other developments.
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Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2019-20, a total of HK$243.2M was incurred on building
programmes and capital items. Expenditure for the year included
renovation and minor works for the campuses, residual payments
for the constructions works of International Culinary Institute (ICI) in
Pokfulam and Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong
Kong (THEi) campus in Chai Wan as well as other improvement
projects.

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2020 are set out in the following pages.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

BZ2020 F3 A 31 HLELFENGZEEZEKER

INCOME

Government Subventions

Tuition Fees and Training Charges
Interest Income

Donations

Other Income

Total Income
EXPENDITURE

Staff Expenses

Fulltime Staff Expenses
Part-time Staff Expenses
Temporary Staff Expenses
Other Staff Expenses

Other Operating Expenses

Consumables, Equipment and Library Books
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses

Hire of Services and Professional Fees
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities

Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses

Staff Development and Visits
Interest Expenses
Other Expenses

Total Expenditure

SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

TRANSFER TO:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds
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2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
(Note)

(PfFEE)

3,441,452 3,347,587
1,610,144 1,725,942
123,613 103,631
59,488 27,054
138,531 158,948
5,373,228 5,363,162
3,215,047 3,103,610
103,780 120,237
327,716 320,474
30,422 24,857
3,676,965 3,569,178
368,414 353,791
646,477 642,934
63,001 59,708
199,545 211,229
44,495 39,301
13,936 18,527
23,964 25,868
94,250 124,972
1,454,082 1,476,330
5,131,047 5,045,508
242,181 317,654
143,041 196,579
99,140 121,075
242,181 317,654

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the

comparative information is not restated.

izt : AEEA 20196 4 A1 BRBERER (BEBMBREER) F 1658 - WIRALEFTZEWE - REWLF = WHEHTTED -

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than ‘surplus for the year’ in either of the years presented. Therefore, the Group’s ‘total

comprehensive income’ was the same as the ‘surplus for the year’ in both years.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

2020 F 3 A 31 ANGEEEERAR

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Loans to Staff

Deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
Loans to Staff

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other

Receivables
Bank Deposits
Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue

by the Vocational Training Council

on 10 August 2020

7202044 8 A 10 H
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Mr Tony TAl Chark-tong
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
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2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
(Note)

(PEE)

4,336,645 4,211,206
2,064 952
7,474 7,234
4,346,183 4,219,392
979 465
262,395 172,352
1,175,875 4,085,800
4,316,851 1,422,044
5,756,100 5,680,661
1,205,866 1,289,380
433,219 402,346
48,473 44,652
422,456 308,694
2,110,014 2,045,072
3,646,086 3,635,589
7,992,269 7,854,981
5,591 -
5,766 11,163
387,687 433,035
1,785,092 1,844,831
2,184,136 2,289,029
5,808,133 5,565,952
372,675 354,553
5,435,458 5,211,399
5,808,133 5,565,952

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the

comparative information is not restated.
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THE COUNCIL COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEIRREES BXIRREEERENZES

As at 31 March 2020 AN OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES AND TRAINING BOARDS (as at 31 March 2020)
HZzE 202043 A 31 H ZEENIIREZESHE (= 202063 A 31 H)
Chairman FE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL B#JHKBFEEE
Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong BEREE Standing Committee % ZEZ 8 &
_ . Administration Committee 7T Z E&
Deputy Chairmen e Audit Committee BIXZE &
Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP BREBEE | JP Estgtes Committ'ee E%%ﬁ@%%@
Dr Daniel YIP Chung-yin EhBEEL Finance Committee M5 % 8 &
Members EB
Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS BRIES 25 , BBS Tl ) d
Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai BRI raining Boards
Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH STERRISE 4 | BBS, MH ARz R
Ms Qumce CHONG Wal_-yan’ P ﬂiTE'I: ﬁj: » P Accountancy Training Board Insurance Training Board
Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui 2R L BHENREAE R H N GE R &
Mr Ronald LAM Siu-por AR S A Apprenticeship Training Board Jewellery, Watch and Clock Training Board
Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH (up to 25.10.2019) PRI FE, MH (2 25.10.2019) BRIREEE REREERREEE
Mr Clarence LEUNG Wang-ching, JP RRIESLE, IP éﬁ;;%ﬁ;‘;jﬁilmg Board ﬂaiga;i&mg%;ﬁ S“@,’j’e”‘s"ry Training Board
. Sy = yak IMRZ B E B BSIUIMRERR
Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yln g%%gi Banking and Finance Training Board Manufacturing Technology Training Board
Dr Wingco LO Kam-wing, JP EESRELT, JP BARSBENRKZER BN BEEIRES
Ms LOW Khah-gek EMELZ L Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board Maritime Services Training Board
Mr Dominic PANG Yat-ting ¥—ERE R Tt T 4 bomra
. o o uilding, Civil Engineering and Built Environment Training Boart edia and Communications Training Boar
Ms Candy TAM Lai-chuen, MH RBEIL, MH R LATERERERIAEAS HERENEIAEES
Mr Harold WONG Tsu-hmg I%ﬁ%i Chinese Culinary Institute Training Board Print Media and Publishing Training Board
Mr Gary YEUNG Man-yui, MH X %%, MH FEHESRIREES RIEEEEREIREE S
Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative) HERBRMER (HEAR) Electrical\ apd Mechanical Services Training Board Real Estatg %ervices Training Board
Mr Esmond LEE Chung:sin, JP Asthz s Jp BETR¥IREZES EHEREEIRZES
Commmissioner for Labour (ory e representative) " IF;’E (&H{{%) Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board Retail Trade Training Board
T oPRRR S LS ETRENLIRZAES TEXIRZES
Mr Carlson CHAN Ka-shun, JP ==L, P Fashion and Textile Training Board Security Services Training Board
Director-General of Trade and Industry (or her representative) TEXBSEER (HHEAK) BERGEERESS RERBLIREE S
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Innovation and Technology Training Board
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STANDING COMMITTEE
EHEES

Chairman
Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong
Members

Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Dr Daniel YIP Chung-yin

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH (up to 25.10.2019)

Mr Clarence LEUNG Wang-ching, JP

Mr Kennedy LIU Tatyin

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP

Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Esmond LEE Chung-sin, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Ms Joyce YUEN Tszvyin
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ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
THRZEES

Chairman
Mr Kennedy LIU Tatyin
Members

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH (up to 25.10.2019)

Dr Wingco LO Kam-wing, JP

Ms Candy TAM Lai-chuen, MH

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Esmond LEE Chung-sin, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr Kent CHEUNG Wai-kin
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BXIRREEERENZES

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BEREES

Chairman
Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP
Members

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai
Mr Kennedy LIU Tatyin
Mr Dominic PANG Yat-ting
Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee

ESTATES COMMITTEE

EXEBELZET
Chairman

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH
Members

Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Mr Dominic PANG Yat-ting

Director of Architectural Services (or her representative)
Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Ir Augustus LEE Yuen-fai
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BXIRFEEERENEZES

FINANCE COMMITTEE
MBEES

Chairman
Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP
Members

Dr Daniel YIP Chung-yin

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH

Mr Clarence LEUNG Wang-ching, JP

Dr Wingco LO Kam-wing, JP

Mr Harold WONG Tsu-hing

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Esmond LEE Chung-sin, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Ms Yvonne LEUNG Suk-ping
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Accountancy Training Board

SHXIREES

Chairman
Mr Roy LO Wa-kei
Members

Mr Morison CHAN Chi-kong
Mr Joe CHAU Kwok-ming

Ms Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

Ms Faith Corazon DEL ROSARIO
Mr George HO Kwok-wah, MH
Dr Angus HO Shu-keung

Dr Shirley KAN FU Mee-yuk
Ms Lois LAM Lee-kwan

Dr Paul MAN Ho-yin

Mr TONG Tsz-kwan

Dr Danny WAN Tak-fai

Ms Alice WONG Nga-lai

Mr Chris WONG Wai-lun

Ms Fanny WONG

Ms Karmen YEUNG Ka-yin
Mr Derrick YIP Siu-ming

Mr YU Kwong-man

Director of Accounting Services (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Apprenticeship Training Board
ERIREES

Chairman
Mr Edmond LAI Wing-kok
Members

Dr CHEUNG Wai-leung

Mr Daniel FUNG Man-kit

Mr HO Chun-yan

Ir Dr KWAN Chung-ming

Mr David LEUNG Yiu-fai

Mr Micky LEUNG

Mr Thomas LEUNG

Mr LUN Kee-wah

Mr MA Ka-chun

Mr NG Kwong-king

Ms Polly PANG Ka-yi

Ms Wenda WONG Wing-chi

Secretary for Education (or his / her representative)

Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services
(or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Automobile Training Board

AEXIREES

Chairman
Mr Wilson LAM Kit
Members

Mr Mark CHAN Siu-fai
Mr Kim CHANG
Mr CHOI Kong-wei (up to 21 June 2019)
Mr LAM Hing-cheong
Mr LAM Wai-kong
Mr Johnson LAU Chi-wah
Mr Steven LEE
Mr MOU Yun-nin
Ms Polly PANG Ka-yi
Mr Raymond WONG
Mr WONG Yiu-kwong
Mr Caris YUAN Kin-yu
Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services
(or his / her representative)
Director of Environmental Protection (or his / her representative)
Commissioner for Transport (or his / her representative)
Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Banking and Finance Training Board
RITREMEIREZEES

Chairman
Mr CHAN Sai-ming
Members

Ms Lisa CHENG Pik-ling

Mr Steve CHIU Siu-po

Mr Vincent CHOW

Prof FONG Wai-ming

Mr Brian FUNG Wei-lung

Mr Johnny LAU Ho-yin

Mr LEE Huat-oon (up to 31 December 2019)

Ms Jennifer SHUM Wan-ling

Ms Doris TONG Shuet-kiu

Dr Chris TSE Yue-hong

Dr Gordon TSUI Luen-on, JP

Ms Carolyn YIM Mei-ling

Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(or his / her representative)

Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(or his / her representative)

Chairman of the Securities and Futures Commission
(or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board

XERREEXIREES

Chairlady
Ms Juliana YANG Hui-chun
Members

Ms Jessica CHAN Yuen-ying
Ms CHAN Yuk-ching

Mr CHAU Wai-shing

Ms CHEUNG Soo-kan

Mr Orpheus CHOY

Ms Candy FUNG Lai-chu

Ms GUAN Ying-yin

Mr Joseph HO Shiu-chung
Mr Charlie HUI Hon-fai

Ms Cecilia KUK Ling-chun

Mr Jeff LAM Shue-yan

Dr April LAU Yuk-tong

Ms Fanny LEE Chun-fong

Ms LEUNG Pui-man

Ms Louisa LI

Ms LO Nga-lai

Ms Shelly LUK Wai-fong

Mr Alan PANG

Mr Thomas WONG Kwok-wah
Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Chief Executive of Consumer Council (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Building, Civil Engineering and Built Environment Training Board

BE CIAIBRRERRBRERIREES

Chairman
Mr Eddie LAM Kin-wing
Members

Mr Stanley CHEN Chi-keung

Ir Wilson CHEUNG Yiu-sun

Ir CHU Yin-lin

Mr FUNG Chi-hing

Ms Linda HO Wai-ping

Ir Danny HUNG Cheung-shew

Mr MARK Chin-yiu

Mr SHUM Hau-tak

Ms SO Ching

Cr TANG Chi-wang

Mr Alfred TANG Yu-chi

Ir Prof Leslie George THAM

Mr Edwin TUNG Wang-kei

Ir Dr Simon WONG Ho-fai

Sr Paul WONG Kwok-leung

Mr YUEN Hung-wai

Ir YUNG Chun-tang

Secretary for Development (or his / her representative)

Director of Buildings (or his / her representative)

Director of Housing (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Chinese Culinary Institute Training Board
FEHFEERIREZEER

Chairlady
Ms Monica LEE-MULLER
Members

Mr AU Kwok-keung

Ms CHAN Ching-leung
Mr CHAN Chun-kit

Ms Lily CHAN Kar-wah
Ms CHOI Mei-mei

Mr LAM Fung-yuen

Mr Wilson LEE Po-lam
Mr LEUNG Chun-wah

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, SBS, BBS, JP, KSJ
Ms LUO Yi

Mr Jimmy TSANG

Mr TSE Hoi-fat

Ms Shirley TSE

Mr WONG Wing-keung
Mr Wilson WU Wai-tsuen
Mr YAU Kam-wing

Secretary for Labour and Welfare (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board

KEIRXIREZEES

Chairman
Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH
Members

Ir Frankie CHAN Wai-ping

Mr Thomas CHAN Wing-chi (up to 30 April 2019)

Mr Billy CHAN Wing-hung

Ir CHENG Wai-lung

Ir CHUNG Chi-ming

Ir Dr Sam HUI Chun-man (up to 31 August 2019)

Mr KO Tung-ping

Ir Dr KWAN Chung-ming

Mr LAl Kam-to

Ir David LAU Lee-nin

Mr LAU Wing-sing

Mr LEE Kim-hung

Ir Eddie LEUNG Wing-pui

Mr Ricky LIU Siu-wa (up to 30 September 2019)

Mr MOW Tai-hing

Ir Dr Peter TSE Wai-tat

Ir WAI Yip-kin

Ir WU Chi-fai

Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services
(or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council

(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board

EFRERAXIREES

Chairman

Mr Christopher TSE Hung-keung
Vice-Chairman

Ir Dr LAM Hiu-fung, MH
Members

Dr Stephen CHAN Wing-chi

Mr CHEUNG Chi-kin

Mr Victor CHOI Kim-shing

Mr Sam HUI Kin-sang

Mr Myron KWAN Man-lung

Dr LAM Sai-keung

Mr Henry LAU

Ms Evelyn LEE Yuk-kuen

Dr Lawrence POON Chi-kin

Mr S| Dik-kwong

Mr TAM Chi-chung

Dr WONG Chun

Ir WONG Kwun-wa (up to 9 June 2019)

Ir Dr YIU Hing-leung

Prof Patrick YUE

Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services
(or his / her representative)

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Director-General of Communications (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Fashion and Textile Training Board
FERGEBEXIREES

Chairman
Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung
Members

Dr AU Sau-chuen

Mr Nick CHAN Ying-kit

Mr Sam CHEN Tong-sang

Ms CHEUNG Kwai-ying

Ms Anne CHEUNG Suen-fei

Mr Danny CHEUNG Sun-kit

Ms Joanne CHOW Hoiyu

Mr Dennis FONG Chi-wang

Ms Mandy FUNG Yuen-han

Dr KAN Chi-wai

Mr Stanford KUO Dah-chih

Mr Matthew LAl Kin-hon

Mr Michael LEUNG

Ms Alida LIN Nan-sze

Ms Jacqueline NG Wai-kwan

Mr Ray SHIU King-wah

Mr Ricky WONG Ting-kau

Mr Kenny YANG Si-kit (up to 19 August 2019)

Mr Clement YOUNG Sheung-ching

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board

BIE - HRREREXIREES

Chairman
Mr David UDELL
Members

Ms Sarah CHAN Yui-yan

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching

Mr Marco CHEUNG Chi-fai

Mr Nelson CHOW Kwok-ming

Dr Patricia LEAHY, BBS

Mr Damien LEE Tang-hoi (up to 2 October 2019)
Mr Wilson LEE Po-lam

Dr Paul LEUNG Kin-hang

Mr Wallace LI Chin-hung

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, SBS, BBS, JP, KSJ

Mr Wyn LI (up to 10 December 2019)

Ms Florence NG (up to 11 December 2019)

Mr Marco PELLIZZER (up to 31 December 2019)

Mr Lenny WONG

Mr Wilson WU Wai-tsuen

Ms Brenda YAU

Mr YAU Tik-wai

Mr YIU Pak-leung, MH

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Tourism (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)

E:

Mr David UDELL
£8

PR S5BT 22 &

BES T

RSB AE

B D e

ZRyE T, BBS
TEEEA (2 2019F 10 A2 H81H)
TERLE

ZEEE L

TRIELE

ZE SE 4 | SBS, BBS, JP, KSJ
kTS AE (£ 2019 F 12 A 10 B k)
mEMLtE (£E2019F 12 A11 Bib)
Mr Marco PELLIZZER

(£ 2019412 A 31 HIE)

=aM LA

mEEE

B EL

38 B 5T A

kB RSE A, MH

BIEER (HEREK)

RBEHEE (HHEREK)
BEIERBAITHS (HEREK)

TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board

HAORSBBXEIREZES

Chairman

Mr Brian SUN
Vice-Chairman

Mr William WONG Lung-sheung
Members

Mr Raymond CHAN Lap-tak

Dr Eddie CHENG Wai-lun

Mr CHEUNG Hung-kwan

Ms Helena CHIU Yuen-ling

Ms Florence FUNG Ka-pik

Mr Michael LAU Ting-chi

Mr Eddie LEE

Mr Vincent MA Wai-hung

Mr Eric NG

Ms SHUM Tszyiu

Ms Susan SIU Kit-ling

Mr Kriston SUN Yung-heng

Mr Thomas WONG Cheung-chi

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Innovation and Technology Training Board

AFERBRIREES

Chairman
Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong
Members

Mr Rocky CHENG Chung-ngam

Dr Lawrence CHEUNG Chi-chong

Mr Argon HO Wai-kwok

Dr Alex KAl Sze-fai

Dr KWONG Kwok-wah

Mr Robert LAI

Mr Herman LAM Heung-yeung

Ir Dr Ritz LAU Ming-ho

Mr LEE King-chung

Mr Patrick S LEE

Mr LEUNG Yip-hung

Mr LIM Long-hei

Mr Felix LIO Weng-tong

Prof Helen MENG Mei-ling

Ms Gracie NG

Mr Rex SHAM Pui-sum

Mr Stephen TANG Siu-kun

Dr WONG Chung-kiu, MH

Dr YAU Bun

Mr Johnny YEUNG Chi-hung, MH

Government Chief Information Officer (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Innovation and Technology
(or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Insurance Training Board

RBEIREES

Chairman
Mr Allan YU Kin-nam
Members

Mr CHAN Yu-man

Mr Herman CHEUNG Chi-fai

Ms Winky CHEUNG Ying-kwan

Mr Tony CHOY Kwong-hung

Mr Jackie CHUN Yuk-chi

Mr Alpha HO Ki-fung

Mr Eric HUI Kam-kwai

Mr Sidney KU Shun-kit

Ms Susanna LAM Shuk-wah

Dr Tony LEE

Prof LI Jing-yuan

Mr Henry TSANG Kai-hung

Mr Dennis WONG Kay-chau

Mr Alex YIP Kam-keung

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Chief Executive Officer of the Insurance Authority
(or his / her representative)

Managing Director of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Jewellery, Watch and Clock Training Board
REREREIREZEES

Chairman
Dr Dennis NG Wang-pun, BBS, MH
Members

Mr CHAN Wing-yun

Mr CHING Wing-sing

Mr KOO Tong-fat

Mr Enders LAM Wai-hung
Dr Adam LAU

Dr Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP
Mr LAW Chi-kwong

Mr Samuel LEE Wing-on
Mr William LI Wai-choi
Mr LO Chung-fai

Mr Kevin NG King-hon

Dr Norman SIU

Mr WONG Kam-lung

Mr Victor YIU Wai-yin

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
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Management and Supervisory Training Board

EEREBEEIREES

Chairlady
Ms Christina CHAN Shuk-han
Members

Dr Eleanor CHEUNG Tsz-king

Mr Philip CHIU Chi-kie

Mr Jonathan FONG Tim-fai

Mr Terrence HUI Man-chun

Mr Barry IP Wah-shun

Dr Joyce IUN Sio-kun

Mr Peter LAM Kwok-leung, JP

Dr LAM Tak-ming

Mr LEE Chi-keung

Ms Eva LEUNG Yuk-ling

Mr Benedict SIN Nga-yan

Dr Danny WAN Tak-fai

Ms Virginia WILSON

Dr Ellis WONG Wai-hung

Representative of the Civil Service Training and Development
Institute, Civil Service Bureau

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Manufacturing Technology Training Board

HENREIREZEES

Chairman
Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tat-choi

Members

Mr Alfred AU Kit-ho

Mr CHEUNG Chi-fai

Mr Felix CHOI Chun-kit

Mr John CHOW Hon-kong
Dr CHUNG Sai-wing

Mr Vincent KONG Hon-po
Mr Frankie LAl Chun-yu
Mr Edmond LAI Shiao-bun
Mr LEE Yuen-fat

Mr Andy NG Ka-ho

Mr NG Ping-hong

Mr Warren SUN Yung-liang
Mr Calvin TAN Che-keung
Dr TAO Hong

Dr TSUI Chi-pong

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
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Maritime Services Training Board

BERBEXIREES

Chairlady
Ms Sabrina CHAO Sih-ming
Members

Ir CHAN Chi-ming

Mr Demen CHEUNG Kwok-wai

Mr Manson CHEUNG Shun-man

Ir Simon CHIU Wing-wah

Capt CHOI Leung-pei

Mr David COOGANS

Ms Bobo FUNG Po-mei

Capt Lothair LAM Ming-fung

Mr Jackson LAU Wai-cheong

Capt Marso LAW Kwun-pan

Mr Timothy LEE Kwok-lam

Mr ON Man-sang

Mr SUN Po-wan

Ms TONG Ka-lee

Capt WAN Chi-kwong

Capt Shenky WONG Shun-kwan

Capt YIP Kwok-lee (up to 30 September 2019)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Director of Marine (or his / her representative)

Commissioner of Police (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Media and Communications Training Board
HERERREANXIREES

Chairlady
Ms WONG Shuk-ming
Members

Ms CHEUNG Sau-wan

Ms CHEUNG Wai-yee

Ms Celine HO

Mr Peter KUO Yiu-kwan
Ms Regina KWAN Wai-ling
Ir Wicky LAW Man-hoi

Mr Ivan LEE King-chung
Mr Anthony LEE Lam-fat
Prof Louis LEUNG Wing-chi
Mr Alan LO

Mr Joel POON Siu-kuen
Ms SHAM Yee-lan

Mr Edgar SO Kai-chi

Mr Ralph SZETO Kwong-chiu
Ms Tammy TAM Wai-yi

Ms Ruby WAN Mei-yuk
Prof Mike WONG Ka-fai

Mr Spencer WONG

Mr Kenny YIU Kam-hung

Director of Broadcasting (or his / her representative)
Director of Information Services (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council

(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
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Print Media and Publishing Training Board
BREEBREREIREES

Chairman
Mr Jackson LEUNG Siu-yin
Vice-Chairman

Mr Edmund CHAN Ka-yeung

Members

Mr CHAN Chung-yung

Mr Dicky CHOY Wing-chiu

Ms Ivy CHU So-ching

Mr Corey HO Kin-wa

Mr William HO Leong-tung

Dr Ken HO Wai-kuen

Mr Maurice KWAN

Mr John NG King-fai

Mr Thomas NG Wang-kuen

Ms Brenda PANG On-kei

Mr Ponch POON Chi-wai

Mr Andery SZETO Tak-wai

Mr Peter TSE Po-tak

Ms YAU Lai-ching

Mr Patrick YEUNG Kwok-keung

Ms YIP Pui-chu

Director of Government Logistics (or his / her representative)

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Real Estate Services Training Board

EHERBXIREES

Chairman
Sr Augustine WONG Ho-ming, JP
Members

Mr Franklin AU Yik-ming

Dr CHENG Kam-wah

Sr Dr Lennon CHOY Hung-tat
Sr Prof Daniel HO Chi-wing
Mr IP Chi-ming

Sr Andrew LEE Chun-lai

Sr LOU Kuong-fai

Mr Tony NG Yuk-tung

Mr POON Tat-hang

Sr SUNG Shu-hung

Mr Victor TIN Sio-un

Sr Tony WAN Wai-ming

Mr YEUNG Kwun-wah

Dr YU Chin-pang

Director of Buildings (or his / her representative)
Director of Housing (or his / her representative)
Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Chief Executive Officer of the Estate Agents Authority

(or his / her representative)

Chief Executive Officer of the Property Management Services
Authority (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council

(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
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Retail Trade Training Board
ZEXIRZEES

Chairlady

Ms Janis TAM Kam-yee
Vice-Chairlady

Ms Winnie CHOW Wai-yee
Members

Mr Eugene CHAN

Ms CHOI Pui-shan

Dr Dominic CHU Chun-ho

Mr CHUNG Kwok-wing

Mr Victor LAM Chi-kit

Ms LO Tsit-wa

Mr Raymond MOK Wai-ming

Mr WAI Yau-on

Mrs Mabel WONG FAN Chih-wing

Ms Alice WONG Nga-lai

Ms Katherine YU

Chief Executive of the Consumer Council (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Security Services Training Board
RZBRBEIREES

Chairman
Mr Stephen YIP Chun-nam, BBS, MH, JP
Members

Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, BBS, JP
Ms Carman CHIK Lai-fan

Mr IP Kin-man

Mr KUNG Ngan-hung

Dr KWONG Tsz-man

Mr LAM Cheuk-wah

Mr LAU Tat-keung

Mr Bruce LEE Yuyim

Mr Simon LEUNG Mok-kwan

Mr LI Puilam

Mr Ben TING Hung-kay

Mr Allan WONG Wing-lok

Mr Terence YAP Wing-khai

Director of Housing (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Commissioner of Police (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council

(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Transport and Logistics Training Board
BEMRYREIREES

Chairman
Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP
Members

Mr CHAN Dik-sau

Mr Simon CHAN Pui-yuk

Ms Lily CHENG Yuen-chi

Dr Lewis CHEUNG Ting-on

Mr Eddie CHO Chi-cheong

Ms Jessie CHUNG Wai-yin

Mr Jacky HO Lung-wei

Ms Donna KONG Sau-han

Ms Jodi KWOK Chui-man (up to 9 August 2019)

Dr LAM Kim-fung

Mr Frosti LAU Yi-sau

Mr Joseph LAU Yuivyip

Ms Hilary LAW Hiu-kwan

Mr Jason LEE Kwok-on

Mr Alan LEUNG Wai-keung (up to 31 December 2019)

Dr Isaac NG Ka-chui

Ir Lu WONG Ho-leung

Mr Clarence WONG Siu-wah

Commissioner for Transport (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Vocational Training Board for People with Disabilities

BRATREIREZES

Chairman
Dr James Joseph LAM, BBS, JP
Members

Mr CHAN Siu-kan

Mr CHEUNG Kin-fai, MH

Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP

Mr Eddie HAI Yip-kuen

Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP

Ms Connie LAM Tsui-wa

Mr Kevin SHEA King-fung

Ms Agatha TANG Ka-yee

Mr Chester TSANG Wing-cheong

Mr Steven TSOI Wing-ming

Ms Elaine WU Siu-ling (up to 31 August 2019)

Secretary for Education (or his / her representative)

Secretary for Labour and Welfare (or his / her representative)

Director of Social Welfare (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF

THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

BEIRDEERE

As at 31 March 2020
HZE 202043 H31H

Council

EEg

Council Committees
BEEEBETXZEES

Executive Director
HITHRE

Deputy Executive Director (A)

BIFTEHE (A)

Deputy Executive Director (B)

BFTEHSE (B)

Deputy Executive Director (C)

BIFTHE (C)

Deputy Executive Director (D)

BFTEHE (D)

Principal, School President, Head, Senior Principals, Principals,
for Higher and Technological Estates, Assistant IVEs & HKDI Youth College
Professional and Higher Health Executive ez rEp
Education Education and Safety Director ggéé F ggﬁ
FEEE Institute of Division (AcaQemic B
zap Hong Kong Egemy Services), FmE
K FsmENE  EExap  feadartes HHeR
Pk £ (Academic 2
ks Services)
2R
(H5%) Bk
YRHTHS
(%)

Legend:

CCl: Chinese Culinary Institute /2 EfEh a7

HKDI: Hong Kong Design Institute 75123851205

HTI: Hotel and Tourism Institute ;& /5 & ik 220

ICI: International Culinary Institute B[R BFELEpE

IVE: Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education &5 H ¥ 5 &6

Principal, Principal, Director,
Youth College School of International
International Business and Development

rap Information Office
(EpgR) W™ gpags

Rk TAE&RER BR
733

Head, Senior
Information Assistant
Technology Executive

Services Director
Division (Academic

B Development
HE’%%%WEE & Enterprise),
Headquarters

(Academic

Services)

(#5) 2R
YRHTRS
(BMREF)

Director, Senior Assistant
Maritime Executive

Services Director, Office

Training of the Director of

Institute Apprenticeship
BERER 2REEHE
e EREE
#1832

Head,
Central
Services
Division
PREHR

5

Notes:

1) Pro-Act Training and Development Centres and Vocational Development Programme Office are under the purview of the Youth College.

Senior
Assistant
Executive

Director,
Headquarters
(Industry
Partnership)

BhER
(f1%41F)
BREE
HiTHE

Principal, Director, Director, Director,
HTI / CCl / ICI Vocational Institutional Quality
3 ; Training for Advancement Assurance and
/Egéﬁ%ﬁ People with Office Accreditation
h a5/ Disabilities ERARR Office and
Gl e Office EE Centre for
BE B AL Learning &
e Teaching
R BRRER
TEEHRN
HERLRR

General Senior
Manager, Assistant
Qualifications Executive
Framework Director,
Secretariat Institute of
i Professional
WER Education and
g Knowledge
REESR
B8%

Head,
Finance and
Supplies
Division
B RITE
{RRER

IE

Head, Head,
Human Internal Audit
Resources Unit
Division NBERA
ANERR £
£

2) Integrated Vocational Development Centres are under the purview of the Headquarters (Industry Partnership).
3) Shine Skills Centres are under the purview of Vocational Training for People with Disabilities Office.

e

1) FHEIERTOSBRERAIMNEEHTFEREE -
2) EMtERBHRPLOALHER (1TRAE) EE -
3) REMBERRET L HERALBRIIREES -

Director,
External
Relations
Office

SR
233
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For enquiries &) External Relations Office
Vocational Training Council

BioIARRINE B

Address it VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BERETRB 2T R RBARIE

Tel &z (852) 2836 1000
Fax & & (852) 2838 0667
Website 483k http://www.vtc.edu.hk
. - - ®
caringorganisation

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS
= E Bl R B

Consolidated Financial Statements

Following the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in Hong
Kong, the Vocational Training Council (the Council) has prepared
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 2019-20 presenting
the operating results and financial position of the Council and its
subsidiaries (the Group) of the year. A total income of HK$5,373.2M
(2018-19: HK$5,363.2M) and total expenditure of HK$5,131.0M
(2018-19: HK$5,045.5M) were reported.

Operating Results

As compared with 2018-19, the increase in the Group’s income was
mainly attributed to the increase in Government subventions largely
for pay adjustments and increase in interest income and donation.

The increase in expenditure was mainly due to increase in staff
expenses resulted from pay adjustments and improvement to VTC
buildings and facilities in supporting teaching and learning.

The operating results of the major activities in 2019-20 are set out
in the paragraphs below.

Consolidated Income (2019-2020)
2019-20 FEHFAKA
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Consolidated Expenditure (2019-2020)
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Activities Financed by Government Recurrent Subventions

Total income for the year 2019-20 amounted to HK$3,814.8M,

of which HK$2,943.8M was recurrent subventions from the
Government, HK$734.3M from tuition fees and training charges,
and HK$136.7M from bank interest and other income. Total
expenditure for 2019-20 amounted to HK$3,671.8M. The savings
of HK$143.0M was transferred to the Council‘s Reserves for
implementation of new initiatives and other developments.

Activities Financed by Other Specific/Government Grants

In addition to the Government‘s subventions, the Council
successfully obtained grants under a number of specific/
Government Funds. These mainly included the VTC Earn and Learn
Pilot Scheme, Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional
Part-time Programmes, Manpower Development Scheme, Pilot
Incentive Scheme to Employers, Construction Industry Council
Incentive Programme to enhance the Apprenticeship Scheme for
E&M Industry and Project JUMP. Total income for the year amounted
to HK$246.6M and expenditure amounted to HK$260.2M.

Self-financing Activities

In 2019-20, the Group ran its self-financing activities mainly through
the operation of the VTC School of Business and Information
Systems (SBI), VTC School for Higher and Professional Education
(SHAPE), Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge (PEAK),
VTC Social Enterprises Limited, Technological and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong (THEI) and Integrated Vocational Development
Centre (IVDC). Total income generated from the self-financing
activities for the year was HK$1,034.1M and total expenditure
incurred was HK$925.5M.

Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2019-20, a total of HK$243.2M was incurred on building
programmes and capital items. Expenditure for the year included
renovation and minor works for the campuses, residual payments
for the constructions works of International Culinary Institute

(ICl) in Pokfulam and THEi campus in Chai Wan as well as other
improvement projects.

Retirement Schemes

Other than the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (MPFS) set up
under the Hong Kong MPFS Ordinance, the Council’s retirement
schemes also included the VTC Provident Fund Scheme (1999). The
scheme was registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and granted exemption pursuant to the MPFS Ordinance.

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong
Chairman
10 August 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO

THE COUNCIL MEMBERS OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

HEXIKREREFEZENBIKBMABRS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the
Vocational Training Council (the Council) and its subsidiaries (the
Group) set out on pages 7 to 82, which comprise the consolidated
and Council balance sheets as at 31 March 2020, the consolidated
and Council statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated
and Council statements of changes in fund balances and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and of
the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2020 and of
the Group’s consolidated financial performance and the Council’s
financial performance and the Group’s consolidated cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (HKSAs) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of the Council Members for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Council members are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal
control as the Council members determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
members are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Council members either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 18 of the Vocational
Training Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council members.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council members’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Council members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

10 August 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BE2020F 3831 HEFENKFELAWRRER

Note 2020 2019
BsE HK$’000 HK$’000
(Note)
(Ff&E)
INCOME A
Government Subventions BEEE 4 3,441,452 3,347,587
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BENEEEA 5 1,610,144 1,725,942
Interest Income FEUWA 123,613 103,631
Donations =EN 6 59,488 27,054
Other Income HAA 7 138,531 158,948
Total Income PNt 5,373,228 5,363,162
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses BETHX 8
Full-time Staff Expenses ZHEIRX 3,215,047 3,103,610
Part-time Staff Expenses FEEIEX 103,780 120,237
Temporary Staff Expenses EIREETHY 327,716 320,474
Other Staff Expenses HMWETHY 30,422 24,857
3,676,965 3,569,178
Other Operating Expenses Hi & @M
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books HAEMYR  REREE 368,414 353,791
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses REFENEBRERX 646,477 642,934
Hire of Services and Professional Fees EERBEEAR 63,001 59,708
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities B BEEEREE 199,545 211,229
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses dmEEss —REESEY 44,495 39,301
Staff Development and Visits ETEIRAR 13,936 18,527
Interest Expenses FERX 23,964 25,868
Other Expenses Hip s 94,250 124,972
1,454,082 1,476,330
Total Expenditure Y HAA%E 5,131,047 5,045,508
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEERSBRIERZAE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 9 242,181 317,654
TRANSFER TO: W
Reserves GBS 11 143,041 196,579
Specific and Other Funds BERARRAMES 12 99,140 121,075
242,181 317,654

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c).

M=t : é%%é 20194 B 1 AR EXEACE B BREERDFE 165 - WERAREIT 2BWE - RBUTZE - LHERRTED - F2HM
st 2(c) °

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRT [AFERER N AEERERFALRBEEMBE2ENRE BRI ERZEFENAFERSK | BER[2EHWELZE] -

The notes on page 14 to page 82 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FJIHME 14 BEEE 82 A2 WA R/RRIMBHREK 2 —=B5 °



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BE2020F 3831 HLEFENESEKER

Note 2020 2019
MEE HK$’000 HK$’000
(Note)
(Bi=E)
INCOME A
Government Subventions BEwESE 4 3,424,355 3,332,163
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BENREER 5 792,595 862,329
Interest Income FEUWA 103,686 89,460
Donations 8% 6 75,439 47,368
Other Income HABA 7 297,409 323,516
Total Income PNt 4,693,484 4,654,836
EXPENDITURE X it
Staff Expenses BETIMX 8
Fulltime Staff Expenses 2RHETRAY 2,824,054 2,711,537
Parttime Staff Expenses EHEIWX 37,467 41,293
Temporary Staff Expenses BRFETRHY 290,510 284,529
Other Staff Expenses HETHEX 27,504 22,800
3,179,535 3,060,159
Other Operating Expenses Hir& @M
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books HEMYS  RERES 344,732 329,649
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses RefmhEBERERY 615,398 610,021
Hire of Services and Professional Fees BHERBKEA 49,926 49,734
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities By BRI KEE 184,628 195,652
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses REEER —REEFMX 44,413 39,233
Staff Development and Visits [ERn=E ] PN 11,700 16,049
Interest Expenses FMERX 23,964 25,868
Other Expenses Hihp 75,424 100,373
1,350,185 1,366,579
Total Expenditure Y HERE 4,529,720 4,426,738
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEERHBRIENRAE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 9 163,764 228,098
TRANSFER TO: WERE
Reserves FHiES 11 143,041 196,579
Specific and Other Funds BERRRHEMES 12 20,723 31,519
163,764 228,098

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c).

MiEE - @%a 2019F 4R 1 BRBEREMKEBUMBMELERDE 1657 » WERAKBIT ZEBME - RBUTE  LBEERFFEY - F2HM
at 2(c) °

The Council had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented.

Therefore, the Council” s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRTY TAFERSK]IIN  BARERFALREHMEARE AURIRZEFEN [AFERR | BERN [2EREEEE] -

The notes on page 14 to page 82 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment

Loans to Staff
Deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other
Receivables

Bank Deposits

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council
on 10 August 2020
R2020F8 A10 H
MBXIREESEHRRRERR

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEIRBER
BERRE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
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comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c).

Mzt AHBE2019F4 A1 HBREREAEBYBRELERDE 165 » WERMEBR 2BWE - RIBULFE - LHERRTFES - F2HM

E2(c) e

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

2020 F3 31 HNREEERERX

Note
BiEE

13
15

15
16

17

18(a)

18(d)
19
20

18(a)
18(d)

20

11
12

The notes on page 14 to page 82 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FJIHME 14 BEEE 82 A2 WA R/RRIMBHREK 2 —=B5 °

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note)

GES)

4,336,645 4,211,206
2,064 952
7,474 7,234
4,346,183 4,219,392
979 465
262,395 172,352
1,175,875 4,085,800
4,316,851 1,422,044
5,756,100 5,680,661
1,205,866 1,289,380
433,219 402,346
48,473 44,652
422,456 308,694
2,110,014 2,045,072
3,646,086 3,635,589
7,992,269 7,854,981
5,591 -
5,766 11,163
387,687 433,035
1,785,092 1,844,831
2,184,136 2,289,029
5,808,133 5,565,952
372,675 354,553
5,435,458 5,211,399
5,808,133 5,565,952




BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
200 3 A 31 HNEEEER

Note 2020 2019
i HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note)
(BizE)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, Plant and Equipment M - HERNRE 13 4,316,597 4,195,884
Investments in Subsidiaries HHBARMNKRE 14 - -
Loans to Staff ETIER 15 2,064 952
Deposits e 7,261 7,062
4,325,922 4,203,898
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Loans to Staff BETIER 15 979 465
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other FEURBRIE « FESFIER
Receivables HitpE S BR 18 16 212,199 157,328
Bank Deposits RITFE 1,175,875 4,085,800
Cash and Cash Equivalents HeRBEEEEY 17 4,298,113 1,406,638
5,687,166 5,650,231
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables FEAERTE » FEET X H R
Hinfe IR 18(a) 1,904,294 1,944,281
Provision for Employee Benefits EERRIRYE 18(d) 414,416 383,957
Loans Payable within One Year —FREEENER 19 48,473 44,652
Deferred Income EFEU & 20 399,103 290,430
2,766,286 2,663,320
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 2,920,880 2,986,911
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABERRBEE 7,246,802 7,190,809
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables FE{SBRIE « FERTRHIR
Ht e 8RB 18(a) 5,591 -
Provision for Employee Benefits EERRRE 18(d) 2,035 6,170
Loans Payable after One Year —FHREEBENER 19 387,687 433,035
Deferred Income EFEU 2 20 1,769,788 1,833,667
2,165,101 2,272,872
NET ASSETS EERE 5,081,701 4,917,937
Represented by: FPRREBELE
Reserves HES 11 372,675 354,553
Specific and Other Funds BERRRHEMES 12 4,709,026 4,563,384
TOTAL FUNDS BB 5,081,701 4,917,937

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council
on 10 August 2020

R2020%F8 A10 H
HBXIRRESSHRREEER

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Chairman

Vocational Training Council

B ERR EE

HEREE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c).

MiEE - @%a 2019F 4B 1 HRBEXEKE BB RMELZRDE 1657 » WERARKBIT ZEBIE - RBUEGE  LBERFTFEY - F2HM
At 2(c) °

The notes on page 14 to page 82 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BHE2020F 3831 HELFENRFEESEHRK

Balance as at 1 April 2018
Inter-fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive
Income for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2019
Balance as at 1 April 2019

Inter-fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive
Income for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2020

2018 4 B 1 B4t
REE S EE

REERHRK
EHWNEAE

2019F 3 B 31 B4 &

2019F 4 A1 B&S
AL SER

AEERBRK
2HKEAE

2020 £ 3 A 31 H#Esk

Specific and

Other Funds

Reserves (Note 12)

(Note 11) BEAZK
REe HttEE Total
(Prax11) (FifaE12) mEE
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
369,881 4,878,417 5,248,298
(211,907) 211,907 -
196,579 121,075 317,654
354,553 5,211,399 5,565,952
354,553 5,211,399 5,565,952
(124,919) 124,919 -
143,041 99,140 242,181
372,675 5,435,458 5,808,133

The notes on page 14 to page 82 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FJIHME 14 BEEE 82 A2 WA R/RRIMBHREK 2 —=B5 °
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BE2020F3A31HLEFENESEHRR

Specific and
Other Funds
Reserves (Note 12)
(Note 11) BERER
wEe HtpES Total
(MizE11) (MEE12) Rk
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018 F 4 A1 B#E# 369,881 4,319,958 4,689,839
Inter-fund Transfers NEPE S (211,907) 211,907 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive KEEBHBNK
Income for the Year FEWEER 196,579 31,519 228,098
Balance as at 31 March 2019 20194 3 A 31 B&s 4 354,553 4,563,384 4,917,937
Balance as at 1 April 2019 2019F 4 B 1 H&& 354,553 4,563,384 4,917,937
Inter-fund Transfers APESEE (124,919) 124,919 —
Surplus and Total Comprehensive KEEEBERBR
Income for the Year 2HNEAE 143,041 20,723 163,764
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2020 £ 3 A 31 B#EeR 372,675 4,709,026 5,081,701

The notes on page 14 to page 82 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FIENE 14 BEE 82 A Z M /AR BT 2 —#7 -
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Operating Activities
Surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Property, Plant and
Equipment
Interest Income

Operating Surplus before Changes in Working Capital

Increase in Deposits and Accounts Receivable,
Prepayments and Other Receivables

(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable, Accruals
and Other Payables

Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Employee
Benefits

Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Income

Net Increase in Bank Loan for On — lending to Staff

Increase in Loans to Staff
Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payment of Capital Expenditure

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Interest Received

Decrease in Placement of Fixed Deposits with Banks

with Original Maturity over Three Months
Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment of loan from Government
Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1 April

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 March

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BE2020F 3831 HEFENKFAEHERER

Note 2020 2019
B sE HK$’'000 HK$'000
(Note)
GED
BT
BER 242,181 317,654
ARIER
M - MR NERETTE 9 314,375 310,052
HEME « SRR EL

B8, (Ues) 9 20 (156)

MEWA (123,613) (103,631)
EEESEEAI 2 RERG 432,963 523,919
%e - BRERIE - FBNFUE

R L b BR TE 2 82 (90,283) (39,486)
FETBRIA « BRI R E A

FEMERIE 2 CRid), /180 (42,001) 33,053
EERFBH 2N,/

CRd) 25,476 (3,151)
M 232, Ofd) 77,834 (79,665)
BETETIMRITERZ

SN 1,662 605
BTEZ LN (1,626) (599)

gErgmREEZRE 404,025 434,676
RETEZHER
BAN K (472,600) (344,195)
REME -« #aZ

RIEBFTS A 114 328
2 E 123,613 103,631
AR B BB =1 A

RITHER R 2,909,925 1,127,777

BRATBMELNREFE 00000 2,561,052 887,541
BETEHRER

BEBNER 17(b) (67,000) (67,000)

SNHERE 2 EARE D 17(b) (3,117) -

S ERS 2R B 55 17(b) (153) -
METHAERANREFE 000000 (70,270) | (67,000)
RERBEEEEY2FEM 2,894,807 1,255,217
R4B1ENBRERBEELEEY 1,422,044 166,827
R3A3LENRER

BEEEY 17 4,316,851 1,422,044

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c).

BIE © AHBE2019F4 A1 BEERER(EEMBRELERDE 165 - WRAMEERT ZEWE - REWITE - LBEERTTED - F2HM

FE2(c) °

The notes on page 14 to page 82 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FJIHME 14 BEEE 82 A2 WA R/RRIMBHREK 2 —=B5 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥R & M 5

1. BACKGROUND
BR
The Vocational Training Council (the Council) was established in Hong Kong under the Vocational Training Council Ordinance
(the Ordinance). Under Section 17(3) of the Ordinance, the Council has to cause to be prepared, after the end of each financial
year, a statement of comprehensive income of the Council during that financial year and a balance sheet of the Council on the
last day thereof.
BB (BRBHE) RRBAEEINRB R (BREZR) EE BRI - ZIRGAIFEL7Q)IFRE - BIIBARSEY K
FEAREZ  GREZVBFELEAALNZEKESR  URREEBNEEERER

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FESHBEX

(@)  Statement of Compliance

14

BREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Council and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group) is set out below.

A BHRRDIRBEBSTHTMASLAMABEANEBMBREER) (BEAEERZENEBHBRELEL) - (BE
SEADERE  URBBARSTHRR) MERN - BIISREMB AR (GBAKE) KANTEZESHERMMAAT -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Council. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group and the Council for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

ERSTHMASAME THEREBITIKEBBEREEL)  HEEAEAKERBIBEENZSHBBEAER B
IRERAE LIRS RT VR - HAKE RBIIE N B RER T ROZEFTIAMETE2(c) °

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
Note 25).
B S AR AEAEARARSTTHBERNWIERLZE B2 HMEE25) ©



(b)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEETHE A

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
B HRRNmRELE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 comprise the Council and its subsidiaries.

BZE2020F 3831 HLFENGEMKBRRBIERIIBREMB AT

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

AP BHREREABRLRANERTEERE -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
EEEERNNS(EBVMBREEN) M BBMRE  BFHSHSHERZEARYEE - 8F WARZIHZIIHRE
BN EEHHE - A REBR - ZEEFREBBRRDRBEBEIZEBRRAEEFABATESENHMERMAE
it HERRATEREELIRHEMBRETHIEEREENRABHEAHENER - BRERTEBRINZEMET -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

ZEMMETRABRRERSERS c HEHATETBIR BT RFEINEFNETE  SEEFNSTHTHRER
BB . MR EE MR AREAR - MEEERRARPERNBREEER] -

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

EEEAERA(EBYBREEIE AU BBRREEARTERETHEALE T/ A B A MIEES

Changes in Accounting Policies
SRR EE

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group.

ERSTTMAECEMA —EIIEAKEBMEREEL) - (BBVKREERDE 1655 [HHE | R ZELEFT (BB KR
HEA)  WRASHHBEERER

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

BAEBMBHREERDFE 1655 HE 17 ZEETREHARBERAPRBEIPENEERVBMRRNFERL2HABE
BMEAZE - ARBYIBERAEAERRASTHPBERWHEARRE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEFBER (&)

Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
B BREE (&)

HKFRS 16, Leases
(BB BRELEDIFE 1655 [HE ]

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related interpretations, HK (IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease, HK (SIC) 15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK (SIC) 27, Evaluating the substance of transactions
involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces a single accounting model for lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less (short-
term leases) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor accounting requirements brought forward from HKAS 17 substantially
unchanged.

(BERMBREL)F 16 R T(EBSFEANDFE 17R [HE | REBERE  (BERMBRELEABRBIE 45 [ RE—
BRHREEEHE] (EEMEZEERBELAE)E ISR [EXHE  FRIEKREZESMBLAST)IFE 275 [T
AR AHECZRZEE | - ZEABABASIAE—SHER  ZBEXARERBHRARO R 12EAWHEE ([EHA
EDREEEEENHENUIN  ZEAERAEHERICAREEREESE - HREBAZEHERAURBE(EBST
ZRADE L7 IR ARRE o

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
an entity.

(BEBMBRELEADE 16 H TSI ABIIMEMEREERBERE > EEZVBHRREAETHHEHLERNT BN - 0
RERBEERENTE -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified retrospective
approach to measure the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments. Therefore, the adoption of HKFRS 16 does not result in an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2019. Comparative information has not been restated and continues to
be reported under HKAS 17.

AEBE2019F 4 B1 HREXERAKE B BMELERDE 165% - UWRARKBIT 2B8WE  EAREERNSKESEEN
SHER - AMEANSEMNEERIRTS T URE - At - (FBUHRELELNFE 16 RWRARELH 2019548181

MR ARRMEH AR - LEERRB(TBEHEADF 17 REE2]R - WRET -

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies and the transition options applied are
set out below:

FRBESTHREDNEERYE  URARABESRNFEERIINT

(@) New Definition of a Lease
HENFHES

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the
basis of whether a customer controls the use of an identified asset for a period of time, which may be determined by
a defined amount of use. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

HEETENEHTESREFENES - (BEBMBREENFI6HREEFREE —REERNEFEHINEEN
FA(AIRE-—ENERAEREE) MERHE - EEFRAEIECARNEENEARERZEAPESLTYS
HEEFMBZNERT > ZHEEREEY -

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into or changed on
or after 1 April 2019. For contracts entered into before 1 April 2019, the Group has used the transitional practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing arrangements are or contain leases. Accordingly,
contracts that were previously assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for as leases under
HKFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue to be accounted for as
executory contracts.

FEBES(ERMBRELELE 6 RHEENTERRAEN2019F 4 A L BRI BT LRBEMNESH - HR
2019F 4 A1 BZARIAMEH  ARBEERABEENATEES EZANREAHESEEHEZRHEETR
BLEREE o Btk EAIRBCKE B ST EINE 17 RTAAHENSNEER(EBHBRELELDE 16 5R7 A AH
g MERMBEAFEERBRIENSNAEEI RFEITEN



()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

TEE

FTBCR ()

Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

S BEREE (B)
(b)  Lessee Accounting and Transitional Impact

FHEASTHRERBEREE

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to classify leases as either operating leases or finance leases,

as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases when it is the lessee,
including leases previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, other than those short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets which are exempt. As far as the Group is concerned, these newly capitalised leases are
primarily in relation to property, plant and equipment as disclosed in note 13. For an explanation of how the Group
applies lessee accounting, see note 2(g)(i).

(BEBUBREEDE 16 FEUEAAIMNEBEH ENE 17T R ERFAABEE) BAKLLEHESHNERENR
EERER  AEBEASEERABEANMEHEER L (BRELEABRB(EBESTEANFEL7TRIBAKLER
EMHEE)  HERHEREEEEENHERN - RAKEMNS @ ZSFNERCHETZHNZT 13 AIRENY
¥ BERRBER FEARBUNMEAARBEASIEE  B2RWE 20 () °

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 April 2019), the Group determined the length of the remaining lease
terms and measured the lease liabilities for the leases previously classified as operating leases at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 April 2019. The
weighted average of the incremental borrowing rates used for determination of the present value of the remaining lease
payments was 5%.

RBEZ(EBMBREERIE165FE R (B12019F4 A1 0) » ARBAUT I BAKLHENHEBEE R
HERNRE  RIZ2019F4 A1 ANMEBIEBEEENRTRNNGEEFRRENESEEAE - ANEERER
HEFRRENMEFIIIBEEERNEH5%

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied the following recognition exemption and practical expedients at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 :

REF(EBNBRELZLDFE 16RNEE » AEBRIRER(E BN BRELERDE 16 7E BERA T IRIAHRR
RAMTHERRE

(i) the Group elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for which the remaining lease term ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on or before 31 March 2020 ;
AHBEEIHESE (HARTHBRERERKEBMBREERDE 1657 E Bt + =@ A RfEim (BFEH
R2020F 3 A31 AR ZAITHAE) ) ER(ERMBRELENIE 16 REERIMEEEREAREENRE |

(i) when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics (such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar class of underlying asset in a similar economic environment) ; and
ROBEA(EBHBRELANE 16 RERTEHEEER  ARBHAFHEELUEFENHEESKAE
—BRR(MEUKRBERETHNELEBEEEN EEBELURSGHEHENRNES) ©

(iii) when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the
previous assessment for onerous contract provisions as at 31 March 2019 as an alternative to performing an
impairment review.

REREKEBNBRELEADFE16RERTTECAEEER » AEBRIE2019F3A31AMNBEERNE
B BSEERETRERNNERTE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
FTESFBER (&)

Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

B BREE (&)

(b)  Lessee Accounting and Transitional Impact (Cont'd)

FHEASHRERBERZE (&)

The following table reconciles the operating lease commitments as disclosed in note 23(b) as at 31 March 2019 to
the opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 :

T&REHIN 2019 F 3 A 31 HWKLLEHERIE (WERKMTE23(b)) BN 2019F 4 B 1 HREANWHESEN U4
ZHER ¢
1 April 2019
2019 4R 1H
HK$’000
Operating Lease Commitments at 31 March 2019 20194 3 A 31 HHNKEHERIE 6,989
Less: Total Future Interest Expenses B RRBFE S H (2,787)
Present Value of Remaining Lease Payments, FIeptHEFIEIRE » #R2019F 481 HK
Discounted Using the Incremental Borrowing Rate at  1ZZE{EERIZXRHTIR
1 April 2019 4,202

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously classified as operating leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position at 31 March 2019.
ERIDEAKEHENEBCAEEERISHEEENSEER » 1R 2019F 3 A 31 AR R KA EZNE
AIHEHRBNENREMNNEERESETURE -

The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s statement of financial position:

TREM R AE BB REEDDE 16 SE A EBI BN RNVZE

Carrying Amount  Capitalisation of
at 31 March  Operating Lease  Carrying Amount
2019 Contracts at 1 April 2019
2019%3H31H ReRE 2019%F4A1R
BREE EHERE BREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Line Items in the Statement of Financial SR E BB KR EE
Position Impacted by the Adoption of  BI)% 16 S5 S W B
HKFRS 16: MRRKIER :
Property, Plant and Equipment W - EE NS 4,211,206 4,202 4,215,408
Total Non-current Assets FRBEEHLE 4,219,392 4,202 4,223,594
Accounts Payable, Accruals and FE(TERIE ~ FESTH R
Other Payables HAth FEASBRIE 1,289,380 2,375 1,291,755
Current Liabilities REEE 2,045,072 2,375 2,047,447
Net Current Assets REEEFHE 3,635,589 (2,375) 3,633,214
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities EBEABERAHERSE 7,854,981 1,827 7,856,808
Accounts Payable, Accruals and FE(FERIE « FEST SRR
Other Payables HibfE(TERIE - 1,827 1,827
Total Non-current Liabilities FREBEERE 2,289,029 1,827 2,290,856
Net Assets FEE 5,565,952 - 5,565,952



()

(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEETHE A

Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
S BEREE (B)

(c) Impact on the Financial Result and Cash Flows of the Group
HAKRBHNMBXEERRERNEE

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. This results in a negative impact on the surplus and total comprehensive
income for the year in the Group’s statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, as compared to the
results if HKAS 17 had been applied during the year.
BRIRUEEHERANBEREIRRETREHENHESIHNEER  B2019F 4B 1 AMRRACAREENEE

SER  AMMEERAEARRIREENHESEREMEENFESH  UREAEEENITE - BRA(E
BEEADEI7THRNERAL  EHARBNESRNEMZERSERTNAFERBREZANSAEELETER
=7

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised leases into

their capital element and interest element. These elements are classified as financing cash outflows, rather than

as operating cash outflows, as was the case for operating leases under HKAS 17. Although total cash flows are
unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a change in presentation of cash flows within the cash flow
statement.

ERERERT  THBEARBAESERNMEENHEHIDAERBIFRNELD - ELEZRBEBARE
Bend  B(EBSTEINDELITRTHREHESBAKLREREEMTE - BELRERTZEE KA
(BEBUBBRELERDE 16 REBIRESRERNIIHAE XN B RE -

Subsidiaries
F B X =)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group control an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and the parties) are considered.
MBARRERAKBEFNER EXARBEBSHERENSRNEREEMAERZEIZERUREREHEEZEZE
AT o BIASHBIZEHIZER - A AKERSHE LIENK  EZR (AEEBERHEMSEE) BEER -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

HNBARMNRESHBFEEHEMBEIAGEMERERA > EEEHEL LRI HBRALARZBNESRRRS @ )
REBRARZEERRZMEENARERERN  SNEEGEMBRRETULEIEE - HEBA AR ZEERSZMEEN
REREBESNIERETRWERT » UKEARSRKENERFEF LI o

In the Council’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (see Note

2(h)).
ERIBEzEEERERA > BB ATNKREURARBEREREEY R (FEL2HMEE2(h)) °

19



(e)

20

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEFBER (&)

Property, Plant and Equipment
I - R RERB

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(h)).

M - WBRNRBURSHRIRITERBERSESIR FE2HEME2(N0) -

Land and/or buildings owned or held under a leasehold interest by the Council which are used by subsidiaries are classified
as campus used by a subsidiary in the Council’s balance sheet. Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(h)).

BISHEESUHEREFE 2R HEF AUEETFHELAR  SRBIIRZEERBERT I EAMBE A REA
ZRE c ZEEEUMAMBRAITERRERESIR GG2HME2(h) °

The Group estimates the useful lives of various categories of property, plant and equipment on the basis of their designed life,
planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

AEBRBREYE WBERRBEZIRTFE > #ETEREREREER  REETHUERAFE - Y3 - HBERRENT
ERRERAREHMGEREEE (WER)  BURGUEAZERUAESRETE  UBHERA - FB50T :

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use are depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

REREE T SRR T WEBHERE -

- Buildings situated on leasehold land, except for the campus located in Chai Wan are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being not more than 50 years after the date of land grant.
URBEE T E 2 BF (RERSKRI)  RRATWHRFEFAIEAER - BFZ A B BIER50F (BEEE) R
STEITE -

- Campus located in Chai Wan is depreciated not more than 50 years after the date of completion (see Note 3).

LERENWITERREIAMBUTZN0FHE FL2MMEE3) ©

- Improvements works shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives of 5-7 years
BFREIRE BRT AR EAS TS AIE A ER (5-7F) » UBEERE

- Furniture and equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
FEARRZE HEMNBFERESTEST AIFEAER (4-7F)  UBEERE

- Computer equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
EL B HEMNBFERESTEST AIFEAER (4-7F)  UBEERE

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

%  MBRE2ENZBONAERFERTE  SBINFESEBRHE - EEZTAFREARMBEE(WER)HE
REBFEITRE -

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on the date of retirement or disposal.
iﬁE‘éjE&Zm’%#@%ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁé&ﬁzuﬁzﬁﬁmﬂéﬁﬁﬂﬁtH%Fﬁ%H&Ai%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%é%ﬁ%@ﬁi%%ﬁ%%i » WREREES HEE
BIAZERZERRA °



(f)

(9)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEETHE A

Construction in Progress
ERIRE

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which comprises accumulated costs of construction, professional fees and interest
expenses, if any, capitalised prior to the completion of the respective projects, less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when the construction is completed and the asset is ready for its intended use.
ERIBRUNAHBRBESESER  ERTEAHE HNAERERTREER  BXEBERARIEBTHAMER LT E
Eztﬂgiiﬁﬁﬁl) cBIRTHK G BECHFHEARE  HENAESFLFERL  MERIRUIBEANE - HRERK
BREENERF -

Leased Assets
HEEE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease

if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially

all of the economic benefits from that use.

AEBREERRETIGAEREREBNEHERNEEHE - MENARBREME —REBRZHEBINEENERE Al

iﬁéﬁ%%g%ﬁ@%*ﬂ% cERFURAERIECHINEENEARBREZEATPRESLTEHEBENENERT » 2
|REBEREHEY -

(i) As a Lessee
fERFEBEA

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2019
20195 4 A1 BERKRERNBER

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease component(s), the Group has elected to
separate non-lease components and accounts for each lease component and any associated non-lease
components separately.

Eé‘g’g@%?ﬂ%%u#ﬁ%%ﬂﬁi—%ﬁﬁ AEBRERSFEEART D RESZHE 5 RIEMEEB IR
SN D ©

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the
Group, are primarily office equipment. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

REERSBE  AEBEICHAEEENHESE  HHEHTER12EAANEHEEUREEBEEEMR
BN HRAKBEIZRANARE EAEBN —BEEEEETVHER  AEERERSRAENME
EEEHRZHETUEREL - BARAERNMLMEEEBAIRREERUERZN AN ERRAX

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
EHERERL  HEEERBESHANESRENEERANIR (ZFHERNFRELIEERTE Al
FAHEBEMIEREEEFNR) TRENREETYRER - YRERE  HEEERBHENATELRAERF
RFEFAEANEEALZE  c THOAREHEIFAEZNIEHEETRAETEREEHESENTEF  MEHEE
NETTHRARESERAER o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEFBER (&)

Leased Assets (Cont'd)

HEEE (&)

(i)

As a Lessee (Cont'd)
EREMEA ()

(A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Cont'd)
201954 A1 BEMKREANBER (B

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 2(h)).
EERCHENERINEAREERRAYNHRITE - FAREENRAEREHEEENYRESRE  MLE
HEHRRARZANEAEESHUREAEEENDNBREERAER - EEABRT » EAEEENHKR
BEEGTTAMNMFEIREKREEEE  EREBEERHAEMAEENEAR (RIFRENRE)  BAE
AEWEBNHEHERE - EAREEAEZURANBRRFITERBERSEN T (FSHMTE2(h)) °

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under

a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether the Group will

be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

IS B L R EFARRBEENRERELD  AEAUBRBEERBEGHNECSESERESY 5
EHNARBRRCERTHTERE  EHIK L HEREENEMARBLERE  ESHTEHE
BE -NMESERBERATENGEHESE  RHCAREENREEEFLEERE  HMEAEEENR
HEEDSRET  ASHEERARET ABR -

In the statement of financial position, the Group presents right-of-use assets within the same line item as
similar underlying assets and presents lease liabilities under Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables.
BRI BRARAGERAEEEEEBEEEZ2I AR —EHARREMNRE - B HREMENIRIE
THREEER -

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019
2019 4 A1 HZAIEABER

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases as finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the company. Leases which did not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group were classified as operating leases.
THBEAFRBEARLRENRE  FEEEEMERBANORNEIESHREARMENE MIEEEEY
FRERBAEREAKBENEE SRS BEAKEHRHE -

Where the Group had the use of other assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases were
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis was more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received were recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they were incurred.
HAKBRESEHENSHEMEE2FEAE  ARBHEFEE ZNRRENHRENSHTHBRUSEEXS
HEBEAENEG  BNFEMEEREERMRNMREEEEMEE 2 WEERXBIRSD - EWEIZHERERBRF
BRAFHSLE 2T U EARENG - REHSEEHEE 2 SHHREZEBESEME -



(h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

SRTBER (&)

Impairment of Assets

EERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired, or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

ZM%I?%EIIE FEBZERFMMIRNEES  MBREATEERSHRAETR  IRUIHRIANBESERBFEN
EIH%« s

Property, plant and equipment (including campus used by a subsidiary) ;

W% - HBERFRE (BREMEARERZRE) |

Construction in progress ; and
EEIRE R

Investments in subsidiaries.

HNBARKNKRE -

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of such an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
MREBBETR  EFESFEHEENTREHENGS - EEENRESHES NI IREHER - FEE2H WG REDM
EEE -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Calculation of Recoverable Amount
AT E EEEETE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
BEENTWEHER ,HJMMEID BREERAEFEAEEMEPHNRSE - AIEEAEER  AFNREKEBEESRE
DA AERMBENSTEESRHEREEZSERRHANRER  BRZFHRAEBE EEETHBEYAHMERE
ELXBRERER J?EL,{ EBVEERERENG N —HEE(TEERSEN) AEVEETINE £

Recognition of Impairment Losses
BRRERE

An impairment loss is recognised in statement of comprehensive income if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
EEESHMBNRASAEENVNREERBATRESER  NEE2ERERTEIELBESE - RetESN
R EE B AR AR R 2B (R AE M) WEEREE  HEENKREETSREZEREER A REREER
N (WA E) S AEE (MEEE) -

Reversal of Impairment Losses
E R R

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
ERFPREANESENEERZREFANSEHE  EENEFESRELD - MEENRESETSEREHREE
ZIEEE%EIMD@EEJ***EtHﬁﬂfEEﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁE’Jéﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ FrEmpRESEERRERNFERTA
ZHEHKEE °
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEFBER (&)

Accounts and Other Receivables
FEUS BR1E N E b FEURFRIE

A receivable is recognised when the Group or the Council has an unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

FEWCRIE A A BB S | B R S AR A IR B B VR R BS T LURE R - MR EWEHZREIM A EFTELB —RIE[E - B
BRREZIENER ZERMER

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance for credit losses as determined
below:

FEW SRR B A R R SR A R A ERABRERSIR - BERWOT

The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs), which are those losses that are
expected to occur over the expected life of the accounts receivables. The loss allowance is estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.
BREGBENTESHENKRGRBEAEE(ECL)  NBRBMERKRBRAEAFRAZENEX - BEEBENEAER
AEBRELEEHRERNBBERMTT  IREBEEHEASERRELAE » IRHE B HTEE R R —REEMRR

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with any changes recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group or the Council recognises an impairment gain or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables through a loss allowance account.

ECLESERE BHETENTE  AASCRNERPHRIADBEWRGZIEER - FHREIRI BRI BEVRZLEE - I
ZREERBRFHRENEMERSNIRE SRETHERE -

The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or other receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
BREEBARNHMEBRRNRAZBERIEERTREAMRT (BoRNEE) SWHE - EEBLBEFSREELIRBRE
BEEALBEEESAELERHRERENWARER  UEETHEHE -

Cash and Cash Equivalents
RERBREZEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
RERREEEVEERTERRRE FRARITVNEMCTBEBRAERER  URENSRBMENIRE - BLRER
URREACHANRSHE  EEZBNEARTIR  YEBAR=EARNEIH -

Accounts and Other Payables
FEA BRIE 2 HL A0 FE S FRIE

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

BAREREMEBENFIRNRZEAABERER - HRUBHERATIR - HEETRZERK » BIBIRAIIGR -

Contract Liabilities
eREE

A contract liability is recognised as receipts in advance when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(p)). A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2 (i)).

ERBERAEBEZEBUAR  REFXNFAARENNKEREIRARIIE GE2HMEE2 (p) o MAKBEZEE
WART B BFG WA TREREZERN  SHEEESWER - EEEERT LRI BENERFIE GESHME2
(i) °



(m)

(n)

(0)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEETHE A

Loans and Borrowings
BERREE

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the statements of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

ERREGMRBRAABEIKEE RS RNAER - Hi » ERREEUEEAALIIR - IrREIAEEHEEOEE 2=
BERTMEIMNNFNERER  REEARERFPUBRRRFE » WIREEFHER -

Employee Benefits

EEEF

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
¢ FERS  FHFFR RERBEZURZBEIELRARL  EARBESRMUEBERBHNFEERALR © i
FENINRENFLEEREEASEREX  AIZSSEEUERENEK-

(ii) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

REEBCAFMEABESTHERIDVREFHNBEE B ESET  MIFRKEEHRERABRR/MAX

(iii) Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

BRREHERSEARBEER - ARBREFE GrERERENEE M) THARKRREXLESESIH
BFEEEMGTEIMA LLEESAMEFE LB ERFRER -

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
BRERIBAEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

MEAMBERD BRENSHARELIERBTET  EMBHRSERLBERNENERIING - EAUEL AT ENMGETRE o 8
BESHZRERTHRIBENEEEREE - WRRENURFHNEX » ARBHBITEEIE I HNWRESTIIRE -

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
MESERENZNERIRNTRELEREK  IRELHEERBELETENGST  FEEZIBEEARETEE  BR
WEBERMROTEEBEARI c MREAEBHNBRBEERTFERISRARSHRERETRBEEFETHES TR
BAREEE ) BRUOEEERINRNATEEMEBERRI o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEFBER (&)

Income Recognition
Y ON

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

FHBREEEBBRET  EHBBEELENREERIA[RA

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:
EEMBBRBNZHECERAEF  IFAHEAGEEAZEER  ARBHEDPERESNAERIEEEIA/LA - BF
BRERE=ZSWENEE - WASRETIEEEZ2E A RER

(i) Government Subventions
2GRk

Government subventions consist of recurrent subventions, non-recurrent subventions and other specific grants
received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the Government). Recurrent
subventions are recognised as income in the statement of comprehensive income when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group or the Council will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the subventions will be
received. Non-recurrent subventions are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during
the year.

BR@EDEEREREEBRINTHRERS (FBEN) WEEHEE  FIKEFURAMBEARER - EAUESE
BEAHBIBIISRETEAMTRERESVRIICEFYSRUE  CELHYEESELIHREREI RN
A EREFBEUFABRENEEILSEAREIRBBA

Subventions and grants earmarked for capital expenditure purpose are initially accounted for as deferred income (see
Note 2(q)) and are subsequently recognised as income over the useful life of the related assets when the assets are
put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.
EEARERIEN@EDEREBERVESEWIIARELE LR (F2HME20)  HEEZEEREARK > #eRk
BYRESREBEEZTATHRUZHBNEENES LS EARBEIBEA -

Other specific grants without a condition for refund of any unspent balances are recognised as income in the statement
of comprehensive income when received, while for those specific grants that contain a condition for refund of any
unspent balances are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during the year.
REMTEEHRANBERRER  BERUNKEEAWER LLEIRBWA - BLEEREKENTEAREBR
SUFEABRENEERIEEARRERBEIZBUEA

(ii)  Tuition Fees and Training Charges
BENREER

Tuitions fees and training charges are recognised as income on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses and
unearned fees and charges are treated as receipts in advance.

BENREEASRRREERBBUETFIAR  BH2ERBENBRIAFERKE -

(iii)  Interest Income
FMEWA

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

RITERAEREWARNAERRREFE LR o



(p)

()

(r)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

-I_E&% (n‘ﬁ)
Income Recognition (Cont'd)
WA ()
(iv)  Donations

BR

Donations are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the Group becomes entitled to the
donations and it is probable that they will be received which is generally upon receipt of cash.

SNRIBEIMAB R RN A NEZIBERE BERUBRSHEZERER LEIA[BWA -

(v) Hire of Accommodation/Facilities Income
EEV3 A ON

Income receivable from hire of accommodation/facilities is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term.

BE/RigZBWATHERMRENS T HBR  UEHEE2AKRERER

(vi)  Services Income

ARFEUIA

Services income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the related services are rendered.

RBEBAEEERBREAEREZEREREIBEA -

Deferred Income
IR 2=

Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets are incurred.

RERBNBRAEBDENRERIARELRE - ERUABERXIAAREENTEHSBERMRBERBBA -

Borrowing Costs

EE KA

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Wig - BERLEEE (A - RREKBREEZHBEERENTUHENEE) FEENEERE ZBERRIFTAZE
BEZHEA HUEBERARELZHEBRIASZH -

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is

being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or

sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary

to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

IHJ CEERHMAX fERARETRERAZRRNTFTUHENEEMENEE ‘éFItE@I‘é%ﬁiﬂi%%&%ﬁ%éiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ@%ﬁ
DA - ENEEERE IR EAMERETE ARSEER  NEERELEZEERETEEL -
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2. SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
-i'JBZﬁ (mﬁ)

(s) Related Parties

BER

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

BT AL BIZALTRERENITHRK S DR EEEE

(a)

(b)

(€)

has control or joint control over the Group ;

R R E B A HAR

has significant influence over the Group ; or

HEARBEEAZE

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

REKBNIEEEAS -

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the foIIowing conditions applies:

i fF & T HUEM —IRRG - BIZEREAKETHE

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

ZERRAHEBR —HEBRE (NEEQTF HELARAKERWEB A AKILERE)

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

H-EBREASERENBHEQNTRAELX (R —ERANELAZHRBETREZHELRANEE DR
E IR

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

MEBRYIRE =S 28&EX-

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

BRAE=-NEBZSELE ME—BEERAF=-FEEZHELT

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

ZERRATHERESTUBERERSN EESENMROBEBRENTE -

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

2B ()BT A T B EES

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

R(i)a) BEATAHERBEAZENRBEZER (FZERERF) TREEAS -

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group.

ZERREEANEAAL  AFRBREHBREERS -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

BRATHREORAEREEERETRE N RPTRFEZENALTRZZERIATHENIEKE °
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
SEHEREE

Estimate and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

HERAGSPITENML  AREBECRNEAMEZETHME  BREABBER THRRSHANSEER -

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
AHBHARREHEENRR - BEAENRRE  ZREAER  RUFHEEHBERERMERE - UTHEHEENRREESER
EENEGENREENTESBFEFELERRE -

Renewal of the Lease of a Campus Located in Chai Wan and Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment
RERSNENEDNYE  BBRIENVAIEAFR

The continued operation of the campus located in Chai Wan, which is used by the Technological and Higher Education Institute
of Hong Kong, is dependent upon the renewal of its lease by the Government. The Group expects that the lease will be either
renewed on or before the expiry of the current lease term in February 2024.

&) %%?Eﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ%E’ﬂ%%ﬁé%@ﬁiﬁ?&ﬁééﬂﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂ%@ HIEHR o AEBTEST AN 2024 F 2 AHEHERIFH 2
BIENSEH -

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the Group‘s property, plant and
equipment. The Group will revise the depreciation charges where useful lives are different from previous estimate, or will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

THBERAE KBIRZXBEEUEAFHREETEEZR - MAERFHELRATTAE  TEEBETINEERANGE
HAMEE RERHER I LB FEREMEEE -

Where the actual results are different from the original estimates, such differences will impact the carrying values of property,

plant and equipment and deferred income and the recognition of depreciation and utilisation of deferred income in the years

in which such estimates have been changed.

ﬁ% ﬁ%%fﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁfﬁw%ﬂﬂﬁ BREERESYEERMTTREAYE #MBRRE  BEERE TERIARELERZEM
AZREE -
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS
B E

Consolidated

e

Fa =]

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions REmBE 2,943,836 2,790,130
Non-recurrent Subventions — Capital Works Reserve ERE@HES - BRI EMGE
Fund s
Major Capital Projects REZEETRE 9,468 3,962
Minor Building Projects NRIEEER TR 113,286 99,000
Non-recurrent Subventions — Capital Accounts FRE@HBIE - EREEE
Major Capital ltems REERIEH SIE0 4,071
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment BE - HEKRE 57,232 60,404
Capital Items for Skills Centres HeEEREROERIEE 2,054 5,313
Grants from Government Agencies BUR BB R 256,099 266,705
Matching Grants (Note 4(a)) Fe¥t B & (FIEE 4(a)) 3,865 2,714
Other Capital Projects Fund * HiEZTITRES 28,642 89,420
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BRER 2R 228, 23,811 25,868
3,441,452 3,347,687
The Council
B 5 /Z
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions BREMYE 2,943,836 2,790,130
Non-recurrent Subventions — Capital Works Reserve ERE@HBS - BRI EGGE
Fund e
Major Capital Projects REZEERTRE 9,468 3,962
Minor Building Projects NIRRT 113,286 99,000
Non-recurrent Subventions — Capital Accounts FEEWEE - ERRAE
Major Capital ltems REIZERIER 3,159 4,071
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment M= - Bk E 57,232 60,404
Capital Items for Skills Centres R OERIER 2,054 5,313
Grants from Government Agencies BT HERE R 239,125 251,408
Matching Grants (Note 4(a)) BL¥ B & (st 4(a)) 3,742 2,587
Other Capital Projects Fund * HihZR TREES * 28,642 89,420
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BREFZF 2£8, 23,811 25,868
3,424,355 3,332,163
* Included in the balance are HK$201 million (2019: HK$205 million) being depreciation of capital expenditure during the year which

is released from deferred income and HK$172 million (2019: HK$116 million) being capital expenditure recognised as deferred
income (see Note 20).

EFBEAFENEMIAER 2E100E T (2019F | B 2ES008 ) (HIELEKRERAABWA » ME1E7,2008 (2019
F BB 1EL600ET) NEXRNHZAWBARELE RS GFSHMEE20)



(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants
[ e

The matching grants comprise:

BB S BaE :

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary = _b B34 kyith B2 &6 o5 i =+ 2

Students (Note 4(a)(i)) (P aE 4(a)(i))

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Note 4(a)(ii)) FEARmE LB E
(B aE 4(a)(ii))

Seventh Matching Grant Scheme (Note 4(a)(iii)) ErmblE @B EstE
(FfFaE 4(a)(iii))

Eighth Matching Grant Scheme (Note 4(a)(iv)) FE N\ e 5t Sl
(P aE 4(a)(iv))

Research Matching Grant Scheme (Note 4(a)(v)) o EE wBh &5 &
(B EE 4(a)(v))

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary = _b B34 hyith B2 B S5 i £+ 2

Students (Note 4(a)(i)) (FfFaE 4(a)(i)
Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Note 4(a)(ii)) E RO BT E
(BFEE 4(a)ii))
Eighth Matching Grant Scheme (Note 4(a)(iv)) EPAN T SEC e |
(MFEE 4(a)(iv)

Consolidated

o=
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,742 2,587
123 127
3,865 2,714
The Council
el
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,742 2,587
3,742 2,687
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(a)

32

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme)
H 24 Rt S E (GREErE)

A Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students was launched from the 2011/12 academic year to
subsidise post-secondary students participating in short-term internship or learning programmes in Mainland China
on a matching basis. The Government matching grants and the related donations are separately disclosed below in
compliance with the requirement of the Scheme.

2011 128 F 8 BUFETHELBERMERAEHE URHEAEDE L2243 TERNESNERER
REBES - BALE SR EMBNESBIBRESINEEERSFBIIEHNTBRERR

The portion of the grants received which has not been utilised was recorded as government subventions under deferred
income. The grants are recognised as income upon utilisation to the extent of the amount of related expenditure
actually incurred. During the financial year 2019-20, HK$3,742,000 (2018-19, HK$2,587,000) was recognised

as the grants income and as at 31 March 2020, the balance of deferred income was HK$5,004,000 (2018-19 :
HK$8,746,000).

HreWzBRmERERSIARBELERE THBNHESE - ZBRRREARUBREENEBE X HESERRE
RAEWA 2201920 M FEBRANHH S WA BB 37428 T (2018-19F : BH¥258.7E ) » MAEZE 2020

F3A31H  BEWFNEATEREE500.4E T (2018-19F : B 87468 T) °
Consolidated
AN
wh 3
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NESgsTe [iNE-CEi=EN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018F 4 B 1 Az &k 11,333 3,750
Income U
Grants Received/Matched Donations BB BEEIER = -
Interest Income FE WA 184 64
184 64
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KHREEE BRI
EEEE A
Students Exchange Activities BEREE 2,081 -
Students Competitions BLELE 37 -
Students Industrial Attachments BATXES 148 -
Students Study Programmes BEBETE - -
Students Training Activities BAIJISHEE 505 -
Scholarships and Prizes REGRES - 562
Other Student Development Activities Hith B A B REE - -
Other Expenses Hih&EH - -
2,771 562
Balance as at 31 March 2019 2019 % 3 A 31 Hz &8k 8,746 3,252




(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B (&)

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) (Cont’d)

2 2L ER LSS (BRI E) (8

Balance as at 1 April 2019

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Students Exchange Activities
Students Competitions

Students Industrial Attachments
Students Study Programmes
Students Training Activities
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2020

2019%F 4 B 1 Hz&&k
Wz
Bz Bie EEBR
FEUEA

RARFBI S BRAAH
HEBIE A

BERTEE

BAELE

EAETEEY
BLEEBRTE
BEINBEE
REFREE
HttB B RTE
HitbE

2020%F 3 A 31 H 2 &8k

Consolidated

o=
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[Nk [iREEEEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,746 3,252
131 67
131 67
3,142 -
43 =
20 -
52 -
616 -
- 415
3,873 415
5,004 2,904
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(a)

34

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) (Cont'd)

=B R ek B8 (BT E) (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2018

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Students Exchange Activities
Students Competitions

Students Industrial Attachments
Students Study Programme

Students Training Activities
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2019

2018 4 B 1 Hz &8k
Wz
AL ) o L=
FEUTEA

RS BRAAH
1HEAE A

BAEREE

BEE

BEAETEEY

2L 2R

24 IBEE
RESNRE

Htt BB RTE
Hitv & A

2019%F 3 B 31 H 248

The Council
BN

Matching Matched
Grants Donations
NSRS [iREEE=EN
HK$’000 HK$’000
11,333 3,732
184 64
184 64
2,081 -
37 -
148 -
505 -
- 544
2,771 544
8,746 3,252




(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B (&)

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) (Cont’d)

2 2L ER LSS (BRI E) (8

Balance as at 1 April 2019

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Students Exchange Activities
Students Competitions

Students Industrial Attachments
Students Study Programme

Students Training Activities
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2020

2019%F 4 B 1 Hz&&k
Wz
Bz Bie EEBR
FEUEA

RARFBI S BRAAH
HEBIE A

BERTEE

BAELE

EAETEEY
BLEEBRTE
BEINBEE
REFREE
HttB B RTE
HitbE

2020%F 3 A 31 H 2 &8k

The Council
531 5

Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[Nk B REIB X
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,746 3,252
131 67
131 67
3,142 -
43 =
20 -
52 -
616 -
- 415
3,873 415
5,004 2,904
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(a)

36

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)

BT (&)

Matching Grants (Cont'd)

BB ()

(ii)
EREEE B 25T El

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme

A 6th Matching Grant Scheme was launched from the 2012/13 academic year and covers both operations funded by
the Education Bureau (EDB) and self-financing operations of the Council on a matching basis. The private donations

and government matching grants are segregated in respect of EDB funded and self-financing operations in compliance
with the requirement of the 6th Matching Grant Scheme.

2012132 F 8 - BFETEA MBS HE S5 S -
AABREBSEHMYESRES

BRI ®REA o

Balance as at 1 April 2018

Transfer between Operations
upon Actual Usage of Grants/
Donations

Income
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/

Donations

Teaching and Research
Enhancement

Internationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Bursaries

Student Development

Capital Projects

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree Operations
Degree and Above

2018F 4 B 1 B2 &t

RERYE/BR
ERERERMER

EmBye/ BN
HEER
HEHERHS

B REERRED

REsRES
Ik
BL%R
R
Eft

2019F 3 A 31 H 2 £tk

THSERENE)
AEnEE
B HRE

EANEREH B EIMABEER -

EREHERER)ABEABERENRBEEEENTE-
UHEREMEELSARBELELT DM

Consolidated

= A
=]
EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
HEREHEER BERERT Gh

Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
[k3te)ka RERY  EHENe RERY  EHENe BERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
31,002 11,408 10,892 7,508 41,894 18,916
82 104 (82) (104) - _
31,084 11,512 10,810 7,404 41,894 18,916
614 211 204 126 818 337
614 211 204 126 818 337
2,500 - 3,359 - 5,859 -
80 728 - 269 80 997
N/A - N/A - N/A -
N/A - - - - -
- - - 54 - 54
2,580 728 3,359 323 5,939 1,051
29,118 10,995 7,655 7,207 36,773 18,202
2,580 728 174 323 3,354 1,051
- - 2,585 - 2,585 -
2,580 728 3,359 323 5,939 1,051

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and
received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20.

ERMEH ST ERER2012F8A 1 H

£20145F 7 B 31 A4

B WEE2014/15 2 F 5w s EEH R -

2015/16 »2016/17 »2017/18 » 2018/19 % 2019/20 BF WU Z B MBS A -



(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)

B (&)

(i)  Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)
BRWEH MBS (F&)

Balance as at 1 April 2019 2019F 4 B1B &S
Transfer between Operations RERBS B2
upon Actual Usage of Grants/ ERFEABERMER

Donations
Income e
Interest Income FISWA

Expenditure met from Grants/ Bhmee /BRAEAN

Donations HEER

Teaching and Research BEHERHE
Enhancement

Internationalisation and Student ~ EIBML REBLERTEE
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes BESR S

Bursaries pes

Student Development BLRRE

Capital Projects BRER

Others Hitr

Balance as at 31 March 2020 20203 A 31 Btk

Expenditure by Level of Study TH(AEERENE)
Sub-degree Operations FENRE
Degree and Above BN LEE

Consolidated

)

EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total

BERENEERT HEEER ait
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
[BESEEEk REER  Eamhe BEER EamhE BREER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
29,118 10,995 7,655 7,207 36,773 18,202
(482) (482) 482 482 - -
28,636 10,513 8,137 7,689 36,773 18,202
546 178 207 211 753 389
546 178 207 211 753 389
3,988 - 1,703 - 5,691 -
10 308 - 90 10 398
N/A - N/A - N/A -
N/A - - - - -
3,998 308 1,703 90 5,701 398
25,184 10,383 6,641 7,810 31,825 18,193
3,998 308 792 90 4,790 398
- - 911 - 911 -
3,998 308 1,703 90 5,701 398

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and
received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20.
EARMEE NS ERER2012F8A1HZ2014F 7 A31LHMIBR > WEE2014/15 B F TR EE R UK ©
2015/16 ' 2016/17 *2017/18 1 2018/19 % 2019/20 BFERI R MBI S U A -
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
E&Jﬁ%@ﬂbé (n‘ﬁ)

Matching Grants (Cont'd)

BB ()

(ii)  Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)
EREEE B2 E (&)

The Council
BB
EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
HEREHEERT BERERT A3
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations

Effye  EERR  EHEHE  EERY  EHEPE  EREER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Balance as at 1 April 2018 20184 B 1 B &tk 31,002 11,408 10,892 7,508 41,894 18,916
Transfer between Operations RIEEHE/BHe
upon Actual Usage of Grants/ ERFERERMER

Donations 82 104 (82) (104) - -
Net Transfer from Subsidiary M B AR B - - (2,585) - (2,585) -
31,084 11,512 8,225 7,404 39,309 18,916

Income Wiz
Interest Income FIEWA 614 211 204 126 818 337
614 211 204 126 818 337

Expenditure met from Grants/ Ehpse/ BN

Donations HEER
Teaching and Research BEHERMR
Enhancement - - - - - -
Internationalisation and Student  EIR{ REERRIEE
Exchange Activities 2,500 - 774 - 3,274 -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES 80 728 - 269 80 997
Bursaries pES N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development BLERRE - - - - - -
Capital Projects BRIER N/A - - - - -
Others Hft - - - 54 - 54
2,580 728 174 323 3,354 1,051
Balance as at 31 March 2019 2019 3 A 31 B 2 £tk 29,118 10,995 7,655 7,207 36,773 18,202
Expenditure by Level of Study T (B BRESDE)
Sub-degree Operations ABNEE 2,580 728 774 323 3,354 1,051
Degree and Above B HRE - - - - - -
2,580 728 174 323 3,354 1,051

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and
received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20.
EAMEE ST ERER2012F8A1HE2014F 7 A31LHMIBR  WEE2014/15 B F EHREH R IKFK ©
2015/16 :2016/17 »2017/18 *2018/19 % 2019/20 BFE R I R EMEISURA -



GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B (&)

(i)  Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)
BRWEH MBS (F&)

The Council
Bl B
EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
HEREHEERN HEEEAT &t
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations

Efmye  EBER  ERh:  EEREX  EHEYE  EESER
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Balance as at 1 April 2019 20194 B 1A 2R 29,118 10,995 7,655 7,007 36,773 18,202
Transfer between Operations RERBS B2
upon Actual Usage of Grants/ ERERBRmER

Donations (482) (482) 482 482 - .
Net Transfer from Subsidiary R BT FER = = (911) = (911) =
28,636 10,513 7,226 7,689 35,862 18,202

Income Wz
Interest Income FISWA 546 178 207 211 753 389
546 178 207 211 753 389

Expenditure met from Grants/ Bhmee /BRAEAN

Donations HEER
Teaching and Research BEHERHE
Enhancement - - - - - -
Internationalisation and Student ~ EIBML REBLERTEE
Exchange Activities 3,988 - 792 - 4,780 -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES 10 308 - %0 10 398
Bursaries pEs N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development BERE - - - - - -
Capital Projects ERIER N/A - - - - -
Others b - - - - - -
3,998 308 792 90 4,790 398
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2020%3 531 A 248 25184 10383 6.641 7810 318%5 18193
Expenditure by Level of Study TH(AEERENE)
Sub-degree Operations BIENRE 3,998 308 792 9 4,790 398
Degree and Above Byl LERE - - - - - -
3,998 308 792 90 4,790 398

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and
received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20.
BRI EMEHERER2012F8A1HZ2014F 7 A31LHMIBR » WEE2014/15 B F T EE R UK ©
2015/16 ' 2016/17 *2017/18 1 2018/19 % 2019/20 BFERI R MBI S U A -
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4.  GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

(@)  Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(iii)  Seventh Matching Grant Scheme
ErmitEmeEstEl

The 7th Matching Grant Scheme was launched from 1 August 2017 for a period of two years and covers the self-
financing operation of local degree programmes of the Council on a matching basis.

H2017$8A1AE  BUSHTANMENE LREHMYETE  URETXRERIBBEENA S+ B2

FEREE -
Consolidated
AN
wh 3
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESEEE [iREEE =B
HK$'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018 F 4 B 1 H 248k 3,966 3,564
Income U z=
Grants/Donations wWEE B 3,129 3,088
3,129 3,088
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KRS BRI AT
MHEIE A
Teaching and Research Enhancement HEHERFE 11 -
Internationalisation and Student Exchange B LR EERZREE
Activities - 206
Scholarships and Prizes BESRES 20 1,785
Student Development BagEE 60 49
Others Hib 36 175
127 2,215
Balance as at 31 March 2019 20194 3 B 31 H 24tk 6,968 4,437
Expenditure by Level of Study TH(UBERESE)
Sub-degree Operations BIEBNREE —~ -
Degree and Above B LRRE 127 2,215
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4. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BUFHEBE (&)

(@)  Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B (&)

(iii)  Seventh Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)
FErmicHHBEETE (&)

Consolidated

o=
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNEagGika [iNEEE PN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2019 2019%F 4 B 1 B 248k 6,968 4,437
Income e
Grants/Donations ®HEIE B 4,192 4,056
4,192 4,056
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KRS BT ATHY
THEAE A
Teaching and Research Enhancement EHE R 6 144
Internationalisation and Student Exchange BIFRME R B4 RREE
Activities 2 54
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES 50 2,017
Bursaries BhEs N/A N/A
Student Development BaERE 4 113
Others Hith 61 360
123 2,688
Balance as at 31 March 2020 20209 3 A 31 Hz &8k 11,037 5,805
Expenditure by Level of Study THUBEBRESE)
Sub-degree Operations BEMEE - _
Degree and Above B FRE 123 2,688
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4.  GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

(@)  Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(iii)  Seventh Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)
ErmitEmE 2 E (&)

The Council
BN
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESEEE [iREEE=EN
HK$'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018 4 B 1 Az 458k - -
Income U z=
Grants/Donations wWEE B - -
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations LHREBE BRI AR
MHEIE A
Teaching and Research Enhancement HNEHERIAR - -
Internationalisation and Student Exchange BFRL R EBERREE
Activities - -
Scholarships and Prizes RELRES - -
Student Development BARE - -
Others Hith - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 20194 3 A 31 Hz &t - =
Expenditure by Level of Study TH(UBEREES A
Degree and above Bl tEE - -
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4.  GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

(@)  Matching Grants (Cont'd)

EimeE (&)

(iii)  Seventh Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)
FErmicHHBEETE (&)

The Council
BN
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNEagGika [iNEEE PN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2019 2019%F 4 B 1 B 248k - -
Income Wz
Grants/Donations whe B - =
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KHREBE BRI
THEAE A
Teaching and Research Enhancement REHERAR - S
Internationalisation and Student Exchange BIFRME R B4 RREE
Activities - -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES - -
Student Development BARE - -
Others Hith = =
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2020 3 A31 A&t = =
Expenditure by Level of Study THUBEBRESE)
Degree and above B U LRE - -
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)

BB ()

(iv)  Eighth Matching Grant Scheme
EN\EmEE B 258l

The 8th Matching Grant Scheme was launched from 1 July 2019 for a period of three years and covers the operations
funded by the Education Bureau (EDB) at sub-degree level or above on a matching basis.

M2019F 71 B BFHTAB=ZFNE \WERHHEEE > URHEXRERISHBERENRIZ N
RULREZEBEITF -

Consolidated

m;-b\é
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESECE [iREEE=EN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2019 2019 4 B 1 Hz &8k - -
Income U z=
Grants/Donations wWEE B 35,096 35,586
Interest Income FEWA 314 182
35,410 35,768
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KHREE BRI AR
MHEIE A
Teaching and Research Enhancement HNEHERIAR —~ -
Internationalisation and Student Exchange B LR EERZREE
Activities - -
Scholarships and Prizes BESRES —~ 15,488
Bursaries BhEs N/A -
Student Development BagEE - 5,296
Capital Projects 2RIEE N/A -
Others EHh - 31
- 20,815
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2020 3 B 31 H 24tk 35,410 14,953
Expenditure by Level of Study TH(UBERESHE)
Sub-degree operations BIEBNREE —~ 20,815

Degree and above B4 FRE _ _




4.  GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

(@)  Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B (&)

(iv)  Eighth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)
EN\EREH MBS E (F)

Balance as at 1 April 2019
Income
Grants/Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Internationalisation and Student Exchange
Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Bursaries

Student Development

Capital Projects

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree operations
Degree and above

2019%F 4 B 1 B2 &8k
W B
FIE WA

RRFBE BRAAH
1EBIE A
REHERE
B R EBEREE

BB %
BARRE
ERIAH
Hity

2020 3 A 31 Az&tk

X (BB REDH)
BZNREE
By EREE

The Council

BN
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NEagEnka [INECREEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
35,096 35,586
314 182
35,410 35,768
- 15,488
N/A -
- 5,296
N/A -
- 31
- 20,815
35,410 14,953
- 20,815
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(v) Research Matching Grant Scheme
MEBEHB £+ E

The Research Matching Grant Scheme was launched from 1 August 2019 for a period of three years and covers the
self-financing operation of local degree programmes of the Council on a matching basis.

H2019F 8 A1 R » BFHETAN=ZFNMARYWY SIS URHENRERIFAENRLE T BURE

HEE o
Consolidated
AN
wh 3
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
Fo¥f@Bh & [IREEE=ES
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2019 2019F 4 B 1 Az 458k - =
Income g
Grants/Donations wWEE B 77 137
77 137
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KRS BRI AT
MHEIE A
Research Project HRIEH - S
Research Equipment MR - 5
Research-related Software Licence/ E B E
Technology Licence FTAIE TR A R = -
Setting Up of Research Facilities PR IE - -
Research Fellowship and Awards MERESRES - =
Research Activities for Students EEWRES = 2
Capital Works 2RIEE = -
Others Hith = 15

Balance as at 31 March 2020 2020% 3 A 31 B 2458k 77 115




(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B (&)

(v)  Research Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)

R e T &l (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2019
Income
Grants/Donations

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Research Project

Research Equipment

Research-related Software Licence/
Technology Licence

Setting Up of Research Facilities

Research Fellowship and Awards

Research Activities for Students

Capital Works

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2020

2019%F 4 B 1 B2 &8k

wEE B

KRB B

1EBIE A

WRIEE

MERE

WS AERE R BRAF R AT
& BRI #
2R
MARBERRS
BEMFE
ERIAH

Hity

2020 3 A 31 Az&tk

The Council
B =
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
Fi¥tBh & [iNEEE PN
HK$’'000 HK$’000
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TUITION FEES AND TRAINING CHARGES

BERREZEH
Consolidated
o=
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Government-funded Programmes BT E BRI
Tuition Fees =25 705,071 752,742
Training Charges Byt 29,396 33,134
Non Government-funded Programmes B EBRE
Tuition Fees =25 840,796 886,007
Training Charges Byt 34,881 54,059
1,610,144 1,725,942
The Council
B
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Government-funded Programmes BN EBRE
Tuition Fees B2E 705,071 752,742
Training Charges FEEH 29,412 33,165
Non Government-funded Programmes BT EBRE
Tuition Fees =¥ 34,454 35,823
Training Charges FEEH 23,658 40,599
792,595 862,329

The Group and the Council has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to its contracts for tuition fees income such that
the above information does not include information about revenue that the Group and the Council will be entitled to when

it satisfies the remaining performance obligations under the contracts for tuition fees income that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.

AEBRBIFEEKEBUBRELEANE ISREAREBERAZEYN R LAERNTEREARBRBIIEEFEEE
BRTHRGENEEFERESHREG  HYREFAN —FREENER -



DONATIONS
B

Designated to Student Development Foundation
Capital Projects

Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Activities

Designated to Student Development Foundation
Capital Projects

Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Activities

OTHER INCOME
HABWA

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

BLruRES
ZERIEE

RESNRE
HtEE RS

BLuRES
EsRIEH

REGNRE
HtEE RS

AR ERANEERE
ZHARKEERERLE
HEEmUWA
BERiEHEWA
ARFEULA

Hpg A

Consolidated

=)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
16,463 2,058
5,295 3,126
28,337 16,998
9,393 4,872
59,488 27,054
The Council
B
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
16,463 2,058
5,295 3,126
24,817 15,243
28,864 26,941
75,439 47,368

Consolidated

=)

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
17,825 27,242
49,146 46,492
14,069 19,329
16,653 20,846
26,350 25,845
14,488 19,194
138,531 158,948
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50

OTHER INCOME (Cont'd)
Hittw A (&)

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

STAFF EXPENSES

BTMX

Salaries and Other Benefits
Contributions to Retirement Schemes

Salaries and Other Benefits
Contributions to Retirement Schemes

PR E A MRS
ZE R EEBKRE
HEEmUA
BEREESBA
BRAE UL A

Hitbg A

Ha Rk EMER
RARETEIEK

Hre R HAMER
RAFTEIEK

The Council
BN E

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
16,124 24,543
49,020 46,293
13,963 19,189
88,405 88,926
115,702 125,447
14,195 19,118
297,409 323,516

Consolidated

o=
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$’000
3,472,468 3,360,672
204,497 208,506
3,676,965 3,569,178
The Council
B3 &

2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$’000
2,984,979 2,861,995
194,556 198,164
3,179,635 3,060,159




SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
AEERHGEEHENSEEHE

Surplus is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
BHEHR(GTA) U TER -

Consolidated

=)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Interest Expense MEZH 23,964 25,868
Depreciation (Note 13) e (MEE13)
— Other Property, Plant and Equipment - HAihWpZE - MBS ER1E 310,225 310,052
- Right-of-use Assets - fFREEE 4,150 -
Total minimum lease payments for leases SAIRIB(EBEFTERDE 1758
previously classified as operating leases under RHEAKREHENATRER
HKAS 17 =XNEN - 6,054
Auditor’s Remuneration AN & 1,110 1,027
Net Foreign Exchange Loss/(Gain) SNEEEE, (W) 2,129 (246)
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Property, Plant and HEWE  MEENFREZ
Equipment Eia (k) 20 (156)
The Council
31 =
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest Expense FMEXH 23,964 25,868
Depreciation (Note 13) e (Miz£13)
— Other Property, Plant and Equipment - Hi¥=€ - R RRE 302,785 304,668
- Right-of-use Assets -EAREE 4,150 -
Total minimum lease payments for leases SRIRB(EBETHERNE 1758
previously classified as operating leases under BEAKESHENETRKEHE
HKAS 17 =XNEN - 6,054
Auditor’s Remuneration ZEETEN S 667 623
Net Foreign Exchange Loss/(Gain) SNEFEER S (E) 2,276 9)
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Property, Plant and HEWE - MERREZ
Equipment E1a (k) 5 (155)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at

1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets which were previously included in property, plant and
equipment is also identified as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 April 2019, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(c).

THBERER(E B BREEDDE 165% » WERAKMER ZEBME » TAE2019F 4 A 1 AV AERAER LA RIE
(BRSHEANE1I7THNFERCLEHENHERFAEERE - WEFAYE KBERZENREHEEENITEREER
BRAREAEEE - AR UEEHENRUESEIBEILEHENHE I HNBER  AEBEREARHEANR2019F 481
HYTHACAREER  ARIEAREENTE - RBUSZE  LHERFTES - F2HMEE2(C) °
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10.

11.

52

TAXATION
Bi1E

Apart from VTC Enterprises Limited (VTCEL), the Council and its other subsidiaries are exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax
by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. VTCEL did not generate any assessable profit during the year.
REBZEIRBEEBRITIN - BB REKE A AIRBEEBRBEIRMIE 881%  BHARBMREBRIEN - BEIRBLZE
BRABERFERBEAEFHFE o

RESERVES
BT
Consolidated and the Council
e KB
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance at the Beginning of the Financial Year BB B S Y 4k ek 354,553 369,881
Amount Transferred to Specific and Other Funds AEEESEERAER
During the Year (Note 12) HiE® (MiEE12) (124,919) (211,907)
Surplus Transferred from Statement of EE2EKERNBER
Comprehensive Income 143,041 196,579
Balance at the End of the Financial Year BB B AR AR ER 372,675 354,553

Reserves are any savings from the recurrent government subventions for activities (other than those in respect of the Shine
Skills Centres) arising from any reasons other than a curtailment or cessation of activity in the Annual Plan, a surplus in tuition
fee income where the fee levels are approved by the Government and which is required to be returned to the Government, or
reduction in remuneration for its staff as a direct consequence of changes in the civil service. The level of reserves shall not, at
any one point in time, exceed 15% of its annual recurrent subvention in the financial year. Amount in excess of the limit should
be returned to the Government in the following financial year.

RETREILFEHEABAKSELHPE (REFREERR P ORI WEMZEERE(HREF T EIME T/FEEBBUSS
ERMEENRERE  CBAREZZERANBHRMXEFERERANBESIETHEERA L ABEERKRGREHE
FEOR D NBEERIN) o TREEAFRE  FESHEBEITSEEBRIEFELEHY M 15% - BERIEEET —EH
BFERETHUT °



12.

(a)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS

BERBRHEMES

Fund Balances
i=Reo 1

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(p)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(p)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 12(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(p)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(p)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 12(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

&R (K 20)0)

- BRIRMRGBES

FERHEBE (K 20)0)

-BRRE
HitgRgeEs
BRHEEEER

(M 12(d))
fESEeER
BEEFER
B

EfeiEREEs

FEERBE (MR 2(0)()

- BRIEMEES

FEERBE (MR 200)0)

-BRERE
HftEREEES
BB ERNEE

(M 12(d))
RESERER
BERFER
B

EfiEREES

Consolidated

&
Transfer from/(to)
Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2018 Income (Note 11) 31.3.2019
201845 &g/(%) RHBES B 2019%
4R 1R%&# PARER (MEF12) 3A31BE%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,631,509 59,075 - 1,690,584
79,514 (7,571) 6,085 78,028
808,558 (143,415) 236,953 902,096
2,259,008 202,321 (6,085) 2,455,244
89,243 (14,381) - 74,862
10,585 25,046 (25,046) 10,585
4878417 121,075 211,907 5,211,399
Consolidated
= A
=]
Transfer from/(to)
Statement of Inter-Fund

Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2019 Income (Note 11) 31.3.2020
2019F 2g/(%) RBELER 2020
4R 1BE8 PARER (MizE12) 3B31 B4
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,690,584 220,153 - 1,910,737
78,028 (13,524) 3,875 68,379
902,096 (336,421) 154,533 720,208
2,455,244 181,947 (3,875) 2,633,316
74,862 17,371 - 92,233
10,585 29,614 (29,614) 10,585
5,211,399 99,140 124,919 5,435,458
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12.

(a)

54

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)

BERAZEREMES (&)

Fund Balances (Cont'd)
EE#EeR ()

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(p)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(p)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 12(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(p)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(p)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 12(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

FEEHBE (K 20)0)

-BRIEREES

FEEHBE (K 20)0)

- ERRA
HitgREEES
BHBERER

(M 12(d)
fRE2EER
BEREER
B

HRERRES

FE2HEHE (FE20)0)

- BRIEMEES

FE2HEHE (FE20)0)

- BRERE
HiiEREEES
HRHEESES

(MzE12(d))
f#ESEsER
BEREER
B

AREREES

The Council
BB
Transfer from/(to)
Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2018 Income (Note 11) 31.3.2019
2018 gg/(2) AHELER 20195
4R1RER PARER (e 1) 3B 31 BLH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
1,631,509 59,075 - 1,690,584
79,514 (7,571) 6,085 78,028
808,558 (143,415) 236,953 902,096
1,700,549 112,765 (6,085) 1,807,229
89,243 (14,381) - 74,862
10,585 25,046 (25,046) 10,585
4,319,958 31,519 211,907 4,563,384
The Council
BAIR
Transfer from/(to)
Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2019 Income (Note 11) 31.3.2020
20194 €8/(3) hipEsuER 2020
4R 1RER 2ERER (PfEE12) 3R 31 REH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,690,584 220,153 - 1,910,737
78,028 (13,524) 3,875 68,379
902,096 (336,421) 154,533 720,208
1,807,229 103,530 (3,875) 1,906,884
74,862 17,371 - 92,233
10,585 29,614 (29,614) 10,585
4,563,384 20,723 124,919 4,709,026




12.

(b)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BEAZRAMES (B)

Nature and Purpose of Specific and Other Funds

BER

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

BRHEMESTCMEREN

Non-recurrent Subventions
FREHEE

The non-recurrent subventions are one-off funds approved by the Government earmarked for capital expenditure
purposes relating to building projects, capital projects and capital items.

FEFHPERBF—RENER  ZHDSAERFIE BRIBNEREBNERZH -

Other Capital Projects Fund
HihZRmEES

Other capital projects fund represents the balance of net book value of property, plant and equipment that are financed
by various fundings.

Htt2REEESR/YE BB NREREFENGS  WEEERTRESENER -

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
BB ERNEE

In addition to the Government subventions, specific Government grants have been obtained to support the
development of specific education projects.

BRT BB EI  FTHERERRNBRBRUAXERERSHAZHE

Projects Funded by Reserves
#ETEREE

Projects funded by reserves are projects financed by the Council’s reserves, which are savings from the recurrent
subventions (see Note 11).

RETERERBBIIBNFESEYN - ZRFEREEHE SN RERE B2RAME11) -

Self-financing Activities
BEREEE

Self-financing activities fund represents accumulated surpluses generated from the self-financed programmes and
activities.

BEREIRE WESREEZTSFD P RENRER -

Donations

B

Donations fund is used to support the operations of the Council and for general education purposes.

BRNESARIERIIBNEFEN—RHBBHE -

Other Specific Funds
HittSsERARES

Other specific funds are subsidies obtained from organisations other than Government bodies designated for specific
purposes.

HBEARESRAFBNAPINESIERN  ZEESKARNEEERN
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(c)

(d)
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SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BERZRAMES (K)

Capital Management

ARG

The Group is a not-for-profit organisation aiming to provide vocational education and training in the region. The Group defines
capital as including reserves and specific and other funds. These funds, including inter-fund transfers, are managed in
accordance with the Group’s financial management policies and procedures and the relevant funding conditions, where
applicable. The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a strong financial base to support the development of the Group.

AEBRIFLNHME  EERUEANNEXHFEI - ARBNELEERESRETARRAMES - ELES (BERX
HECER) RREARBNVREERICK BEFREBESHMTRE (NER) REEN - ARBEEEELE  TEH
CRBRRTHBREEHENKER D RESER2NMBERUZFARBIER -

There has been no change in the Group’s capital management practices as compared to prior year. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirement.

HEEFELE  ARBALRIBERBENEENME - ARBEFTEFEMAIMENESRE -

Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes
REFEERERLEEYHITEE

Projects funded by Government Agencies included balance of Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time
Programmes.

HFHBEN AR hEERENEXEREZLEEHAITIHE 2 EtR -

The Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes is to provide tuition fee reimbursement for
students pursuing relevant self-financing part-time programmes within areas of study/training in Architecture and Town
Planning or Engineering and Technology under classification of the Hong Kong Qualifications Register, offered by the Council.
60% of the tuition fees of eligible programmes, subject to a maximum of $45,000 per person, will be refunded to successful
applicants. The tuition fee will be refunded by instalments at the end of each term of the programme upon successful
completion. Each applicant may apply for fee refund for not more than two programmes under the Pilot Scheme.

BRI EEREEEEDHTHEANEARI B RENEBEEEMNELR BB TE [ZERHMRE IR ITE
KA | ERIRENEEREREATRHEEEY - BHEDNFFBATRERESERRECREE » LIRABAEE
45,0007 - ERTEEIT > BFARZARBFREMERENZE  MBESHPNPBEAADNBE—E2HNRERE
% o
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(d)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BEAZRAMES (B)

Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes (Cont'd)

FETEEREELEEHAITHE (E)

The financial position in respect of Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes as at 31 March

is disclosed below:

BE3 AL HRBEHEXEREZELEPATHENYBARROT ¢

Balance as at 1 April

Government Subventions Received
— Tuition Fees Subsidy
— Administrative Fees

Less: Expenditure
— Fees Disbursed to 4,208 (2019 : 3,512)
Beneficiaries

— Administrative Cost

Balance as at 31 March

Represented by:
Tuition Fees Subsidy
Administrative Fees

4 B 1 B4R

EWZBAFER)
-E28EE
- 1THE

WX
- BX 14 4,20812
(2019 % : 3,51211)
SEURMNER
- TR AR

3 A 31 A#E
EIFRIESE -

BEEY
THE

Consolidated and the Council

e REEHE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
12,147 9,918
49,000 34,000
4,600 2,000
53,600 36,000
(40,610) (32,600)
(3,172) (1,171)
(43,782) (33,771)
21,965 12,147
18,932 10,542
3,033 1,605
21,965 12,147
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

L Y S
Consolidated
&a
Buildings Construction Improvement Furniture and Computer
(Note 3) in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
BT (FE3) EEIR HEIR FERZHE BB H)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost KA
At 1 April 2018 20184 A 1H 4,103,892 60,614 1,715,172 489,005 398,305 6,766,988
Additions HE - 91,949 3,973 81,532 39,633 217,087
Capitalisation Adjustment (Note 13(a)) BAMLHZ (MizF13(a)) - - (339) - - (339)
Transfer to Buildings/Improvement ~ BERFMNEEERE
Works upon Completion of Projects BF/MEIR 22,033 (128,039) 106,006 - - -
Disposals e - - - (5,757) (7,053) (12,810)
At 31 March 2019 201938318 4,125,925 24,524 1,824,812 564,780 430,885 6,970,926
Accumulated Depreciation 2:irE
At 1 April 2018 20184 A 1H 441,191 - 1,411,474 298,632 311,009 2,462,306
Charge for the Year KEEHE 100,962 - 118,062 51,130 39,898 310,052
Written Back on Disposals HEAEE - - - (5,585) (7,053) (12,638)
At 31 March 2019 201938318 542,153 - 1,529,536 344177 343,854 2,759,720
Net Book Value REFE
At 31 March 2019 2019F3A31H 3,583,772 24,524 295,276 220.603 87,031 4,211,206




13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

I - R KR (&)

Cost

At 31 March 2019

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 16 (Note 13(d))

At 1 April 2019

Additions

Capitalisation Adjustment (Note 13(a))

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement Works
upon Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2020

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2019

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2020

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2020

S

201938318

NRER(ERHEREE
B)E 168 mzE
(FEE13(d))

2019F4 718

22

B {cH% (i 13(a)

FoRRNBEEERZ
BT/HEIR

e

2020%3A318

ZiffiE
201954A18
REERE
HERER

2020F3A31H

REFE
2020F3A31H

Consolidated

A
Y=

Other

Properties

Leased for

OwnUse  Construction  Improvement  Furniture and Computer

Buildings (Note 13(d)) in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total

2R A

U
gr  (WER) ERIE YEIR  HARRE Bkt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4,125,925 - 24,524 1,824,812 564,780 430,885 6,970,926
- 4,202 - - - - 4,202
4,125,925 4,202 24,524 1,824,812 564,780 430,885 6,975,128
193,325 9,464 129,313 4,204 66,284 33,156 435,746
10,265 - (111,305) 101,040 - - -
- - - - (5,362) (11,499) (16,861)
4,329,515 13,666 42,532 1,930,056 625,702 452542 7,394,013
542,153 - - 1,529,536 344177 343,854 2,759,720
100,353 4,150 - 108,010 61,630 40,232 314,375
- - - - (5,245) (11,482) (16,727)
642,506 4150 - 1,637,546 400,562 372,604 3,057,368
3,687,009 9,516 42,532 292,510 225,140 79,938 4,336,645
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Y% - HaER e ()

Cost

At 1 April 2018

Additions

Transfer to Buildings/
Improvement Works upon
Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2019

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2018

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2019

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2019

AR
2018F 4R 1R
BE

RCZHRAVEEBRE

BT/ BEIR
e
2019F 38318

gt E
2018%4 18
REERE
HER B

2019F 38318

REFE
2019%3A31H

The Council
B
Campus
usedbya
Subsidiary Buildings  Construction  Improvement  Furniture and Computer
(Note 13(b)) (Note 3) in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
HELAR
RIS g5
(FEE13(0) (KizE3) HRIR HEIR  GAREE kiRt st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,258,034 2,845,858 60,614 1,710,139 479,344 377,460 6,731,449
- - 90,704 - 79,647 37,113 207,464
19,835 2,198 (128,039) 106,006 - - -
- - - - (5,668) (7,003) (12,671)
1,277,869 2,848,056 23279 1,816,145 553,323 407,570 6,926,242
75,094 366,097 - 1,407,663 294,906 294,409 2,438,169
28,229 72,733 - 117,597 48,613 37,516 304,688
- - - - (5,496) (7,003) (12,499
103,323 438,830 - 1,525,260 338,023 324,922 2,730,358
1,174,546 2,409,226 23279 290,885 215,300 82,648 4,195,884




13.

(a)

(b)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

Y% - BES R (&)
The Council
BAR
Other
Campuses Properties
Used by a Leased for
Subsidiary Buildings OwnUse  Construction  Improvement  Furniture and Computer
(Note 13(b)) (Note 3)  (Note 13(d) in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
il P! BB R
#h2Rs 8 BN
(WE13p)  (WaE3)  (WE13) KRIR YEIR  HERRR Bk 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost B
At 31 March 2019 2019%3831H 1,217,869 2,848,056 - 23279 1,816,145 553,323 407,570 6,926,242
Impact on initial application of ?JJ}AJ@FH((E %Wiﬁmﬁa“})

HKFRS 16 (Note 13(d) E165MTB (R 13) - - 4202 - - - - 4202
At 1 April 2019 019F481H 1,277,869 2,848,056 4,202 23219 1,816,145 553,323 407,570 6,930,444
Additions KE - 193,325 9,464 129,313 - 63,140 28322 423,564
Transfer to Buildings/Improvement EERRiERERE

Works upon Completion of Projects BT /HEIR 5,958 4,307 - (110,060) 99,795 - - -
Disposals HE = = = = = (5,312) (11,342) (16,654)
At 31 March 2020 2020538318 1,283,821 3,045,688 13,666 42,532 1,915,940 611,151 424,550 7,337,354
Accumulated Depreciation ZithE
At 31 March 2019 2019F3531H 103,323 438,830 - - 1,525,260 338,023 324,922 2,730,358
Charge for the Year REERE 28,015 72,338 4150 - 106,373 58389 37,670 306,935
Written Back on Disposals HEADH = = = = = (5,195) (11,34) (16,536)
At 31 March 2020 2020%£3831H 131,338 511,168 4,150 - 1,631,633 391,217 351,261 3,020,757
Net Book Value ¥
At 31 March 2020 2020%F3831H 1,152,489 2,534,520 9,516 42532 284,307 219934 73,299 4,316,597

Capitalisation Adjustment

BER(LAE

Capitalisaton adjustments relate to the building projects capitalised based on contractors’ claimed value which have been

adjusted following the finalisation of contract values.

EXMCRAERENRLBIDBRBANTERNIREEREMNEFER  RFRARRLKS

Campuses Used by a Subsidiary

MELRERZRE

WEEMRAE -

Use of the campuses located at Tsing Yi and Chai Wan are shared among the Council and the Technological and Higher

Education Institute of Hong Kong. The lands on which the buildings erected are granted under Private Treaty by the Government
for a term of 56 years from April 1991 to June 2047 and 10 years from February 2014 to February 2024 respectively. The
purpose of the buildings is to provide education and training services. Because of the special restricted purposes including
specific uses and absolute prohibition against alienations, comparable market transaction and alternative reliable estimate of
fair value are not available and hence no reliable fair value of the property could be obtained.
URBRNELENRSABIBEREEBSEXANBEERALBEER - ZLHUMABOLTXNBBFE - 255856 FH
1991 F 4 AZE 2047 F6 AM10FEH2014F 2 AE2024F 2 B » WAFIREHBEFRERIZINIRYE - HR BB ENRS (&2
RETRAZRRELER)  REEEZWSRXZREMAEZETAARBEITER  WIBUIENQARE -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Y% - HaER e ()

Interests in Leasehold Land
HE TR

The Council holds interests in leasehold land and buildings associated with the following properties, the costs of which were
financed by government subventions or other sources of fundings, and were fully written off in prior years.

BIREEUATMREHELHREFTHESR - HRAHABFENEIEMESRKIFMEY  YERUEFETREH -

(i)

(iii)

Campuses completed prior to the setting up of the Council and taken over from the Government by the Council at nil
value which include the four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill, Kwai Chung,
Kwun Tong and Haking Wong), Haking Wong Seafront Complex and Shine Skills Centre (Kwun Tong).
BFREBHETHIBRABINBRIACELNRESEE DBEBEXRFER (BREHR) 2RE - BEE
W~ 358 BENERS  ERmE8REERERERREREDO (BE) -

The VTC Tower, four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi, Chai Wan, Tuen Mun and
Sha Tin), the VTC Kowloon Bay Complex, VTC Kwai Chung Complex, VTC Pokfulam Complex, Maritime Services Training
Institute and Shine Skills Centre (Pokfulam and Tuen Mun) which were constructed after the setting up of the Council
and financed by government subventions.

BEIRBAE IEEHHRE2RE - 5K~ 508 - BRAYPH - BEIRBNEEZRE  BEIRFZZHAE -

BEINRBDEHEMARE - BEIIRERRBREFEERDO CERMEER) SRBENBEH L EERLBABA#ED

&hp e

The staff quarters at Chai Wan and the premises at Billion Plaza | which were financed by loan facilities, donations, and
other funds.

VARENBEBEERERES —HHNYE  YHER  BRREMESEY -

Most of the interests in leasehold land are restricted to own use by the Council.

AEoHELNER IEBIEER -
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(d)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Y% - HaER e ()

Right-of-use Assets
EREEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

EAEEENRIFEREBEEERNFTAOT -

31 March 1 April
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 F
3H31H 481H
HK$'000 HK$'000
Other Properties Leased for Own Use, Hg HEEWE
Carried at Depreciated Cost BITER A 9,516 4,202
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:
A EMRENRXBEEIABERAINAOT ¢
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Depreciation Charge of Right-of-use Assets by ZAEBREERIN
Class of Underlying Asset: FREEENEER
Other Properties Leased for Own Use HihE AHEEME 4,150 -
Interest on Lease Liabilities HEEERNE 153 -
Total Minimum Lease Payments for Leases SRIRIB(EAETER)
Previously Classified as Operating Leases FITHEEAKLEREN
under HKAS 17 BETREHEENRK - 6,054

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at

1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets which were previously included in property, plant and
equipment is also identified as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 April 2019, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(c).

AEBERERCEBMBRELEL)E 1655 WERAKKII 2BWE » THE2019F 4 A 1 B WY AR AR AR
(BERESHEANEI7THNFERRLEHENHERFAEERE - WEFAYE - KBERRENREHEEENITEREER
BRARBEAREE - AARUIEHENRUESLIERELEHENHES I HNEBER  AEBIEARBE AR 201954 A
1RYSHRACAREER  ARIALAREENTE - REBELFZE  HHERTTES - F2RHME2(c) °

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were $9,464,000. This amount related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under new tenancy agreements.

AEENEREEEIRERM64B T A RENHEHRRMNERLEENSHRER -

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from leases are set out in notes 18(e).

HERENIB D& ERERREARRR S RAMEE 18(e) FFt -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HB A TNKRE
The Council
BalE
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
Unlisted shares, at cost LR - RERA 100 100

The particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

MERBMNFENT

64

Proportion of
Ownership Interest
REREME
Place of Incorporation  Particulars of Issued and Held by the Held by
Name of Company and Operation Paid Up Capital Council Subsidiary  Principal Activities
AFER AMRIREERE  ERORARRARE BilENE WEARKE  TEEE
VTC School of Business and Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of vocational education and
Information Systems £ ERBRAR training
BEIRRIHERER RUBFEB R
Technological and Higher Education Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of career-oriented degree
Institute of Hong Kong £ ERERAR programmes
BEBZHENRER RUNBXAANE LSRR
VTC Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - Investment holding
BEIRRLXARAA B Jif3 1001 REER
VTC School for Higher and Professional Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Provision of continuing education and
Education (SHAPE) B ERERLA training
ZEEHBER SHAPE) RUEBEEBRIIRER
The Institute of Professional Educational And ~ Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Provision of continuing education and
Knowledge (PEAK) oy ERERLR training
REEBER PEAK) RUBZEERNRTRS
* VIC Training Company Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Provision of vocational education,
BEEIERAR &h B3 100% professional training and development
senvices
RUBRER  EXIRREREH
¥+ \TC Social Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Operation of a café to create employment
BEIRRHLERLE &# ERERDR and training opportunities for disabled
students
REWUE  ARRSERAREAE
ke
* VTC Training Company Limited became dormant as from 1 April 2014. By virtue of Section 447 of the Companies Ordinance, a
dormant company is exempted from the annual audit of its financial statements.
H2014F 4B 1B BEFEIERATNBTEH AT - RIBATRGIZE 447 1% » TEBH L RERRFEMBRERNET -
k%

VTC Social Enterprises Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance on 11 July 2018.

BEIRBELARD AN 2018 F 7 A 11 BREB(D AHRHDEEBEMMAL
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16.

LOANS TO STAFF
ETIER

In conjunction with Hang Seng Bank Limited (Bank), the Council launched in April 1996 a Staff Loan Scheme to provide
financial assistance to members of the Council’s Provident Fund Scheme, part of which has subsequently been restructured
by setting up a new scheme called Vocational Training Council Provident Fund Scheme (1999) (collectively known as

the Schemes). An unsecured loan facility of HK$30 million has been arranged with the Bank for on-lending to qualified

staff members. The loans to staff are repayable in accordance with repayment schedules of which HK$979,000 (2019 :
HK$465,000) is repayable within 1 year.

BIBEEERITHERAR (BBIRIT) S N1996F 4 AARIBABETE(E/IEL - BITHL THEINRE A
BEE(—nhh)  #RAEETE) AN EREETERGE  RUEMBIEE - RITSRMERSUEEE 33,0008 TH
BEFER  ABIISEEETEERET - ZETERERREE  MEPEBEI7.9E T (20195 : B¥46.58T) &
R—FRNFRE

The loan granted to each staff member is limited to 60% of the individual’s provident fund benefit entitlement at the time of
application. In case of default on repayment, the Council can exercise its right to request the Trustees of the Schemes to retain
an amount equivalent to such indebtedness out of any benefits payable to the individual under the Schemes.
BEEINENEREE RRAREPARRIZEAEEEHEENGCO% - EE T REEMKIER > BIIREEERAESFTEN
FRA REBEEIEARETTEEESNEND » HIKREERERMNEEE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEWARIE « FE IR KR At B U AR 1R

Consolidated

=)

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accounts Receivable (Note 16(b)) FEURBRIE (K{3E 16(b)) 146,574 6,018
Other Receivables H b FE YR BR TS 76,491 117,211
Prepayments Fa{SFRIE 39,300 49,086
Utilities and Other Deposits KERHMES 30 37
262,395 172,352

The Council
el

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accounts Receivable (Note 16(b)) FEURBRIE (BdEE 16(b)) 105,527 3,683
Other Receivables H b FE R BRIE 70,111 114,104
Prepayments FERRIE 36,561 39,541
212,199 157,328

Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments, utilities and other deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

FEWERTE ~ EMEWIRTE - AR - KEREMEZS  FHER -—FRAREORERR/FX °
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(b)
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEWBRTE - TR FRIE R A A PRI ARIE ()

Impairment of Accounts Receivable
FE W BRI 2 R {E

The Group and the Council measure loss allowances for receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. Given the Group and the Council has not experienced any significant credit losses in the
past, the allowance for expected credit losses is insignificant.

AHBRBIBFTERKRENELAEES  SEENKFECL FTABEEEGTE - ERAKBRBIGEB XX &E(M
ERGEFE HHGEEEBERBRUIRE -

At 31 March 2020, none of the Group’s and the Council’s accounts receivable (2019 : Nil) were individually determined to be
impaired.

R2020F 3 B 31 H » AHBREE M EVIRKERIEE R LERE (2019 F : &) -
Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired

TMERIE 2 R ARIR

Accounts receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s and the Council’'s
credit policy are set out in Note 21(a).

FE U fRIE — AR FR 3 EE B HEST 30 HAEIE - AEBRBIIREEERFBE HIINMFE21(a) °

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

HEimER HESWERBRRITERE - HEREIMWT -

Consolidated

=)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired REBEFEE 144,875 2,843
Less than 1 Month Past Due BHEADKR—EA 337 2,161
More than or Equal to 1 Month Past Due ERBBEHZHR—EA 1,362 1,014
146,574 6,018




16.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEURBRTE ~ TR FRIE I E A R AR TE (%)

(b)  Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired (Cont’d)
TERE 2 B BR1E (&)

The Council
B

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

Neither Past Due nor Impaired RAEBEFRE 104,325 1,838
Less than 1 Month Past Due BN —EA 126 940
More than or Equal to 1 Month Past Due ZENHBEAZA—EA 1,076 905
105,527 3,683

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of individuals for whom there was no recent history
of default.

REBHMBRENEBYRARSI R —FHRBIRIERELNERNAL

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent individuals and organisations that have
a good track record with the Group and the Council. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Council does not hold any collateral over these balances.
EBRMESERENERRERSY R —FHEARBERBISERFCENBLENALTNAS - REBELE  EEER
ARBEREEENFTE RAGEEZEREEANE BEERANEAUZHWE - AEERBIBIERRBREE
g m o

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ReRRESEEY
(@) Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprise
RERBRSEEYEIE
Consolidated
o=
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Original Maturity DNREAEDR=EAWN
less than Three Months IRITEHER 4,281,000 1,399,000
Cash at Bank and On Hand IRITERKREAS 35,851 23,044
Cash and Cash Equivalents BERIBLSEEY 4,316,851 1,422,044
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17.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont'd)
RERRESEY (E)

(@)  Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprise (Cont'd)
RERBSEEYEE (B

The Council
B3I
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Original Maturity EZEEDR=EAN
less than Three Months RITEHFER 4,281,000 1,399,000
Cash at Bank and On Hand RITFEREES 17,113 7,638
Cash and Cash Equivalents BHERRESZEY 4,298,113 1,406,638

(b)  Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities
BMETBEENEBELHIR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

TRAMARBRBETHPIELEZEEEEY  ERERENFRELY -BHETHEENEERERENIARKRREER
HERERERPIELRMETH 2EA
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Consolidated and the Council

e RBIE

Loan from
Lease Government
Liabilities (Note 19) Total
BREMR
HESE (FFEE19) HEH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 April 2018 2018F 4 A1 H - 517,356 517,356
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: METEEEZRERE
/R
Repayment of Loan BEEX — (67,000) (67,000)
Total Changes from Financing RS EETEE 2
Cash Flows B e a - (67,000) (67,000)
Other Changes: Hibh& g :
Amortisation of Deferred Interest ANEEEE 2 IEE
Expenses for the Year MEZH - 25,868 25,868
Unamortised Deferred Interest Expenses R IELER S = - -
Total Other Changes FEN=R k) - 25,868 25,868
At 31 March 2019 2019% 3 A31H - 476,224 476,224




17.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont'd)
BeRRESEY (E)

(b)  Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities (Cont'd)
RETBEENEEHIR (E)

Consolidated and the Council

HRERBEIE

Loan from
Lease Government
Liabilities (Note 19) Total
BRFER
HEESE (FFaE19) wact
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 31 March 2019 2019% 3 H31H - 476,224 476,224
Impact on initial application of TIRERKE B BREZEL)

HKFRS 16 (Note 2(c)) E 16 RN E (HEE2(c)) 4,202 = 4,202
At 1 April 2019 2019F 48 1H 4,202 476,224 480,426
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: RMETBMEEZ

REREE :
Repayment of Loan BEE = (67,000) (67,000)
Capital Element of Finance Lease TMEREREEZ
Rentals Paid BRI (3,117) = (3,117)
Interest Element of Finance Lease THmEEERE
Rentals Paid F 2 Z45 (153) = (153)
Total Changes from Financing Cash Flows  #ERi&EEEEE >
HEREE (3,270) (67,000) (70,270)
Other Changes: Hith& s
Increase in Lease Liabilities from HETHEENEEEE
Entering into New Leases During Z 380
the Period 9,464 - 9,464
Amortisation of Deferred Interest REEHE 2 IEER S
Expenses for the Year i 153 23,811 23,964

Total Other Changes BH M) 9,617 23,811 33,428

At 31 March 2020 20203 H31H 10,549 433,035 443,584
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18.

(a)

70

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FEATERTE - St - HttEMNRERESENERE

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

FEASRRIE ~ FERT SO R AR ARE

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Lease Liabilities (Note 18(e))

Accruals

Deposits and Retentions Withheld

Receipts in Advance

Subventions Repayable to Government
(Note 18(c))

Non-current Liability
Lease Liabilities (Note 18(e))

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable (Note 18(b))

Lease Liabilities (Note 18(e))

Accruals

Deposits and Retentions Withheld

Receipts in Advance

Amounts Due to Subsidiaries

Subventions Repayable to Government
(Note 18(c))

Non-current Liability
Lease Liabilities (Note 18(e))

REBRE

FE{FBRIE

HEBE (MEE18(e))

st

RERRES

FEWFRIE

ESEEBNNHER S
(FfFaE 18(c))

ERBERE
HEEE (MEE18(e))

REEE

P BRIE (FffEE 18(b))
FHESE (MEE18(e))
st H
RERRES
FEWFRIE
BN R FRIE
ESREBRFNER S
(FIEE 18(c))

FRBEE
HESE (FIEE18(e))

Consolidated

o=
31 March 1 April 31 March
2020 2019 2019
2020 F 20194 2019 %
3H31H 481H 3H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
252,918 240,782 240,782
4,958 2,375 _
376,437 412,346 412,346
33,554 31,950 31,950
523,180 598,174 598,174
14,819 6,128 6,128
1,205,866 1,291,755 1,289,380
5,591 1,827 -
The Council
BN
31 March 1 April 31 March
2020 2019 2019
2020 2019 2019
3HA31H 481H 3A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
197,082 192,357 192,357
4,958 2,375 _
367,593 403,532 403,532
33,289 31,737 31,737
271,132 300,356 300,356
1,015,421 1,010,171 1,010,171
14,819 6,128 6,128
1,904,294 1,946,656 1,944,281
5,591 1,827 -

The contractual undiscounted values of accounts payable, accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were
the same as their respective carrying values.

BZ2020F3A31HKX 20193 A31 B » BIERIE - Bt HRHMEMNRENREEESERITREERER -



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEAYRRIE ~ FESTSH - HttEMRERESRENEE GE)

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables (Cont'd)
FETBRIA - FEST ST R HAb BT BRIE (48)

Certain tuition fees were received and unearned before the end of the reporting period. They are treated as receipts in advance
and will be recognised as revenue within one year from the end of the reporting period.

MHOBRBWEEL RN BEPRIBEA - BEBBRIIATAUE » WERBERR -FABIR/BA -

Consolidated

Movement in receipts in advance FaURFhIE 2 2 E) o
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1 B8R 598,174 615,152
Decrease as a result of recognising HRFERERBWRA TR
revenue during the year (598,174) (615,152)
Increase as a result of receipts in FR 7 78 U R B T 4 A
advance of service rendered 523,180 598,174
Balance at 31 March 3 A 31 H&E 523,180 598,174
The Council
Movement in receipts in advance FEUWFRIE = B B B3N
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1 B#8k 300,356 317,973
Decrease as a result of recognising HRFRERBRA D
revenue during the year (300,356) (317,973)
Increase as a result of receipts in R FEYR SR IE MG AN
advance of service rendered 271,132 300,356
Balance at 31 March 3A31A%&8k 271,132 300,356

Accounts payable included balance of government subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students (see Note
18(b)).
ENREEFEENOEIZMUTEESLERENZEEY (F2HME 18(b) °
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18.

(b)

72

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEATRRTE - FESTSH - AR RERESENERE (&)

Government Subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students
BRAORIEVREEATELERHNEEER

The Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students is to provide tuition fee reimbursement and flat-rate academic expenses
grant for needy students pursuing programmes below sub-degree level. Full or half level of tuition fee reimbursement will be
granted to students assessed to be eligible to receive full or half grant under the students means-test mechanism of the
Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency respectively. If students pursue programmes of duration at one year
or above, they may also receive full or half level of the flat-rate academic expenses grant.

BB ANBERIERUU T REENFERERHEBEY R BRI ERRY - BENMBERERRERBEEEBEN
AEREEEE  WNELHENFHEEDER SR ELARFHEEERE - ERENRERE—FHUL  TARE
RHENFENE BRI TR -

Balance as at 31 March is disclosed below:

3A31B&WT :

Consolidated and the Council

e kBEE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1B 6,749 9,680
Government Subventions Received B Wz BT &R 48,000 40,000
Less: Fees Disbursed to Beneficiaries Tuition Fees & : B (1A SEH RS
Reimbursement EBEh
— Full-rate for 1,347 (2019 : 1,440) Beneficiaries -1,34712 (2019 % :
1,4401%) 2XEF
=HZR (27,068) (29,160)
- Half-rate for 782 (2019 : 901) Beneficiaries - 78217 (2019 % :
9011y) ¥REZE
ESE (7,985) (9,288)
(35,053) (38,448)
Flat-rate Academic Expenses Grant BRI EERER
— Full-rate for 1,351 (2019 : 1,417) Beneficiaries -1,35117 (2019 % :
1,41710) 2REZEEHR (3,317) (3,387)
- Half-rate for 812 (2019 : 917) Beneficiaries - 81217 (2019 % :
0171y ) HEZHHR (991) (1,096)
(4,308) (4,483)
Balance as at 31 March 3B 31 B&ER 15,388 6,749




18.

()

(d)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEAYRRIE ~ FESTSH - HttEMRERESRENEE GE)

Subventions Repayable to Government

FESREZEMNHEES
Consolidated and the Council
FERBIE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1 B&eR 6,128 8,769
Less: Amount Refunded to Government W AFECRENG
during the Year SO E (6,128) (8,769)
Subventions Refundable to Education Bureau EREXERNEES
— Capital Works Reserve Fund -ERIEHEES | 5,714 || -
5,714 -
Subventions Refundable to Labour and Welfare ERELS T RENRNERS
Bureau
— Recurrent Subventions - REWHEhE 7,699 5,123
— Capital Accounts - B3R RE 1,406 1,005
9,105 6,128
Balance as at 31 March 3 A 31 B&ER 14,819 6,128

Provision for Employee Benefits
EEEFEE

Provision for employee benefits relates to various allowances and benefits, mainly unutilised annual leave and performance
pay, payable to employees.

BEEANBBETRARENCITRAMNZEREN  TEZEERAZFBREREMNE -
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(e)
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEATRRTE - FESTSH - AR RERESENERE (&)

Lease Liabilities
HEaes

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current and

previous reporting periods and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 :
TREH THRKNBEREHUARBER(EBUBRELLDE 16REH - ARBNIE BNRERS QR ¢

Consolidated and the Council

GaRBIE

1 April 2019 31 March 2019
31 March 2020 (Note) (Note)
2019548 1H 20194 3A31H
2020%3H31H (HEE) {iE3)
Present Present Present
Value of Total Value of Total Value of Total
the Lease Lease  the Lease Lease  the Lease Lease
Payments Payments Payments Payments Payments Payments
HE HE HE HE HE HE

NHRE AHBE  AHRE AFBRE AFRE ARBRE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Within 1 Year —ER 4,958 5,071 2,375 2,460 - -
After 1 Year but Within 2 Years —ERERZN_F 2,982 3,241 1,827 1,830 - -
After 2 Years but Within 5 Years ~—HE#BRZAEE 2,609 2,831 - - - -
5,591 6,072 1,827 1,830 - -
10,549 11,143 4,202 4,290 - -

Less: Total Future Interest B RRFI B KA
Expenses (594) (88) -
Present Value of Lease Liabilities HEEEZRE 10,549 4,202 -

Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 31 March 2019 has not been restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16
are set out in note 2(c).

Miat @ AEBEXERA(EEMBIREERDE 169F - WERARIBIT ZBWE - THEE20195F 4 A1 HWEAR AR LA RIB(E B
B EANFEITHRFEEARENENHEATHERRE - N2019F 3 A3 AMLLHERMAREY - BERBEZ(EBUBHREE
BI)E 16 N EFBE RN 2(c) °



19.

LOANS
=

Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018F 4 A 1 B&6k

Add: Loans Drawn Down During the

e FREANER

Year

Unamortised Deferred Interest R IR
Expenses FEZH

Adjustment to the Amortised FECEHER
Cost

Amortisation of Deferred Interest NEE#E
Expenses for the Year ERER B H

B EREEOER

Less: Loans Repaid During the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Represented by: LFRFRIBELE -
Loans Payable Within One Year —FREEENER

Nominal Value HE

Deferred Interest Expense EER S H
Loans Payable After One Year —FHREREBNER

Nominal Value [ERES
Deferred Interest Expense EIER B H

Total Balance Lt es

Consolidated and the Council

2019% 3 A 31 H&: 6k

meERBIE
Bank Loan
for On-lending Loan from
to Staff Government
(Note 19(a)) (Note 19(b)) Total
HETETIH
RATER BRER
(FFEE19(a)) (FFEE19(b)) Rz
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
858 517,356 518,214
1,140 - 1,140
- 25,868 25,868
1,998 543,224 545,222
(535) (67,000) (67,535)
1,463 476,224 477,687
1,463 67,000 68,463
- (23,811) (23,811)
1,463 43,189 44,652
- 536,000 536,000
- (102,965) (102,965)
- 433,035 433,035
1,463 476,224 477,687
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19. LOANS (Cont'd)
EX (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2019 2019F 4 B 1 B 6k

e FREANER

Add: Loans Drawn Down
During the Year

Unamortised Deferred Interest REEE 2 IERE
Expenses FEZH

Adjustment to the Amortised RO EEER
Cost

Amortisation of Deferred Interest NEE#E 2
Expenses for the Year IEEF BT H

Less: Loans Repaid During the Year i : EREENER

Balance as at 31 March 2020 2020 % 3 A 31 H#5ER

Represented by: FRFRIEDE :

Loans Payable Within One Year —FREEENER
Nominal Value H{E

Deferred Interest Expense EIER B H
Loans Payable After One Year —FHREEEZNER

Nominal Value H{E
Deferred Interest Expense EIER S H

Total Balance Fb e

76

Consolidated and the Council

ma kB

Bank Loan for

On-lending Loan from
to Staff Government
(Note 19(a)) (Note 19(b)) Total
HETFETIW
IRITER BER
(FEE19(a)) (MFEE19(p)) #zE
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
1,463 476,224 477,687
2,670 - 2,670
- 23,811 23,811
4,133 500,035 504,168
(1,008) (67,000) (68,008)
3,125 433,035 436,160
3,125 67,000 70,125
- (21,652) (21,652)
3,125 45,348 48,473
- 469,000 469,000
- (81,313) (81,313)
- 387,687 387,687
3,125 433,035 436,160




19.

LOANS (Cont'd)

B (

(@)

=

&)

The loan relates to a revolving credit facility for on-lending to staff and is unsecured and bears interest at 2.15% per
annum (2019: 2.275% per annum). The interest expenses incurred are fully borne by the staff. The loan is repayable
on 28 February 2021 and renewable annually subject to the Bank’s consent. The amount of the facility is HK$30
million (2019: HK$30 million). The contractual undiscounted value of the loan as at 31 March 2020 was HK$3.1
million (2019: HK$1.5 million).

EETFEIMNABMHERBEIKIFER  RENFFERE2.15% (2019F : 2.275%) - IEFMEZHIIHERET
AN BERANR2021F2A28RFE  YAIEEERTRETEZFEN - BRERBEABY3,0008 T (2019
F: B¥3,00087T) °c R2020F3 A31 BEMNZAREZARINREARBE 3108 T (2019 F : B 150&T) ©

Loan from the Government (the Loan) was an interest-free loan under the Start-up Loan Scheme. The Loan is for the
construction of campus in Chai Wan to operate self-financing full-time post-secondary programmes by the Technological
and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong. The Loan is secured by income generated from the operation and
management of the courses and programmes in respect of which the Loan is granted.

BAER (BRLEER) REBANFEENENBAEIRNEEER - WERAFERZUREENRS  UHE
BEEHERRERKEAERFN2AFELRE - LERUKLEREBEZE LREZWAFEERR -

Drawdown of the Loan will be disbursed in three instalments. First, second and final instalments of HK$220 million,

HK$340 million and HK$110 million were received in March 2014, February 2015 and October 2017 respectively. The
Loan is repayable in equal annual instalments over a period of 10 years and the first repayment was due on the first
anniversary of the date of final drawdown.

ERBDZREZM c BR - BEDARAREZRERBEE2/E2,0008E T » BHEE3E4,0008 TR B 1121,000E T
E2RIR2014F 38 20156 F 2 AK2017F 10 BlE - WERD 5 BEFHEE  F-XEREETHEERENR
MARFTE—EBFEARIE -

Total contractual undiscounted value of the Loan as at 31 March 2020 was HK$536 million (2019: HK$603 million),
of which HK$67 million (2019: HK$67 million) was repayable within one year and the remaining balance of HK$469
million (2019: HK$536 million) was repayable after one year. The unamortised deferred interest expenses represented
the difference between the carrying value and the redemption value of the interest-free loan using effective interest
method at a discount rate of 5%.

MR2020F 3 A31 HHRHWBEEZARITRERBE¥SE3,6008B 7T (2019F : B 6E 3008 ) » EFEH6,700
Bt (2019%F : BH6, 7008 L) BN —FREE » 8% 4186,900 BT (2019F : BHESE3,6008T) AR —F
BEER REBHECELERNE X H AR EERNWRABREZ % TR EFERAERANRETEBRE £
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20.

78

DEFERRED INCOME
EFE W i

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 4)

Balance as at 31 March

To Be Recognised as Income
Within One Year
After One Year

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 4)

Balance as at 31 March

To Be Recognised as Income
Within One Year
After One Year

4 A1 B4
B, FEWE B
RERNBEZHWA (HFE4)

3 A 31 A#E

B I
— 4y
— ik

4 A1 B4k
B2 FEWE B
RERNBEZHWA (FHFE4)

3 A 31 A#E
R B WS

— %Py
— %

Consolidated

2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$’000
2,153,525 2,259,058
3,495,475 3,242,054
(3,441,452) (3,347,587)
2,207,548 2,153,525
422,456 308,694
1,785,092 1,844,831
2,207,548 2,153,525
The Council
B3 &

2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$’000
2,124,097 2,231,037
3,469,149 3,225,223
(3,424,355) (3,332,163)
2,168,891 2,124,097
399,103 290,430
1,769,788 1,833,667
2,168,891 2,124,097

Note:  Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets incurred (see

Note 2(p)(i)).

st : BERABNBAHBSNASRIIARELRS  HEUGEMXSAHEENTEHSBERRBRBUA FSHME2(p)

(i) °



21.

(a)

(b)

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
LREREERAABE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, foreign currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s operations. The
Group manages and minimises these financial risks through its financial risk management policies and practices described
below:
ARBREREBBREPIREE - RBES - IMERFIZRAR - ARBEBTI 2 MBRRERBRRER THF > &
ZRBEUEBERBD

Credit Risk
EERK

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to cash and deposits at banks, tuition fees and training charges receivable from individual students or
sponsoring organisations. Management manages this risk as follows:
CEERBRIESERHREDEEEINNIE - AMBZEERARTIERBFHNNARTHNREREFR  BEFATRNEY
HBFATNEERREER SEESEEERROT !

Regarding the credit risk on cash and deposits at banks, the Group reviews credit ratings of banks based on approved credit
rating agencies on a regular basis. There is an investment guideline set out the selection criteria and exposure limits to
investment counterparties.

HEBRRBTHREREFRZEERR  AMEESEHREAITNEETREBRHHRTNEETR - MIREESIFR
EIHEREXZFHFNRBEENREREE -

In respect of tuition fees and training charges receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all students requiring
credit over a certain amount. These take into account the students’ past payment history, financial position and other factors.
Tuition fees and training charges receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from students.

HREBENRZEASTE SUBL-—EEESHENBEETEAGEN M - ZETESETRELBENARCHE » BKMR
MEHMEEZ ZERFEERA - ROAREAHEF30AREH - AE-—RISERELRHIKTFR

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure arising from accounts receivable and other receivables are
set out in Note 16.

AHEBHEUIRER HRYERENECIKEC I HRHEE 16

Liquidity Risk
RBESREE

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that funds are not available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group invests surplus cash in bank deposits not exceeding an average horizon
of three years.
RBECREMBEESEEANESRENEHNERE - AEBNHRATHELRRKERERZRBESER  UBRREFE
MR RHE > AUENERREIARBESER - ARBRERANSNESTFRRBITELITZR=ZENEREFR °

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities at the balance sheet date of the Group and the Council are
disclosed in Notes 18 and 19. The contractual maturities are calculated based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Council are required to pay.
AHBRBIRBRGEEBNNBEECRORTNART IR » SRMFE18M 19K E - ZURTENART ZIH A B RIEX
WBRERFTR2BER (BREUZVBEE RN RIREE ANARMZBERZMFAE 2N EIH) - URAKBENBIBDH
RREMARTAEN -

Foreign Currency Risk
SNEE LB

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

FHEBRZGLUBETE - BARIMNEREERAR -
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21.

(d)

(e)

22.

80

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd)
EREREERAEEE)

Interest Rate Risk
F = & b

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its borrowing activities. The Group considers that it is not exposed to any
significant interest rate risk arising from its borrowings as at 31 March 2020. The bank loan obtained is for on-lending to staff
who will reimburse the same amount of interest to the Group and the loan from the Government is non-interest bearing.

FEBNANZERBTIERAEETDY - AEER DL EFTER2020F3 A31L HNBEREEANFXRER - RITERRUN
FRBARNESNESHEERTET  MBEFERARREN -

Fair Values
NAREE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

FrESMIENR2020F3A31HK2019F 3 A3 ANREEEEAARBEIEEREE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BELTRS

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations and the composition of the Council members of the Council (being drawn from
private and public operations), it is inevitable that transactions may take place with organisations in which a Council member
may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a Council member or senior management of the Group
may have an interest are conducted at an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the Group’s financial regulations and
normal procurement procedure. Donations received from Council members, senior management or companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them had been approved and reported in accordance with the Group’s financial regulations.
HARKEBENEERS  RBIISNESEREMNAR (A ERAEHEBRE)  AEEETRAHEEESENEGTEE
BNHBETRS - B RESESHEITIHBEETESENRZYIRBELA T RARAKBH KRR EENFRERFE
T -HESEHNE  EESEIZTHENREZZEN AR ABBMNBRIIRBEREBIERAMZERE

Remuneration for key management personnel is as follows:

TEEHEENENMEFENT

Consolidated

o=

2020 2019

HK$’'000 HK$’000

Short-term Employee Benefits EHEEREF 52,259 44,142

The Council
B

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$’000

Short-term Employee Benefits EHEEREF 45,969 38,477

The above remuneration is included in “staff expenses” (see Note 8). The Group’s contributions to retirement schemes are
also set out in Note 8.

LM EEFTATETHX A (FE2HMEES) o B 2R BT FIEMNAMEES



23.

(a)

(b)

COMMITMENTS
HRIE

Capital Commitments in Respect of Property, Plant and Equipment Outstanding at 31 March 2020 and 2019 Not
Provided for in the Financial Statements were as follows:

20203 331 HX 201953 A 31 H 2% - BBERRERNRUBHRERBEHE 2ERALZNT ¢

Consolidated and the Council

makBEIE

2020 2019

HK$’'000 HK$’'000

Contracted for EHEY 16,949 25,796
Authorised but not Contracted for BT RETY 425,851 433,885
Total ST 442,800 459,681

As at 31 March 2019, the Total Future Minimum Lease Payments under Operating Leases in respect of
Properties are Payable as follows:

R2019F 3831 H - MEUEERERAZBYREEENHREENT

Consolidated and
the Council

e RBIE
2019
HK$'000

Within 1 Year —F R 6,120
After 1 Year but Within 5 Years —FEETRSZRE 869

6,989

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held under leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these leases
(see note 2(c)). From 1 April 2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(g), and the details regarding the Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in note 18.
ARBERBIRB(EASHEINFE 17T ROEALEHENETYWENAEA - AEBE BEXER(EBMBREERNE
1655 » WHKALKIERT ZBIE - RIBZS L AHEBE2019F 4 A1 AAZRRIES  UBRREZSHEHABENEEEE
(RFfEE2(c)) - BH2019F 4B 1BE » RREAENKRBMHE2e) IEBERIBEIAHEESE - BRABBARREESRK
IR ML 18 HIKE o
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24.

25.

82

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
EEIEEa

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2(c).
AHEE2019F 481 AREXREA(E BV BREELNFE 165%  WIKALIBT 2BIE - RIBES L KHENFFE
5 SR BXREHFEFSHAMEE2(C) -

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
E£ 20205 3 A 31 HILFEC AMERRERVEEET - FBEARZEUTERBRNTE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new standards,
HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2020 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these new developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

BEAMBRETIERD  BRSHTMASC AMEIERLEBRT « IR (BEBMBREFEINFE 17THRIREBEN IRBE - B
REBZE2020F3A31 BIEZFERARER » BMARARIMBEHRERPEA o AHIBHR EREBLMES U ERRBNTE
EHFE - ESBHNERBRABLET]  REAKRBNUEBRREEEATE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL
TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

HEXIERELARE2E (—AAhN)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme, which
comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits as at 31
March 2020, and the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme
as at 31 March 2020 and of its financial transactions and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (HKSAs) and with reference to Practice Note 860.1
(Revised), The Audit of Retirement Schemes issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described

in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Scheme
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of trustees for the financial statements

The trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the provisions of the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible
for assessing the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either
intend to liquidate the Scheme or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the trustees.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Scheme to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

3 August 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF
VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

BHEXIERLERFFE (—AAh)

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 (Revised), The
Audit of Retirement Schemes (PN860.1 (Revised)) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), and
have issued an unqualified auditor’s report thereon dated 3 August
2020.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (ORSO), we are required to report whether the Scheme
complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Trustees’ Responsibilities
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme;
(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,

charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
issued by the HKICPA, which is founded on fundamental principles
of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care,
confidentiality and professional behaviour.

The firm applies Hong Kong Standard on Quality Control 1 and
accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control
including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance
with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to report solely to you, as a body, on the
Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements based on the
results of the procedures performed by us and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to PN 860.1 (Revised) issued by

the HKICPA. We have planned and performed our work to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Scheme has complied with
the above requirements.

We have planned and performed such procedures as we considered
necessary with reference to the procedures recommended on PN
860.1 (Revised), which included reviewing, on a test basis, evidence
obtained from the Trustees regarding the Scheme’s compliance with
the above requirements.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(1) proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 31 March 2020 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

(2) contributions have been made in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2020;
and at 31 March 2020, there was no shortfall between
the Scheme’s assets and the Scheme’s aggregate vested
liability;

(3) at 31 March 2020, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)
(iii) of the ORSO; and

(4) at 30 June 2019, 31 October 2019 and 31 March 2020,
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

Intended Users and Purpose

This report is intended solely for submission by the trustees to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone for any other purpose.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

3 August 2020
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
R2020F3 A3l AAHBEANRNIBEERSR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Investments Managed by Investment Managers #REKLEEENKREIER 3,597,237 4,101,722
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERBEEEY 13,551 7,185
3,610,788 4,108,907

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts and Other Payables FEfT R E RS BRFR 57 54
Benefits Payable SRR 5,495 16,004
5,552 16,058
NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS AHEERAROFEEE 3,605,236 4,092,849

Represented by: FHRFRIESE :

CAPITAL ACCOUNT BARRE 3,605,236 4,092,849

Approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Trustees

on 3 August 2020

2020568 A3 H
HETZESHRREERE

Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin
Chairman

Board of Trustees
BiEBLE
EEEESXE

88




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BE2020F 3831 BELFEEAHEEANNRNBEEZIHRR

INVESTMENT RETURN
Interest Income
Net Realised Gain on Investments
Net Movement in Unrealised
Loss on Investments

INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment Management Fees

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administrator's Fees
Accountancy Fees

Audit Fees

Miscellaneous Expenses

NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR
CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from the Council
Contributions from Members
BENEFIT PAYMENTS

Benefits on Termination of Service

Retirement Benefits
Death Benefits

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE
FOR BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR

Lk
B
ERB R A B
RBEHORA
BRFRE
BAR

REEHEEH

THER

THREER
SETEMA
EZEH
FEIR B X

FRBEFE

@
L

N

AR B
B

B
59

BT H

BEBAE A
RRER
HRIMAE R

AE A AR R TR
REERD

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,466 7,178
208,617 222479
(400,199) (263,659)
(183,116) (34,002)
655 661

655 661

606 661

86 91

56 54

36 34

784 840
(184,555) (35,503)
127,995 132,907
42,309 43,858
170,304 176,765
20,115 28,638
448,867 341,716
4,380 1,410
473,362 371,764
(487,613) (230,502)
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For enquiries &) External Relations Office
Vocational Training Council

BiSoIARRINE R

Address it VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BERETIRB 2T R RBARIE

Tel &3 (852) 2836 1000
Fax & (852) 2838 0667
Website #484F http://www.vtc.edu.hk
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